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CHARACTERISTICS OF GEM OF THE STOCK
EXCHANGE

GEM has been positioned as a market designed to
accommodate small and mid-sized companies to
which a higher investment risk may be attached
than other companies listed on the Stock Exchange.
Prospective investors should be aware of the potential
risks of investing in such companies and should
make the decision to invest only after due and careful
consideration.

Given that the companies listed on GEM are generally
small and mid-sized companies, there is a risk that
securities traded on GEM may be more susceptible
to high market volatility than securities traded on the
Main Board of the Stock Exchange and no assurance is
given that there will be a liquid market in the securities
traded on GEM.

Hong Kong Exchanges and Clearing Limited and the
Stock Exchange take no responsibility for the contents of
this report, make no representation as to its accuracy or
completeness and expressly disclaim any liability whatsoever
for any loss howsoever arising from or in reliance upon the
whole or any part of the contents of this report.

This report, for which the Directors collectively and
individually accept full responsibility, includes particulars
given in compliance with the GEM Listing Rules for the
purpose of giving information with regard to the Company.
The Directors, having made all reasonable enquiries,
confirm that, to the best of their knowledge and belief, the
information contained in this report is accurate and complete
in all material respects and not misleading or deceptive,
and there are no other matters the omission of which would
make any statement herein or this report misleading.
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DEAR SHAREHOLDERS

For and on behalf of the Board, | am pleased to present the
annual results of the Group for the financial year ended 31
May 2025 to the Shareholders.

Over the past few years, the Group’s business has faced
multiple challenges and pressure including changes in
the overall economic environment, a trend of northbound
consumption, and a general decline in consumer spending
power. These factors are likely to continue to impact
consumption patterns, lifestyle and entertainment industry
in Hong Kong. Under these circumstances, the Group will
carefully evaluate the feasibility of resuming its restaurant
and catering business in Hong Kong (depending on the
suitability of the locations, the appropriate favourable rental
terms and the desirable return rates). The Group will also
actively explore adjustments and optimisation of its regional
and business structures, particularly by continuing to expand
into the mainland Chinese consumer market.

During the Reporting Period, the Group recorded an
decrease in revenue of approximately 56.5% from
approximately HK$89,245,000 for the Corresponding Period
to approximately HK$38,838,000 for the Reporting Period
and recorded a net loss of approximately HK$3,822,000
for the Reporting Period as compared to approximately
HK$17,321,000 for the Corresponding Period. Such
improvement was primarily due to (i) decrease in operating
expenses such as marketing cost and staff cost as a result
of the cessation of business of the night club “FAYE”; (ii)
reversal of trade receivables written off in the Corresponding
Period; and (iii) decrease in property rental and related
expenses as a result of disposal of Wanchai Amante Shop.

Chairman’s Statement
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Chairman’s Statement

ERHEE

During the Reporting Period, firstly, in order to expand and
develop existing businesses, the Group has launched bottled
water supply business and reopened restaurant and bar
in mainland China. Going forward, we will focus resources
on developing these businesses and related or ancillary
businesses in mainland China. Secondly, focusing on the
sales of consumer goods such as food and beverage and
related derivative services, we are actively exploring ways
to develop chain stores or online platforms in mainland
China through methods including but not limited to joint
ventures, and to build a diversified “product + channel”
superimposed business model. Thirdly, in line with the needs
of the new consumer market under new technologies and
service upgrades, we are actively exploring new business
enablement and renewal methods in Hong Kong or mainland
China.

Despite the uncertain operating environment, the Board
remain cautiously optimistic about the Group’s prospects
and are committed to strengthening the competitiveness
of our core businesses while adjusting our strategies to
respond to market changes, striving to achieve satisfactory
results and deliver favourable returns to Shareholders. To
achieve this, the Group will combine the aforementioned
business development strategic and specific paths to
continue providing valued customers with diversified value-
added products and services, actively explore new business
opportunities, expand our business and product portfolio,
and implement strategic initiatives to enhance performance,
thereby maintaining and continuously expanding our
upstream and downstream businesses.

ACKNOWLEDGEMENT

On behalf of the Board and the management of the Group,
| would like to express my sincere gratitude to all our staff
for their unremitting efforts during the Reporting Period and
to all shareholders for their full support. | would also like to
express my heartfelt thanks to all Shareholders, investors,
customers, suppliers and business partners for their valuable
support.

Ma Liangping
Chairman
Hong Kong, 28 August 2025
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Our Outlets
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Financial Highlight
M RE

KEY FINANCIAL INFORMATION TEREEER
Year ended 31 May
HE5A31ALEE
2025 2024
20255 20244
HK$’000 HK$'000
FAET FAET
Revenue & 38,838 89,245
Changes in inventories FEEZEH) (25,946) (27,714)
Non-cash items: JEREIEH
Depreciation of property, plant and equipment %)% - = K =& # T & (2,805) (5,589)
Depreciation of right-of-use assets FTREEEINE (6,159) (14,185)
Impairment loss on property, plant and ME--BERREBREBE
equipment - (34)
Reversal of write-off of trade receivables B p E 5 E R 1E 2,226 =
Write-off of trade and other receivables 8 B 5 B E g W Rk 18 - (5,571)
Reversal of expected credit loss on trade and & 3 & H fth fE Ux 218
other receivables, net TERE BB OIFE 511 361
Loss before income tax FRETIEM ARS8 (1,751) (16,118)
Loss and total comprehensive income FARBEAEEW@ARLE
for the year (3,822) (17,321)

For the Reporting Period, the Group’s revenue was
approximately HK$38,838,000, representing a decrease
of approximately 56.5% when compared with that of
the Corresponding Period. Such decrease was mainly
attributable to the night club “FAYE” had ceased its
operation due to expiration of lease on 4 August 2024.

The Group recorded a loss and total comprehensive income
for the Reporting Period approximately HK$3,822,000,
representing a decrease of approximately 77.9% when
compared with that of the Corresponding Period. Such
improvement was primarily due to (i) decrease in operating
expenses such as marketing cost and staff cost as a
result of the cessation of business of the night club
“FAYE”; (i) reversal of write-off of trade receivables in the
Corresponding Period; and (iii) decrease in property rental
and related expenses as a result of disposal of Wanchai
Amante Shop.

The Board did not recommend payment of any dividend for
the Reporting Period (2024: nil).
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Management Discussion and Analysis

BUSINESS REVIEW

During the Reporting Period, the Group’s principal activities
include clubs and entertainment operation and catering
services.

During the Reporting Period, the Group operated 1 night-
club (namely Faye), 2 lounges (namely LKF Lounge and
Amante House) and 1 shop (namely Wanchai Amante Shop),
covering different segments of the club and entertainment
market. Faye provided unparalleled clubbing and vibing
experience with a stunning view at the rooftop of California
Tower in Lan Kwai Fong. The 2 lounges and 1 shop provide
its customers with a quiet and relaxing environment for cigar
and liquor consumption. The revenue generated from the
operation of club and entertainment business decreased
by approximately HK$50,407,000, or approximately 56.5%,
from approximately HK$89,245,000 for the Corresponding
Period to approximately HK$38,838,000 for the Reporting
Period.

During the Reporting Period, our night club, Faye, had
ceased operation on 4 August 2024 due to expiration of
lease. Wanchai Amante Shop was disposed at the end of
April 2025 due to underperformance and minimal financial
contribution over the past year.

FINANCIAL REVIEW
Revenue

For the Reporting Period, the Group’s revenue was
generated from the operation of club and entertainment and
catering services.

The Group recognises its revenue from club and
entertainment operations and catering services in the
following ways:

- For club and entertainment operations and catering
services, revenue is recognised:

o When the customer takes possession of and
accepts the products.

o Simultaneously, when the customer receives
and consumes the benefits provided by the
Group, or when other products are delivered
(such as tips, cloakroom fees, and service
income from an entertainment studio).
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Management Discussion and Analysis

BEEE®RD R

The table below sets forth the breakdown of the revenue by
club and entertainment operation and catering services for
the Reporting Period and Corresponding Period:

TRV REME R EFE RS PTR R %
BEUKRBERRGE DB R

Year ended 31 May

HE5H31ALEE
2025 2024
20255 20244
% of total % of total
HK$’000 revenue HK$’000 revenue
FHEIT  1GEKE FHET 1A
=g =R dnp
Club and entertainment operation & Fff F {3 4 % 38 38,838 100.0 89,245 100.0
Total 48 st 38,838 100.0 89,245 100.0

The revenue generated from the operation of club and
entertainment business decreased by approximately
HK$50,407,000, or approximately 56.5%, from
approximately HK$89,245,000 for the Corresponding Period
to approximately HK$38,838,000 for the Reporting Period.
Such decrease was mainly due to night club “FAYE” had
ceased its operation due to expiration of lease on 4 August
2024.

Changes in inventories

The changes in inventories mainly represented the cost of
beverage and food ingredients used in the Group’s club and
entertainment operation and catering services. The major
beverage and food ingredients purchased by the Group
include but are not limited to liquors, champagne, cigars,
bottled waters, etc. The changes in inventories, one of
the components of the operating expenses, decreased by
approximately HK$1,768,000, or approximately 6.4%, from
approximately HK$27,714,000 for the Corresponding Period
to approximately HK$25,946,000 for the Reporting Period.

10
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Management Discussion and Analysis

Other income and gains

The Group’s other income increased by approximately
HK$5,657,000, as compared with the Corresponding Period.
Such increase was mainly due to the (i) gain on disposal of
certain subsidiaries; and (i) write-back of other payables.

Advertising and marketing expenses

Advertising and marketing expenses primarily consisted
of advertising and promotional expenses such as the cost
of engaging resident and guest DJs and the expenses
incurred for engaging a public relations company for the
provision of marketing and promotion services to the
Group’s club, entertainment and restaurant operations.
The advertising and marketing expenses decreased by
approximately HK$13,096,000, or approximately 89.4%,
from approximately HK$14,650,000 for the Corresponding
Period to approximately HK$1,554,000 for the Reporting
Period. Such decrease was mainly due to cessation of
business of our night club “Faye” in August 2024,

Employee benefits expense

Employee benefits expense primarily consisted of all salaries
and benefits payable to all employees and staff, including
the Directors, headquarters staff and operational staff in
each outlet. The employee benefits expense decreased by
approximately HK$11,777,000, or approximately 56.6%,
from approximately HK$20,809,000 for the Corresponding
Period to approximately HK$9,032,000 for the Reporting
Period. The decrease was primarily attributable to a reduced
need for staff following the closure of our night club “Faye”
and the disposal of Wanchai Amante Shop.
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Management Discussion and Analysis

BEEE®RD R

Depreciation of property, plant and equipment and
right-of-use assets

Depreciation represented the depreciation charge for
property, plant and equipment (including, among others,
leasehold improvements, furniture, fixtures and equipment)
and right-of-use assets. Property, plant and equipment are
depreciated so as to write off their cost net of expected
residual value over their estimated useful lives on a
straight-line basis. The total depreciation decreased by
approximately HK$10,810,000, or approximately 54.7%,
from approximately HK$19,774,000 for the Corresponding
Period to approximately HK$8,964,000 for the Reporting
Period.

Other expenses

Other expenses mainly represented security expenses
for the clubs, credit card commissions, repairs and
maintenance costs, cleaning expenses, professional fee and
entertainment expenses. The other expenses decreased by
approximately HK$13,031,000, or approximately 64.1%,
from approximately HK$20,323,000 for the Corresponding
Period to approximately HK$7,292,000 for the Reporting
Period. Such decrease was mainly due to (i) disposal of
Wanchai Amante Shop in the end of April 2025; and (ii)
disposal of certain subsidiaries during the Reporting Period.

Loss before income tax

As a result of the cumulative factors discussed above,
a loss before income tax decreased from approximately
HK$16,118,000 for the Corresponding Period to
approximately HK$1,751,000 for the Reporting Period.

Loss and total comprehensive income for the year

The loss and total comprehensive income decreased from
approximately HK$17,321,000 for the Corresponding Period
to approximately HK$3,822,000 for the Reporting Period.
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Management Discussion and Analysis

FINANCIAL POSITION, LIQUIDITY AND FINANCIAL
RESOURCES

The Group recorded net cash used in operating activities
of approximately HK$5,099,000 for the Reporting Period
and net cash generated from operating activities of
approximately HK$5,885,000 for the Corresponding Period.
Such turnaround was primarily due to decrease in trade and
other payables and contract liabilities.

As at 31 May 2025, the Group’s total cash and bank
balances (including cash and cash equivalents) were
approximately HK$1,549,000 (2024: approximately
HK$1,816,000). The current ratio (calculated by current
assets divided by current liabilities) of the Group was
1.06 (2024: 0.68), the difference was mainly due to the (i)
decrease in trade and other payables as a result of disposal
of certain subsidiaries and cessation of operation of our
night club “Faye” and (i) decrease in amounts due to non-
controlling interests and other borrowings following disposal
of certain subsidiaries during the Reporting Period. The
gearing ratio (calculated by total debts divided by total
equity) of the Group was 13.6% (2024: nil).

AUDITOR’S DISCLAIMER OF OPINION

The Board wishes to draw the attention of the Shareholders
to the sections headed “DISCLAIMER OF OPINION” and
“BASIS FOR DISCLAIMER OF OPINION” in the Auditor’s
Report contained in pages 92 and 95 of this report. The
Auditor has issued a disclaimer of opinion on the Group’s
consolidated financial statements for the Reporting Period,
which arising solely from going concern issue of the Group.

Reasons for the Disclaimer and Proposed Measures

The net loss for the Reporting Period was primarily due to
the cessation of operation of our night club business upon
lease expiration, which had previously contributed a high
profit margin for the Group over the past years.
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The management of the Group is optimistic and confident
that the Company has sufficient working capital for the
next 18 months because the following Proposed Measures
have been and/or will be taken to improve its liquidity and
financial position:

(i) in August 2025, the Group entered into a loan facility
agreement with a shareholder for an amount of
HK$20,000,000 for 24 months. The Group will utilise
this facility to support its liquidity needs;

(ii) From June to August 2025, the Group received
financial support amounting to approximately
HK$2,400,000 in aggregate from a director of the
Company; and

(iii) the Directors will strengthen to implement measures
aiming at improving the working capital and cash
flows of the Group, including closely monitoring the
general administrative expenses and operating costs.

Regarding the basis for Disclaimer in the Auditor’s Report
concerning the appropriateness of the assumption regarding
the Company’s ability to continue as a going concern, the
management of the Group have prepared an 18-month cash
flow forecast and certain proposed measures. Additionally,
the Group has implemented certain strategic initiatives and
operational adjustments to improve the Group’s liquidity and
financial position aiming to explore new opportunities and
business models in the future food and beverage sector
across multiple regions, while ensuring alignment with the
Group’s existing businesses. The Company remains focused
on optimising resource allocation, improving profitability, and
addressing the Company’s going concern issue challenges.
Furthermore, the Group will maintain strict cost-control
measures, closely monitoring and reducing operational
and administrative costs and expenses to minimise cash
outflows.
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Management Discussion and Analysis

Existing Businesses Operational Adjustments

The Company is actively monitoring the performance of its
existing establishments in Hong Kong, including:

1. Wanchai Amante Shop was disposed at the end of
April 2025 to focus resources on more profitable
ventures due to underperformance and minimal
financial contribution over the past year.

2. The Company is exploring relocation of Amante
House to a more cost-effective premises nearby to
reduce overhead costs.

o) The Company is closely monitoring the operations
of LKF Lounge and may introduce new products to
diversify its offerings and enhance customer appeal.
The Company will adjust its strategy and pace based
on actual performance.

Possible Expansion into Mainland China

In addition to the operational adjustments in Hong Kong,
the Company has identified several potential investment
opportunities to expand into mainland China. These
initiatives align with the Group’s core business segments,
including clubs, entertainment, restaurants, catering
services, and cigar and liquor operations. The expansion
strategy also includes upstream and downstream
operations, such as: sourcing and purchasing food and
beverage products directly from suppliers, as well as
distributing and retailing these products through the Group’s
existing and future establishments.

New Business Initiatives:

1. Bottled Water Supply Business: the Company has
officially started its bottled water supply business in
China at the end of March 2025 targeting both in-
store customers and other retail consumers at chain
stores or online platforms. This venture complements
the Group’s existing operations including LKF Lounge
and Amante House, as well as upcoming restaurants
and/or bars in mainland China and Hong Kong as in
our business plan.

Product is undergoing refinements in packaging,
marketing strategies, and distribution plans, with
potential launch in Hong Kong targeting both in-store
customers and retail customers at chain convenience
stores or online platforms.
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2. Sparkling Wine and Liquors Business: the Company
is still examining the possibility collaboration with
a China-based wine supplier to introduce a unique
range of sparkling wine and health liqueur products.
However, no final decision has been made as the
Group is conducting thorough evaluations of risk,
return, cost and benefit. Should the Group proceed
with this venture, it will ensure alignment with its
existing operations and demonstrate value-added to
the business.

S Reopening Restaurants Business: one of the Group’s
subsidiaries has executed a share transfer agreement
with the shareholders of a Chengdu-based restaurant
and bar, completing the acquisition of a 51% stake
in July 2025. In August 2025, the Group entered into
another agreement to acquire the remaining 49%
equity interest. The transaction was completed in
August 2025.

4, The Group is also exploring the possibility of
developing tea beverages and related businesses,
including plans to open integrated tea experience
stores in selected high-end tourist destinations across
mainland China, combining premium tea services,
modern retail, and cultural immersion to expand its
food and beverage and restaurant segment in the
region. The final business structure and scale will be
determined based on the trial’s performance and the
interests of the Company and Shareholder.

) the Group has also recently started initial work on its
existing liquors business in China.

6. Meanwhile, the Company is also considering
reopening a restaurant or night bar in Hong Kong,
depending on availability of a suitable place with
favourable rental term.

Taking into account of the Proposed Measures and
the above existing and future businesses strategic and
operational adjustments, the management of the Group
considers and is confident that the Group will have sufficient
liquidity to finance its operations for the next 18 months
and therefore is of the view that the Group would be able to
continue its businesses and operations as a going concern
and the going concern issue will be fully resolved in the
immediate future.
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Management Discussion and Analysis

Audit Committee’s View on the Disclaimer

The Audit Committee had critically reviewed the Disclaimer,
the position of the management of the Group concerning
the Disclaimer and the Proposed Measures taken by the
Group for addressing the Disclaimer. The Audit Committee
agreed with the position of the management of the Group
based on the reasons as stated herein. Moreover, the Audit
Committee requested the management of the Group to
take all necessary actions to address the impact of the
Disclaimer and to strive that such situation leading to the
Disclaimer would not happen or be improved in the coming
future. The Audit Committee had also discussed with
the Auditor regarding the financial position of the Group,
Proposed Measures taken and to be taken by the Group,
and considered the Auditor’s rationale and understood their
consideration in arriving their opinion.

For further details, please also refer to the section headed
“DISCLAIMER” under the Corporate Governance Report on
pages 40 to 41.

CAPITAL STRUCTURE

The capital structure of the Group comprises of issued
share capital and reserves. As at 31 May 2025, the
equity attributable to owners of the Company amounted
to approximately HK$8,681,000 (2024: approximately
HK$4,313,000).

Subscription of New Shares Under General Mandate

On 24 September 2024, the Company entered into a
subscription agreement with the Subscriber to raise fund
for general working capital use, of which approximately
HK$3,100,000 for repayment of loan and the remaining
balance for the Group’s administrative expenses including
the staff’s salaries, rentals and other general expenses.
Pursuant to the subscription agreement, the Company has
conditionally agreed to allot and issue, and the Subscriber
has conditionally agreed to subscribe for, 20,370,000
subscription shares (aggregate nominal value: HK$203,700)
at the subscription price of HK$0.46 per subscription share
(net price per subscription share: approximately HK$0.454
and the closing price of the share on 24 September 2024:
HK$0.450 per share). The subscription shares were allotted
and issued pursuant to the general mandate granted to the
Directors at the annual general meeting of the Company
held on 6 October 2023. All the conditions precedent
under the placing agreement have been fulfilled and the
placing was completed on 3 October 2024. For details of
the subscription, please refer to the announcements of the
Company dated 24 September 2024 and 3 October 2024.
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The net proceeds from the subscription was approximately
HK$9,250,000 (gross proceeds: approximately
HK$9,370,200). As at the date of this report, the net
proceeds have been fully utilised as approximately
HK$3,100,000 for repayment of loan and approximately
HK$6,150,000 for general working capital of the Group.

EVENTS AFTER THE REPORTING PERIOD

The Group completed the acquisition of entire 100% equity
interest in Chengdu restaurant and bar (the “Chengdu
Restaurant”) in August 2025. As at the date of this report,
Chengdu Restaurant has become a wholly owned subsidiary
of the Group. The Company will commence operations of
Chengdu Restaurant as soon as possible after adjusting its
internal structure.

In June 2025, the Group entered into a supplemental
agreement with the former shareholder of the Company.
Pursuant to a supplemental agreement, the payment
method for the HK$1,800,000 consideration from the sale of
Wanchai Amante Shop will be settled via offsetting against
the Group’s future purchases from the former shareholder of
the Company.

For further details, please refer to note 41 to the
consolidated financial statements of this annual report.

PRINCIPAL RISKS AND UNCERTAINTIES

There are certain risks involved in the operations of the
Group’s business. Set forth below are some of the major
risks that could materially and adversely affect the Group.

1) In order to expand and diversify our outlet network,
we expect to establish more lounges and set up more
restaurants in Hong Kong. The food and beverage,
and entertainment industry in Hong Kong is highly
competitive. Our success to branch out is subject
to a number of risks and uncertainties, including
identification of suitable locations and/or securing
of leases on reasonable terms, timely acquisition
of necessary governmental approvals and licences,
ability to hire quality personnel, timely completion
decoration and renovation works, acquisition of
sufficient customer demand, securing of adequate
suppliers and inventory that meet our quality
standards on timely basis, reduction in potential
cannibalisation effects between the locations of
our outlets and the general economic conditions.
The costs incurred in expansion plans may place
substantial strain on our managerial, operational and
financial resources. As such, we cannot assure that
we can always operate the expand outlets network
on a profitable basis or that any new outlet will
reach the planned operating levels. If any new outlet
experiences prolonged delays in breaking even or
achieving our desired level of profitability or operate
at a loss, our operational and financial resources
could be strained and our overall profitability could be
affected.
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Management Discussion and Analysis

As we lease or license all of the properties on
which our outlets operate, we are exposed to the
fluctuations in the commercial real estate market.
There is no objective way for us to accurately predict
the rental rates in the commercial real estate market
in Hong Kong, and our substantial lease liabilities
expose us to potentially significant risks, including
increasing our vulnerability to adverse economic
conditions, limiting our ability to obtain additional
financing and reducing our cash available for other
purposes. Any non-renewal (whether as a result of the
landlord’s or licensor’s or our decision) or termination
of any of our leases or licence or substantial
increased rentals or licence fees could cause us to
close down the relevant outlet or the need to relocate
to another site, depending on our business needs
or performance from time to time. In such events,
we could face a drop in sales, write off leasehold
improvements, and could incur relocation costs for
renovation, removal and resources allocation, which
could in turn result in financial strain in our operations
and diversion of management resources.

For each of the Corresponding Period and Reporting
Period, our purchases from our largest supplier
accounted for approximately 72.0% and 57.2% of
our total purchases, respectively. We make purchases
from our largest supplier under individual purchase
order, and have not entered into any long term
contract with it. If our largest supplier for any reason
reduces the volume supplied to us or cease to supply
to us, we will need to find alternative suppliers on
similar sale terms and conditions acceptable to us. If
we fail to do so in a timely manner, the operations of
our clubs will be interrupted, our costs may increase
and our business, financial condition, results of
operations and growth prospects may therefore be
materially and adversely affected.
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To address the above risks and uncertainties, the Directors
will closely monitor the progress of the expansion plan and
to operate the expanded network on a profitable basis. The
Directors will continue to review and evaluate the business
objective and strategy and make timely execution by taking
into account the business risks and market uncertainties.

SIGNIFICANT INVESTMENTS HELD

The Group did not hold any significant investment for the
Reporting Period.

MATERIAL ACQUISITIONS AND DISPOSAL OF
SUBSIDIARIES

Save as disclosed in this annual report, the Group did
not carry out any material acquisition nor disposal of any
subsidiaries for the Reporting Period.

DIVIDENDS

No dividend has been paid or declared by the Company, or
by any of the companies now comprising the Group for the
Corresponding Period and Reporting Period.

FOREIGN EXCHANGE EXPOSURE

Since most of transactions are denominated in Hong Kong
dollars, the Group is not exposed to significant foreign
exchange exposure.

CAPITAL COMMITMENTS

The Group did not have any capital commitments as at 31
May 2024 and 2025.
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Management Discussion and Analysis

CONTINGENT LIABILITIES

The Group did not have any significant contingent liabilities
as at 31 May 2024 and 2025.

Although the Group received a writ of summons and was
involved in potential litigation during the Reporting Period,
based on the current progress of the case and legal
opinions, it is agreed that the case is still at the preliminary
stage and there has been no significant progress or
development in the case since then, therefore, no contingent
liabilities needed to be provided. For details, please refer to
the Company’s announcement dated 14 October 2024.

PLEDGE OF ASSETS

The Group did not have any restricted bank deposit that
were pledge to secured bank borrowings as at 31 May 2024
and 2025.

EMPLOYEES REMUNERATION

The Group employed 86 employees (2024: 149
employees) and the gender ratio in the workforce was
approximately 54.7% male and 45.3% female for the
Reporting Period. Employee benefit expenses (including
Directors’ remuneration, wages, salaries, performance
related bonuses, other benefits and contribution to
defined contribution pension plans) amounted to
approximately HK$9,032,000 for the Reporting Period
(2024: approximately HK$20,809,000). Brief summary of the
remuneration policy of the Group is set out in pages 33 to
34 of this annual report.

OUTLOOK

Over the past years, the Company has experienced
challenges and changes in the overall economic model.
First, the Company’s management is committed to exploring
new opportunities and business models in consumer sectors
such as food and beverage in various regions, integrating
these new businesses with the Group’s existing businesses.
Second, it is committed to structurally adjusting its business
regions and continuously expanding its commercial
exploration and business development in mainland China.
Third, it is gradually developing consumer segments by
integrating the needs of new consumer markets driven by
new technologies and upgrading its services.
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Management Discussion and Analysis
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As mentioned in previous annual report, in order to cope
with the ever-changing environment and enhance the
Company’s business operations and financial performance,
the Group has formulated plans to (i) continuously
optimise and expand its operating structure, products
and corresponding channels; (ii) continuously improve
its operating standards and management efficiency;
(iii) strengthen communication with various cooperation
channels such as suppliers and landlords to achieve better
business cooperation; and (iv) review its operating efficiency
and strictly control costs.

Going forward, the Group will gradually implement strategic
adjustments along three key lines: “from Hong Kong to
mainland China integration”, “from a relatively single product
category to gradual diversification”, and “from products to
integrated channels”. In light of market and other factors,
the Group will continuously enhance its capabilities and
develop its business by dedicating dedicated resources.
At the same time, Management is acutely aware of the
ongoing impact of external risks and will maintain strategic
flexibility, creating sustainable value for shareholders
through optimized resource allocation, improved operational
efficiency, and innovative business models. In the coming
years, the Group will focus on improving profitability
and building operational resilience, seizing new growth
opportunities amidst transformation.
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Biographical Details of Directors

EXECUTIVE DIRECTORS

Ms. Ma Liangping, aged 52, has been appointed as an
Executive Director and Chairman on 30 May 2025. Ms. Ma
has extensive experience in corporate governance, financial
management and brand building. Since 2008, Ms. Ma has
worked at Sichuan Ruifeng Investment Management Group
Co., Ltd. as a group director and financial controller, and is
responsible for the overall management of the group’s hotel
and fast-moving consumer goods sales sectors. Prior to
this, she worked as a branch business manager at China
Construction Bank and as general manager of Chengdu
Dandan Bailai Clothing Co., Ltd. Ms. Ma graduated from
adult higher education in finance program of Southwestern
University of Finance and Economics, China in 2005. Ms. Ma
currently holds 33,870,000 shares in the Company through
her wholly-owned company, Keen Champ International
Investment Limited.

Ms. Liu Huijing, aged 42, has been appointed as an
Executive Director on 3 April 2023 and is currently serves
as the CEO and a member of Nomination Committee.
Ms. Liu has extensive experience in entertainment, brand
promotion and business management. From 2006 to
2023, she worked at New Sparkle Roll International Group
Limited (“New Sparkle”, a company listed on the main
board of the Stock Exchange (stock code: 970)) and held
various senior positions, including deputy general manager,
investment manager and assistant to the group’s chairman
of New Sparkle, where she was responsible for overseeing
marketing and brand management of world-renowned
high-end luxury brands represented by New Sparkle or
associated with it in Shanghai, including Davidoff, Richard
Mille, DeWitt, Parmigiani, Boucheron and Rolls-Royce, and
the operation of the group’s film and television and media
sections. Ms. Liu obtained a master’s degree in marketing
from the University of Hertfordshire in the United Kingdom in
2011. Ms. Liu currently holds 4,265,250 Shares.
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Biographical Details of Directors

EFREFS

INEDS

Dr. Chen Xiaofeng, aged 35, has been appointed as an
INED on 22 November 2024. He is also the chairman of
the Nomination Committee and a member of the Audit
Committee and Remuneration Committee. Dr. Chen obtained
a bachelor’s degree in laws from Shenzhen University,
China; a master’s degree in Laws majoring in international
economic law, an executive master’s degree in business
administration (with distinction) and a doctoral degree of
juridical science in law from City University of Hong Kong,
and a master’'s degree of in public administration from
Tsinghua University, China. Dr. Chen has been serving in
both private and public sectors with extensive experience
in areas such as public policy, law, strategic research,
executive management, financial investment, corporate
governance and business collaboration. He is a founder
of Darelove Technology Limited, and currently appointed
as chief scientist and legal advisor of Innovation and
Entrepreneurship Center for Hong Kong and Macao Youth
at Shenzhen North Railway Station GEIIIbub 78 & & 8l #
B2, and a director of Travelsky Mobile Technology
Limited, etc.

Dr. Chen was appointed as executive director of Xinhua
United Investment Co., Ltd. (formerly known as Huihuang
Technology (Holdings) Co., Ltd. (stock code: 8159)) from
February 2022 to December 2022.

Dr. Chen is a member of Chinese Association of Hong
Kong & Macao Studies, a council member of Hong Kong
Basic Law and Macau Basic Law Research Association of
China Law Society, an expert mediator of China Council for
the Promotion of International Trade Shenzhen Municipal
Committee, a guest researcher of the Hong Kong and
Macao Basic Law Research Center of Shenzhen University,
off-campus tutor for Master of Laws of Shenzhen University,
visiting professor of Nanning Normal University in Guangxi,
and an expert of the Guangdong Provincial Law Society for
building a Hong Kong and Macao legal talent pool in the
Guangdong-Hong Kong-Macao Greater Bay Area (B3R & %
SREEBAEERERBRABAAE) . He is recognised
by the government of Shenzhen Municipality as Overseas
High-Caliber Personnel (Peacock Plan) of Shenzhen CEI
BINEEBRAA FLEAD)).
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Biographical Details of Directors

Dr. Chen was awarded Ten Outstanding New Hong Kong
Youth Elites in December 2018, a member of the 14th
National People’s Congress Representative Election Meeting
of the HKSAR approved by voting at the 36th meeting of the
Standing Committee of the 13th National People’s Congress
in September 2022. and was awarded the Medal of Honor
by the government of Hong Kong in July 2024.

For public services in Hong Kong, Dr, Chen is serving
as a member of the 5th Hong Kong Election Committee
(Fifth Sector) in August 2021. He is also a panel member
of the Municipal Services Appeals Board under the office
of Chief Secretary for Administration, the vice chairman
of the Yuen Long (Tin Shui Wai South and Ping Ha) Area
Committee, a member of Ad Hoc Committee on Primary
Humanities Curriculum of Education Bureau, and a
member of the Sustainable Fisheries Development Fund
Advisory Committee, etc. Dr. Chen is one of the main
founders of the Hong Kong KOL Project of the Hong Kong
Association of Youth Commentators, the president of the
Hong Kong Longhua Youth Association Limited and the
founding chairman of the Hong Kong Association of Youth
Development.

For public services in Mainland China, Dr. Chen serves as
a consultant to the 13th All-China Youth Federation, to the
12th Standing Committee of the Hunan Provincial Youth
Federation, and to the 13th and 14th Beijing Municipal
Committee of CPPCC (LM B 1) on HKSAR, Macau and
Taiwan, overseas Chinese and foreign friendship affairs.
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Biographical Details of Directors

EFREFS

Mr. Pong Chun Yu, aged 47, has been appointed as
an INED on 22 January 2021. He is also the chairman of
the Audit Committee and Remuneration Committee and
a member of the Nomination Committee. Mr. Pong is an
associate member of The Hong Kong Institute of Directors
and fellow member of Hong Kong Institute Certified of
Public Accountants. Mr. Pong was the financial controller
of Sunny Side Up (Never) Limited, an indirect wholly owned
subsidiary of Sun Entertainment Group Limited (stock
code: 8082) (from December 2016 to November 2018). He
was a financial manager of Television Broadcasts Limited
(a company listed on main board of the Stock Exchange
(stock code: 511)) (from April 2022 to September 2022). Mr.
Pong graduated from the Hong Kong Baptist University in
2000 with a bachelor’s degree in Business Administration
(Accounting). Mr. Pong currently holds 20,352 share options
of the Company.

Mr. Hui Wai Hung, aged 35, has been appointed as an
INED on 16 February 2021. He is a member of each of
the Nomination Committee and Audit Committee and
Remuneration Committee. Mr. Hui obtained a degree of
Bachelor of Commerce in Accounting and Finance from the
University of New South Wales, Sydney, Australia in 2015.
Mr. Hui has experience in retail and food and beverage
sectors over 6 years. Mr. Hui currently holds 20,352 share
options of the Company.
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Corporate Governance Report

The Board is committed to achieving high standards of
corporate governance by emphasising transparency,
independence, accountability, responsibilities and fairness.
The Board strives to ensure that effective self-regulatory
practices exist to protect the interests of the Shareholders
and to enhance long-term shareholders’ value.

CORPORATE GOVERNANCE PRACTICES

The Company endeavors to adopt prevailing best corporate
governance practices and has applied the CG Code. The
Board has reviewed the Company’s corporate governance
practices and has formed the opinion that the Company
throughout the Reporting Period has complied with the CG
Code except for the following deviations.

Pursuant to the newly effective code provision B.3.5 of
the CG Code, which require the Company to appoint at
least one Director of a different gender to the Nomination
Committee. The Company has appointed Mr. Liu Huijing on
28 August 2025 to rectify this deviation.

Pursuant to the code provision C.2.1 of the CG Code, which
stipulates that the roles of chairman and chief executive
officer should be separated and should not be performed by
the same individual. Accordingly, during the period from 1
June 2024 to 29 May 2025 there will be a deviation from the
code provision C.2.1 by the Company and such deviation
was rectified effective on 30 May 2025, with the two roles
being held by Ms. Ma Liangping as Chairman and Ms. Liu
Huijing as CEO respectively.

Pursuant to code provision D.1.2 of the CG Code, the
management of the Company should provide monthly
updates to the Board to enable the Board and each Director
to discharge their duties. However, given that companies
listed on the GEM board are required to prepare quarterly
financial results, and that no material changes in the Group’s
business operation or performance between months have
been noted in the past, the Company considers that
providing quarterly updates to the Board is sufficient for the
Board and each Director to discharge their responsibilities.
In the event there are any significant updates to be provided,
the Company will update the Board as early as practicable
for discussion and resolution.
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Corporate Governance Report
TEERERS

Pursuant to the code provision D.1.3 of the CG Code, the
Auditor has issued a Disclaimer regarding the Company’s
ability to continue as a going concern. The Group has
taken and will continue to take certain Proposed Measures
to improve the Group’s working capital and cash flow
position and mitigate its liquidity pressure. For details of
the Disclaimer and Proposed Measures, please refer to the
section headed “AUDITOR’S DISCLAIMER OF OPINION”
under Management Discussion and Analysis and the section
headed “DISCLAIMER” in this Corporate Governance
Report.

CORPORATE GOVERNANCE STRUCTURE

The Board is primarily responsible for formulating strategies,
monitoring performance and managing risks of the Group.
At the same time, it also has the duty to enhance the
effectiveness of the corporate governance practices of the
Group. Under the Board, there are three board committees,
namely the audit committee, remuneration committee and
nomination committee. All these committees perform their
distinct roles in accordance with their respective terms of
reference (available on the Company’s website) and assist
the Board in supervising certain functions of the senior
management.

DIRECTORS’ SECURITIES TRANSACTIONS

The Group adopted rules 5.48 to 5.67 of the GEM Listing
Rules as its own code of conduct regarding Directors’
securities transactions on terms no less exacting than the
required standard of dealings.

Having made specific enquiries with all the Directors and all
the Directors have confirmed they have complied with the
required standard of dealings under the code of conduct
for Directors’ securities transactions during the Reporting
Period.

BOARD OF DIRECTORS

As at 31 May 2025, the Board of the Company comprises
five Directors as follows:

Executive Directors:

Ms. Ma Liangping (Chairman)
Ms. Liu Huijing (CEO)

INEDs:

Dr. Chen Xiaofeng
Mr. Hui Wai Hung
Mr. Pong Chun Yu
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Corporate Governance Report

Biographical details of the Directors are set out in the
section headed “Biographical Details of Directors” on pages
23 to 26.

The Board has the responsibility of leading the Company.
They are collectively responsible for promoting the success
of the Group by directing and supervising the Group’s
affairs. The Board is accountable to the shareholders of the
Company for the strategic development of the Group with
the goal of maximising long-term shareholder value, while
balancing broader stakeholder interests.

The attendance record of each Director at Board meetings,
Audit Committee meetings, Remuneration Committee
meetings, Nomination Committee meetings and general
meeting for the Reporting Period is set out in the following
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Ms. Ma Liangping ERN%L N/A N/A N/A N/A N/A N/A
(appointed on 30 May 2025) (F2025 %55 30H B Z1F) B REH B B ~ER T~ER
Ms. Liu Huijing HEFELT 77 3/3 N/A N/A N/A 11
TER TER TER
Mr. Wong Chi Yung IEELEE 4/4 11 N/A N/A N/A 11
(resigned on 31 December 2024) (202412531 HEHE) TER TER TER
Ms. Lui Lok Yan B 376 2/2 N/A N/A N/A N/A 11
(retired on 4 October 2024) (20241054 FE(E) TER TER AER AER
INEDs BUHHITEE
Mr. Pong Chun Yu BRFEE 7 3/3 2/2 3/3 4/4 11
Dr. Chen Xiaofeng Bzt 44 2/2 i 11 11 11
(appointed on 22 November 2024) (FRo024511H22HEZHE)
Mr. Hui Wai Hung SRS 7 3/3 2/2 3/3 4/4 11
Mr. Jiang Qiaowei EBRRE 2/2 il 1 01 01 01
(resigned on 21 November 2024) (FRo0245 11521 HET)
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All Directors are provided with details of agenda items
for decisions making with reasonable notice. Directors
have access to the advice and services of the company
secretary who is responsible for ensuring that the Board
procedures are complied with and advising the Board on
compliance matters. Directors are also provided with access
to independent professional advice, where necessary, in
carrying out their obligations as Directors, at the expenses of
the Company. Directors who are considered to have conflict
of interests or material interests in the proposed transactions
or issues to be discussed would not be counted in the
quorum of meeting and would abstain from voting on the
relevant resolutions.

All Directors assume the responsibilities owed to the
shareholders of the Company for the well-being and success
of the Company. They are aware of their duties to act in
good faith and in the best interests of the Company.

The Board is responsible for maintaining proper accounting
records so as to enable the Directors to monitor the
Company’s overall financial position. The Board updates
shareholders on the operations and financial positions
of the Group through quarterly, half yearly and annual
results announcements as well as the publication of timely
announcements on other matters as prescribed by the
relevant rules and regulations.

The Company has three INEDs, at least one of whom has
appropriate financial management expertise, in compliance
with the GEM Listing Rules. Each of the INEDs has made
an annual confirmation of his independence pursuant to rule
5.09 of the GEM Listing Rules. The Company is of the view
that all INEDs meet the independence guidelines as set out
in rule 5.09 of the GEM Listing Rules and are independent in
accordance with the terms of the guidelines.

According to the Articles of Association, any Director
appointed by the Board to fill a casual vacancy or as an
addition to the existing Board shall hold office only until
the first general meeting of the Company after his/her
appointment and be subject to re-election at such meeting.
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APPOINTMENT, RE-ELECTION AND REMOVAL

Each of the executive Directors and INEDs has entered
into a service contract or letter of appointment with the
Company for three years but subject to termination in certain
circumstance as stipulated in the relevant service contracts
or letter of appointment. At each annual general meeting,
one third of the Directors for the time being or, if their
number is not a multiple of three, then the number nearest to
but not less than one third, shall retire from office by rotation
provided that every Director shall be subject to retirement at
an annual general meeting at least once every three years.
Any Director appointed to fill a casual vacancy or as an
addition to the Board shall hold office until the first annual
general meeting of members after his/her appointment and
be eligible for re-election at such meeting.

CORPORATE GOVERNANCE FUNCTION

The Board is responsible for performing corporate
governance duties and has adopted written terms of
reference on its corporate governance functions.

The duties of the Board in respect of the corporate
governance functions include:

(i) developing and reviewing the Company’s policies and
practices on corporate governance;

(if) reviewing and monitoring the training and continuous
professional development of Directors and senior
management;

(iii) reviewing and monitoring the Company’s policies and
practices on compliance with legal and regulatory
requirements;

(iv) developing, reviewing and monitoring the code of
conduct and compliance manual (if any) applicable to
employees and Directors; and

(v) reviewing the Company’s compliance with the CG
Code and disclosure in the Corporate Governance
Report.

Up to the date of this report, the Board has performed the
corporate governance duties in accordance with its terms of
reference.
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BOARD DIVERSITY POLICY

The Board has adopted a board diversity policy setting
out the approach to achieve diversity on the Board. The
Company considered diversity of Board members can be
achieved through consideration of a number of aspects,
including but not limited to gender, age, cultural and
educational background, ethnicity, professional experience,
skills, knowledge and length of service. All Board
appointments will be based on meritocracy, and candidates
will be considered against objective criteria, having due
regard for the benefits of diversity on the Board.

Selection of candidates will be based on a range of
diversity perspectives, including but not limited to gender,
age, cultural and educational background, professional
experience, skills and knowledge. The ultimate decision will
be made upon the merits and contribution that the selected
candidates will bring to the Board.

Based on recommendations from the Nomination
Committee, the Board will set measurable objectives to
implement the board diversity policy and review such
objectives from time to time to ensure their appropriateness
and ascertain the progress made towards achieving those
objectives. The Nomination Committee will review the board
diversity policy, as appropriate, to ensure its continued
effectiveness from time to time.

As at the date of this report, the Board comprises 3 male
Directors and 2 female Directors.

REMUNERATION COMMITTEE

The Remuneration Committee was set up on 14 March
2017 to oversee the remuneration policy and structure for all
Directors and senior management.

Within terms of reference in compliance with code provision
E.1.2 of the CG Code, the primary objectives of the
Remuneration Committee include making recommendations
to the Board on the remuneration policy and structure
of the Directors and the senior management and
determining the remuneration packages of all Directors
and senior management. The Remuneration Committee
is also responsible to ensure that no Director or any of
his associates will participate in deciding his/her own
remuneration, which will be determined by reference to the
performance of the individual and the Company as well as
market practice and conditions.
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As at 31 May 2025, the Remuneration Committee comprises
three INEDs, namely:

Mr. Pong Chun Yu (chairman)
Dr. Chen Xiaofeng
Mr. Hui Wai Hung

Remuneration Policy of the Group

The remuneration policy of the Group is designed to ensure
that remuneration offered to the Directors and/or employees
is appropriate for the respective duties performed,
sufficiently compensate them for the effort and time
dedicated to the affairs of the Group, and is competitive and
effective in attracting, retaining and motivating employees.
The key components of the Company’s remuneration
package include basic salary, and where appropriate, other
allowances, incentive bonus, mandatory provident funds and
Options granted (if any) under the Share Option Scheme.
Details of the Share Option Scheme are set out on pages 82
to 84 of this annual report.

The emoluments payable to Directors are determined with
reference to the responsibilities, qualifications, experience,
duties, performance of the Directors, prevailing market
conditions and remuneration benchmark with directors of
listed companies of similar size and industry nature. They
include incentive bonus primarily based on the results of the
Group and Options granted (if any) under the Share Option
Scheme. The Remuneration Committee performs review
on the emoluments of the Directors from time to time. No
Director, or any of his associates or executive, is involved in
deciding his own emoluments.

Employees’ remuneration packages are determined
with reference to the responsibilities, qualifications and
experience, duties and performance of individuals as well as
prevailing market compensation packages. The packages
are reviewed annually and as required from time to time.
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The Group will spend resources in training, retention
and recruitment programs, and encouraging staff for
self-development and improvements. The Group keeps
monitoring and evaluating the performance of managerial
staff, aiming to achieve continuous improvements and
correction of deficiencies.

The Group believes that direct and effective communication
is essential for the establishment of good relations between
the management and employees. The Group receives
comments and suggestions from employees through internal
networks and the suggestion box, and adopts and analyses
related comments and suggestions, and rewards those
providing recommendations.

Directors’ and the Five Highest Paid Individuals’
Emoluments

The Directors’ fees and remuneration and the emoluments of
the five highest paid individuals during the year are disclosed
in note 10 to the consolidated financial statements of this
annual report.

The contributions to pension scheme of Directors for the
year are disclosed in note 40 to the consolidated financial
statements of this annual report.

NOMINATION COMMITTEE

The Nomination Committee was set up on 14 March
2017 for reviewing the Board composition, making
recommendations to the Board on the appointment
and succession planning of Directors, assessing the
independence of the INEDs, viewing the Board diversity
policy and evaluating the Board’s performance.

In accordance with the Articles of Association, Ms. Ma
Liangping, Ms. Liu Huijing, Mr. Pong Chun Yu and Dr. Chen
Xiaofeng shall retire and being eligible, offer themselves
for re-election at the forthcoming annual general meeting.
No Directors proposed for re-election at the forthcoming
AGM has an unexpired service contract which is not
determinable by the Group within one year without payment
of compensation, other than normal statutory obligations.

34 New Amante Group Limited 3EEEEERAT

FEBRBERERREIN AT 0B RIBES
B UTHBMETERERRAZ - FEBRE
ERKNMEEABNKRER EEERFEN
ERMEFTBZER

FEERRERFUNBEENEEERESZ
BRIRFNBGREREZ -AEFZBARNE
MENBERBUREENER KRS  LHE
FAERMEZETHEMMDN  LHATFTRE
BEALER-

EFERILREHMALTHME

EFNEANEERFMUARDBERSFHMNA
ITRERNMEFBEREFRESHHREM
10 ER o

EENFANEBRESFEIEME BN EFHRR
BB AN 40 IKE -

RBEET

RBEETN2017E38 140 R BT ESE
ENER METESEAESHTHEOES
EREHHEEER I EB Y IERTEETNE L
M BT EEFEREL TERERTFHESS
=R

BEEABEEZME  BEREX T ZANBHER
T ERFEEARREFELARBERRE
FRELRE BERNGERIBRRERE S
BRNEERFREFAG LBESBE2EEME
STUARERARTR —FRRIEMB AT EE
T CAEMERIN 2 RIBRBSHN -



Corporate Governance Report

Nomination Policy

The Board has adopted the following policies for the
nomination of Directors:

Selection Criteria

In assessing and selecting candidates for Directors, the
Nomination Committee shall consider the following non-
exhaustive list of factors:

° the candidate’s character and integrity, professional
skills and experience;

o the potential contributions that a candidate can bring
to the Board in terms of diversity of gender, age,
culture and educational background etc.;

° whether the candidate meets the required
independence criteria as set out in the GEM Listing
Rules;

° whether the candidate is willing and able to devote
sufficient time to fulfill the duties of being a Director;
and

° such other perspectives appropriate to the

Company'’s business.

Nomination Procedures

The evaluation, recommendation, nomination, selection and
appointment or re-appointment of each proposed Director
shall be assessed and considered by the Nomination
Committee and the Board against the Selection Criteria and
the Board diversity policy.

In the context of appointment of any proposed candidate
to the Board, after the Nomination Committee receives the
proposal to appoint a new Director or the nomination from
a shareholder, the Nomination Committee shall evaluate
the candidate’s eligibility to serve as a Director based on
the above criteria in combination with his or her personal
profile. If multiple candidates are involved, the Nomination
Committee shall prioritise them according to the Company’s
needs and candidates’ respective qualification.

EEELARS

RBEEE
EFEUHEMTIEFRABR

HEEER
EFEARREREAETESTR RLEES
BERTIRERE LIFBEES)

. FREANEBRERE FERERK
B ;

. REAEUEN FR -XTETREABER
FZRCTENAESTEHRNEER
RS

. RENBS W EBINGEM E ™ R FR
REIMRE

. REARTBREREARACHKEE
TEREFHNRE &

. BRAREAARXEGHNAERAEMASE-

R
SLBEEENTE BE B4 HERS
IR EHEIEEEAEEERESTRER
EREREEERE S TR EREE -

AEEFELZEEAERZEEAMS > NIES
ZECREZAMESTNERURRESLR
RRPZEEREN LARET —HEBEARE
BUFEREARTEERETIESR -HES
BIEREN RLAZEEGRBREARTHEFRK
REANEBERIFIRENBRERT

35

2025 ANNUAL REPORT £



Corporate Governance Report
TEERERS

In the case of the re-appointment of a Director at the
forthcoming annual general meeting of the Company, the
Nomination Committee shall review the overall contribution
of the Directors and their services, their participation and
performance within the Board and whether such Director still
meets the above selection criteria.

As at 31 May 2025, the Nomination Committee comprises
three INEDs and one Executive Director namely:

Dr. Chen Xiaofeng (chairman)

Mr. Hui Wai Hung

Mr. Pong Chun Yu

Ms. Liu Huijing (appointed on 28 August 2025)

AUDIT COMMITTEE

The Audit Committee was set up on 14 March 2017 with
written terms of reference in compliance with Code Provision
D.3.3 of the CG Code that set out the authorities and duties
of the Audit Committee. The Audit Committee performs,
amongst others, the following functions:

° Review financial information of the Group

° Review relationship with and terms of appointment of
the external auditor

° Review the Company’s financial reporting system,
internal control system and risk management system.

The Audit Committee oversees the internal control system of
the Group, reports to the Board on any material issues and
makes recommendations to the Board.

As at 31 May 2025, the Audit Committee comprises three
INEDs, namely:

Mr. Pong Chun Yu (chairman)
Dr. Chen Xiaofeng
Mr. Hui Wai Hung
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The chairman of the Audit Committee possesses the
appropriate professional qualifications or accounting
or related financial management expertise. None of the
members of the Audit Committee is a former partner of the
Company'’s existing external auditor.

During the Reporting Period, the Audit Committee has
held meetings with the Company’s auditor and/or the
management of the Company to discuss the auditing, risk
management, internal control systems, the effectiveness of
the internal audit function and financial reporting matters of
the Group. The Audit Committee has reviewed the Group’s
consolidated financial statements for the year ended
31 May 2025 and the interim financial report for the six
months ended 30 November 2024, including the accounting
principles and practice adopted by the Group.

DIVIDEND POLICY

The Company has adopted a dividend policy that aims
to provide guidelines for the Board to determine whether
dividends are to be declared and paid to the Shareholders
and the level of dividend to be paid. Under the dividend
policy, in deciding whether to propose a dividend and in
determining the dividend amount, the Board shall take into
account, among others,

° the Group’s actual and expected financial
performance;
° the Group’s expected working capital requirements,

capital expenditure requirements and future
expansion plans;

° retained earnings and distributable reserves of the
Company and each member of the Group;

o the Group’s liquidity position;

° the general economic conditions and other internal
or external factors that may have an impact on the
business or financial performance and position of the

Group; and

° any other factors that the Board deems appropriate.
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The declaration and payment of dividends by the Company
shall remain to be determined at the sole discretion of the
Board and is also subject to any restrictions under the
Companies Law of the Cayman Islands, the GEM Listing
Rules, the laws of Hong Kong and the Company’s articles of
associations and any other applicable laws and regulations.
The Company does not have any pre-determined dividend
distribution ratio. The Company’s dividend distribution
record in the past may not be used as a reference or basis
to determine the level of dividends that may be declared or
paid by the Company in the future.

The Company will continually review the Dividend Policy
and reserves the right in its sole and absolute discretion
to update, amend and/or modify the dividend policy at any
time, and the dividend policy shall in no way constitute a
legally binding commitment by the Company that dividends
will be paid in any particular amount and/or in no way
obligate the Company to declare a dividend at any time or
from time to time.

INTERNAL CONTROLS AND RISK MANAGEMENT

The Board and the Audit Committee acknowledge their-
responsible for maintaining sound and effective internal
control systems in order to safeguard the Group’s assets
and Shareholders’ interests, and review and monitor the
effectiveness of the Company’s internal control and risk
management systems annually so as to ensure that internal
control and risk management systems in place are adequate.
The Company also has a process for identifying, evaluating
and managing the significant risks to the achievement of
its operational objective. The risk management and internal
control systems are designed to manage rather than
eliminate the risk of failure to achieve business objective,
and can only provide reasonable but not absolute assurance
against material misstatement or loss. This process is
subject to continuous improvement up to the date of this
annual report. The day-to-day operation is entrusted to
each individual department, which is accountable for its own
conduct and performance, and is required to strictly adhere
to the policies set by the Board. The Company carries out
reviews on the effectiveness of the internal control systems
from time to time in order to ensure that they are able to
meet and deal with the dynamic and ever-changing business
environment.
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The Directors have reviewed the need for an internal audit
function and are of the view that in light of the size, nature
and complexity of the business of the Group, it would be
more cost effective not to appoint external independent
professionals to perform internal audit function for the
Group. Currently, the financial controller of the Company
oversees such a function. The Company has engaged an
Internal Control Consultant to conduct independent review
on the internal control systems of the Group. Internal control
review report was submitted to and approved by the Board
and the Audit Committee. For the principal risks faced
by the Group, the Management has developed ongoing
mitigating measures to manage such risks. For control
weaknesses identified by the Internal Control Consultant,
the Group has adopted enhanced control measures to
rectify relevant control weaknesses. The abovementioned
annual review covered material controls, including financial,
operational and compliance controls and risk management
functions of the Group. The Board considered that the risk
management and internal control systems of the Group were
effective during the Reporting Period. The improvement
of the systems of risk management and internal control is
an ongoing process and the Board maintains a continuing
commitment to strengthen the Group’s environment control
and processes.

The Board and the Audit Committee have conducted an
annual review and considered that the internal control and
risk management systems is effective and adequate, and in
compliance with the code provisions as set out in the CG
Code, and that there are adequate resources, qualifications
and experience, training and budget of the accounting,
internal audit and financial reporting functions.

ACCOUNTABILITY AND AUDIT

The Directors acknowledge their responsibility for preparing
the annual consolidated financial statements of the Group
which give a true and fair view of the state of affairs, results
and cash flows of the Group for the Reporting Period.
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The Board is responsible for presenting a balanced, clear
and understandable assessment of annual and interim
reports, inside information announcements and other
disclosures required under the GEM Listing Rules and other
statutory and regulatory requirements.

The Management has provided to the Board such
explanation and information as are necessary to enable the
Board to carry out an informed assessment of the Group’s
consolidated financial statements which are put to the Board
for approval.

The Directors were aware that the Group incurred a net
loss of HK$3,822,000 and maintained its cash and cash
equivalents of HK$1,549,000 at the 31 May 2025. In
addition, the night club operated by the Group ceased
operations since 4 August 2024 due to the expiration of
the lease and the Group disposal of a cigar shop in 30
April 2025, the Group recorded a significant decline in
revenue by approximately 56.5%. These conditions indicate
the existence of a material uncertainty which may cast
significant doubt about the Group’s ability to continue as a
going concern.

Notwithstanding the above conditions, the financial
statements were prepared based on the assumption that the
Group can be operated as a going concern.

DISCLAIMER

Pursuant to the code provision D.1.3 of the CG Code, the
Board would like to provide more details on the Disclaimer
regarding the Company’s ability to continue as a going
concern.

As mentioned in the section headed “AUDITOR’S
DISCLAIMER OF OPINION” under Management Discussion
and Analysis, the Auditor has issued a disclaimer of opinion
on the Group’s consolidated financial statements for the
Reporting Period, which arising solely from going concern
issue of the Group.
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The net loss for the Reporting Period was primarily due to
the cessation of operation of our night club business upon
lease expiration, which had previously contributed a high
profit margin for the Group over the past years.

The management of the Group is optimistic and confident
that the Company has sufficient working capital for the next
18 months because the following Proposed Measures as
mentioned in the MD&A have been and/or will be taken to
improve its liquidity and financial position:

(i) in August 2025, the Group entered into a loan facility
agreement with a shareholder for an amount of
HK$20,000,000 for 24 months. The Group will utilise
this facility to support its liquidity needs;

(ii) From June to August 2025, the Group received
financial support amounting to approximately
HK$2,400,000 in aggregate from a director of the
Company; and

(iii) the Directors will strengthen to implement measures
aiming at improving the working capital and cash
flows of the Group, including closely monitoring the
general administrative expenses and operating costs.

Regarding the basis for Disclaimer in the Auditor’s Report
concerning the appropriateness of the assumption regarding
the Company’s ability to continue as a going concern, the
management of the Group have prepared an 18-month cash
flow forecast and certain proposed measures. Additionally,
the Group has implemented certain strategic initiatives and
operational adjustments to improve the Group’s liquidity and
financial position aiming to explore new opportunities and
business models in the future food and beverage sector
across multiple regions, while ensuring alignment with the
Group’s existing businesses. The Company remains focused
on optimising resource allocation, improving profitability, and
addressing the Company’s going concern issue challenges.
Furthermore, the Group will maintain strict cost-control
measures, closely monitoring and reducing operational
and administrative costs and expenses to minimise cash
outflows.
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Existing Businesses Operational Adjustments

The Company is actively monitoring the performance of its
existing establishments in Hong Kong, including:

1. Wanchai Amante Shop was disposed at the end of
April 2025 to focus resources on more profitable
ventures due to underperformance and minimal
financial contribution over the past year.

2. The Company is exploring relocation of Amante
House to a more cost-effective premises nearby to
reduce overhead costs.

&) The Company is closely monitoring the operations
of LKF Lounge and may introduce new products to
diversify its offerings and enhance customer appeal.
The Company will adjust its strategy and pace based
on actual performance.

Possible Expansion into Mainland China

In addition to the operational adjustments in Hong Kong,
the Company has identified several potential investment
opportunities to expand into mainland China. These
initiatives align with the Group’s core business segments,
including clubs, entertainment, restaurants, catering
services, and cigar and liquor operations. The expansion
strategy also includes upstream and downstream
operations, such as: sourcing and purchasing food and
beverage products directly from suppliers, as well as
distributing and retailing these products through the Group’s
existing and future establishments.
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New Business Initiatives:

1.

Bottled Water Supply Business: the Company has
officially started its bottled water supply business in
China at the end of March 2025 targeting both in-
store customers and other retail consumers at chain
stores or online platforms. This venture complements
the Group’s existing operations including LKF Lounge
and Amante House, as well as upcoming restaurants
and/or bars in mainland China and Hong Kong as in
our business plan.

Product is undergoing refinements in packaging,
marketing strategies, and distribution plans, with
potential launch in Hong Kong targeting both in-store
customers and retail customers at chain convenience
stores or online platforms.

Sparkling Wine and Liquors Business: the Company
is still examining the possibility collaboration with
a China-based wine supplier to introduce a unique
range of sparkling wine and health liqueur products.
However, no final decision has been made as the
Group is conducting thorough evaluations of risk,
return, cost and benefit. Should the Group proceed
with this venture, it will ensure alignment with its
existing operations and demonstrate value-added to
the business.

Reopening Restaurants Business: one of the Group’s
subsidiaries has executed a share transfer agreement
with the shareholders of a Chengdu-based restaurant
and bar, completing the acquisition of a 51% stake
in July 2025. In August 2025, the Group entered into
another agreement to acquire the remaining 49%
equity interest. The transaction was completed in
August 2025.

The Group is also exploring the possibility of
developing tea beverages and related businesses,
including plans to open integrated tea experience
stores in selected high-end tourist destinations across
mainland China, combining premium tea services,
modern retail, and cultural immersion to expand its
food and beverage and restaurant segment in the
region. The final business structure and scale will be
determined based on the trial’s performance and the
interests of the Company and Shareholder.

The Group has also recently started initial work on its
existing liquors business in China.

Meanwhile, the Company is also considering
reopening a restaurant or night bar in Hong Kong,
depending on availability of a suitable place with
favourable rental term.
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The Audit Committee had critically reviewed the Disclaimer,
the position of the management of the Group concerning
the Disclaimer and the Proposed Measures taken by the
Group for addressing the Disclaimer. The Audit Committee
agreed with the position of the management of the Group
based on the reasons as stated herein. Moreover, the Audit
Committee requested the management of the Group to
take all necessary actions to address the impact of the
Disclaimer and to strive that such situation leading to the
Disclaimer would not happen or be improved in the coming
future. The Audit Committee had also discussed with
the Auditor regarding the financial position of the Group,
Proposed Measures taken and to be taken by the Group,
and considered the Auditor’s rationale and understood their
consideration in arriving their opinion.

The Board is of the view that that the Proposed Measures
are feasible and should be sufficient to address the
Disclaimer. Taking into account that if the Group is able to
improve the Group’s working capital, cash flow and financial
position in next financial year, and assuming there are no
other material adverse effects that will cause the Auditor to
issue other disclaimer(s) of opinion, the Board expects that
the Disclaimer may be removed in the next year’s auditor’s
report, or at least the financial position will be improved. The
Auditor also holds the same view and basis in this regard.

The annual results of the Group for the Reporting Period
have also been reviewed by the Audit Committee.

ENVIRONMENTAL, SOCIAL AND GOVERNANCE

The Board is responsible for effective governance and
oversight of the environmental, social and governance
matters, as well as assessment and management of material
environmental and social risks. The ESG Report is prepared
in accordance with the ESG Reporting Guide, and which is
set out in pages 50 to 75 of this annual report.

HANDLING AND DISSEMINATION OF INSIDE
INFORMATION

The Company discloses information in compliance with
the GEM Listing Rules, and publishes periodic reports and
announcements to the public in accordance with the relevant
laws and regulations. The primary focus of the Company
is to ensure information disclosure is timely, fair, accurate,
truthful and complete, thereby enabling shareholders,
investors as well as the public to make rational and informed
decisions.
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The Group has put in place the procedures and internal
controls for the handling and dissemination of inside
information. The Group discloses inside information to
the public as soon as reasonably practicable unless the
information falls within any of the safe harbours as stated
in the SFO. Before the information is fully disclosed to the
public, the Group ensures the information is kept strictly
confidential. If the Group believes that the necessary
degree of confidentiality cannot be maintained or that
confidentiality may have been breached, the Group would
immediately disclose the information to the public. The
Group is committed to ensure that information contained in
announcements or circulars are not false or misleading as to
a material fact, or false or misleading through the omission
of a material fact in view of presenting information in a clear
and balanced way, which requires equal disclosure of both
positive and negative facts.

COMPANY SECRETARY

The Company Secretary is responsible for ensuring
that Board procedures are followed and facilitating
communications among Directors as well as with
shareholders and management.

Ms. Sun Shui was appointed as the Company Secretary on
16 February 2021 and is responsible for overseeing all the
company secretarial matters of the Group.

Ms. Sun confirmed that, she has taken not less than 15
hours of relevant professional training.

EXTERNAL AUDITOR AND AUDITOR’S
REMUNERATION

The statement of the external auditor of the Company on
their reporting responsibilities and opinion on the Group’s
financial statements for the Reporting Period is set out in
the section headed “Independent Auditor’s Report” in this
annual report.

The Audit Committee is responsible for considering the
appointment of the external auditor and reviewing any non-
audit functions performed by the external auditor, including
whether such non-audit functions could lead to any potential
material adverse effect on the Company.
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The fees paid/payable to BDO Limited in respect of the audit
services and non-audit services for the Reporting Period are
set out as follows:

RESHBEN BN FEBILGEERGTH
EBFMAERARNERBERRST RIFEZRBHN
ER#INWT

Fee paid/payable

Bt FENER

HK$’000

FET

Audit services BEZRTE 600
Total “Ect 600

INDUCTION AND CONTINUING PROFESSIONAL
DEVELOPMENT

Pursuant to the newly effective code provision C.1.1
of the CG Code, newly appointed Director(s) should
receive a comprehensive, formal and tailored induction
on appointment and all Directors should participate in a
programme of continuous professional development (the
“CPD”) to develop and refresh their knowledge and skills
and to ensure that their contribution to the Board remains
informed and relevant.

During the Reporting Period, except for Ms. Ma Liangping
who was appointed on 30 May 2025 and cannot participate
in CPD but only induction, all existing Directors have
participated in the CPD and/or induction and the relevant
details are set out below:

Name of Directors

ABKRGEEXER

BEMEMNEEERATRNTRMHXS
CAIfF MEEMNEFTHRERZAERER
EECEXARFHEMKRMOMERN U R EEE
EXR2UEFEERYERE ((FEFEER R
12 0 DU R e BB I 3 2 R R Re B AE 0 1 T B
RHEBTEGEZEEMRYGHAEZBERT
HEZZFHER

REREHAR > BRX2025F5 830 BHEMNE
RY¥XITHEISHEFBESTXLRMES AT
AN 2RBEAEFHUESUFBEEIXER
K/ SRR BRAFEHINT ¢

CPD Participation
and/or Induction

(note)
EENlS BHEEELERE
K/ St EAEH
(Htzt)
Yes/No
=/ &
Executive Directors HITEE
Ms. Ma Liangping @ (appointed on 30 May 2025) &R % 1@ (A2025558300 E &) Yes 2
Ms. Liu Huijing ABFERL Yes &
Mr. Wong Chi Yung (resigned on TEBLE (R2024F12831HEHE) Yes &
31 December 2024)
Ms. Lui Lok Yan (retired on 4 October 2024) E®L T (R2024FE1084H E 1) Yes @
INEDs BUFNTEF
Mr. Pong Chun Yu BiRFRE Yes 2
Dr. Chen Xiaofeng ® (appointed on BB 21810 (R2024FE 11 B22 A ERF) Yes 2
22 November 2024)
Mr. Hui Wai Hung SRAETESTAE Yes &
Mr. Jiang Qiaowei (resigned on 21 November 2024) & F £ (172024511821 H B T) Yes &
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note (1): Participation in CPD includes attending seminars, reading relevant
materials in relation to the business of the Group, directors’ duties,
latest development of the GEM Listing Rules and other applicable
regulatory requirements.

note (2): Including an induction provided to her by the Company prior to her
appointment and, on 29 May 2025, a legal advice was provided to
her by an external lawyer on the provisions of the GEM Listing Rules
applicable to her as a Director and the possible consequences of
making false declarations or giving false information to the Stock
Exchange, and she confirmed that she understood her obligations as
Director.

note (3): Including an induction provided to him by the Company prior to
his appointment and, on 29 November 2024, a legal advice was
provided to him by an external lawyer on the provisions of the
GEM Listing Rules applicable to him as a Director and the possible
consequences of making false declarations or giving false information
to the Stock Exchange, and he confirmed that he understood his
obligations as Director.

CONSTITUTIONAL DOCUMENT

A special resolution was passed at the AGM held on
14 November 2022 to amend the memorandum and articles
of association of the Company and adopt the new M&A
to reflect the changes of the relevant laws of the Cayman
Islands and the GEM Listing Rules and other consequential
and housekeeping changes. A consolidated version of the
Company’s constitutional documents is available on the
Company’s website and the website of the Stock Exchange.

COMMUNICATIONS WITH SHAREHOLDERS AND
INVESTORS

The Company believes that maintaining a high level of
transparency is a key to enhance investor relations. It is
committed to a policy of open and timely disclosure of
corporate information to its shareholders and investment
public.
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The Company updates the Shareholders on its latest
business developments and financial performance through
its annual, interim and quarterly reports. The corporate
website of the Company (www.new-amante.com) has
provided an effective communication platform to the public
and the shareholders.

SHAREHOLDER COMMUNICATION

The objective of shareholder communication is to
provide the Shareholders with detailed information about
the Company so that they can exercise their rights as
shareholders in an informed manner.

The Company uses a range of communication tools to
ensure the Shareholders are kept well informed of key
business imperatives. These include annual general meeting,
annual report, various notices, announcements and circulars.
The annual general meeting and other general meetings
of the Company are primary forums for communication
between the Company and its shareholders. The Company
provides shareholders with relevant information on the
resolution(s) proposed at general meetings in a timely
manner in accordance with the GEM Listing Rules. The
information provided is reasonably necessary to enable
shareholders to make an informed decision on the proposed
resolution(s).

PROCEDURES FOR SHAREHOLDER TO
CONVINCE AN EXTRAORDINARY GENERAL
MEETING

There are no provisions allowing shareholders to propose
new resolutions at the general meetings under the Cayman
Islands Companies Act. However, Shareholders are
requested to follow article 64 of the Articles of Association
which provides that extraordinary general meetings should
be convened on the requisition of one or more Shareholders
holding, at the date of deposit of the requisition, not less
than 10% of the voting rights (on a one vote per share basis)
in the issued share capital of the Company. Such requisition
shall be made in writing to the Board or the company
secretary of the Company for the purpose of requiring an
extraordinary general meeting to be called by the Board for
the transaction of any business specified in such requisition.
Such meeting shall be held within 2 months after the deposit
of such requisition. If the Board fails to proceed to convene
an extraordinary general meeting within 21 days of the
deposit of the requisition, the requisitionist(s) may convene
an extraordinary general meeting himself/themselves, and
all reasonable expenses incurred by the requisitionist(s) as a
result of the failure of the Board shall be reimbursed to the
requisitionist(s) by the Company.

48

New Amante Group Limited ¥ EEEEARAE

KRB ERHEHFE -FARTEREORESE
HEFERUERKRYBERE KATDEFHIL
(www.new-amante.com) 2 A % & & 12 it

BN RER

BiQRBRE
HRREBSENRREHEARATINFMEE
o UEREENBRBR TITEESRRE
e

ARBRA—RIBEBRBEUBRRRRNE
FREZ AR - AHBERECERRBERXR
T FR BEBET AERBR-FRFARE
BEAREREMBRRAEREAATNHAERRE
BONETEFE - AQARRBGEMETRR > K
RARREHEEINRREAE LIRENRERED
HEER -FARENENBSELE  UER
REHRENRBZEZFHANBRE -

RRABFARKRREINAENER

HENEADZIEATRENRKEEAE LI
EMABENBRX A BREBEREMAKE
ZAA 64 ERTERERFIAEAIH—%
FULEREERBR EZERERIEHEX
EHAFRBARABEETRAFRDIK10%H
KERE USKRMD—ZE%E) cBRAEREBU
EAFAMEZEEGHA LR LRBAWERT U
MEERHERMIEENEIANEEERESE
BHREREFN ARG - ERAERERNREREHAE
KEMBEBANBRT - HMESERRERXEBMEAEX
BOIBAUABHARERIAE 2 AATE
THRRKRERNAE FMEREESREDHN
BREFNAEMEESFAEENSERIER
KABIAE2EBAERT -



Corporate Governance Report

PROCEDURES FOR SHAREHOLDER TO PROPOSE
PERSON FOR ELECTION AS A DIRECTOR

The provisions for a Shareholder to propose a person
for election as a Director of the Company are laid down
in article 113 of the Articles of Association. No person,
other than a retiring Director, shall, unless recommended
by the Board for election, be eligible for election to the
office of Director at any general meeting, unless notice in
writing of the intention to propose that person for election
as a Director and notice in writing by that person of his
willingness to be elected shall have been lodged at the
principal office of the Company or at the Hong Kong Branch
Share Registrar. The period for lodgment of the notices
required under the Articles of Association will commence no
earlier than the day after the despatch of the notice of the
general meeting appointed for such election and end no later
than 7 days prior to the date of such general meeting and
the minimum length of the period during which such notices
to the Company may be given will be at least 7 days.

PROCEDURES FOR SENDING ENQUIRIES TO THE
BOARD

Shareholders may send written enquiries to the
Company, for the attention of compliance officer, by
email: info@new-amante.com, or mail to 25/F., China
Huarong Tower, 60 Gloucester Road, Wanchai, Hong Kong.
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ABOUT THIS REPORT

The Group regards corporate social responsibilities as
one of the core values of its business operations for
sustainable development. The Group persistently strives to
operate its business in an economic, environmentally, and
socially sustainable manner. The Group is keenly aware of
the importance of balancing its business needs with the
stewardship of the natural environment, the need to meet
market demand for resources, and the need to achieve a
harmonious development of society.

The Company presents this environmental, social and
governance report for the year ended 31 May 2025, in
accordance with the “ESG Reporting Guide” as set out
in Appendix C2 to GEM Listing Rules and based on the
material aspects of the Group and stakeholders.

The ESG Report has complied with the “comply or explain”
provisions set out in the “ESG Reporting Guide” under
Appendix C2 to the GEM Listing Rules. The Group values
your feedback regarding the review and the Group’s overall
sustainability practices. Please provide your comments by
email to info@new-amante.com.

This ESG Report serves to provide details of the Company’s
ESG policies and initiatives of its major operating segment in
Hong Kong, which is principally engaged in the operation of
club, entertainment and restaurant business.

The Board has the overall responsibility for the Company’s
ESG strategy and reporting, monitoring and managing
the ESG related risks. The management is responsible for
evaluating effectiveness of the ESG risk management and
internal control systems and the management confirms that
these systems are effective to mitigate the Group’s ESG
related risks. Assessment of ESG status and progress are
conducted on an ongoing basis. To understand the concerns
of various stakeholders, the Company has engaged and
discussed with various business functions and management
personnel, and identified the following material aspects and
has managed them strictly in accordance with the Group’s
policies and guidelines and in compliance with the relevant
legal and regulatory standards.
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During the Reporting Period, to the best knowledge,
information and belief of the Directors after having made all
reasonable enquiries, no member of the Group had been
involved in any material breach, or non-compliance, with
any applicable environmental laws or regulations, or laws or
regulations relating to employment, employee’s health and
safety, labour standards, product and service responsibility
or corruption that had a significant impact on the Company
or the Group.

GOVERNANCE STRUCTURE
Board’s oversight of ESG issues

The Board has a primary role in directing and overseeing
sustainability initiatives to ensure the effectiveness and
relevance in light of the evolving sustainability landscape.
The Board is committed to incorporating ESG mindset into
the Group’s business operations and responsible for the
long-term sustainability of the Group, including formulating
strategies and overseeing the Group’s ESG related risks
and opportunities. The Board considers ESG-related risks
and opportunities as part of the Company’s overall strategic
formulation.

The Board has delegated the power of sustainability
strategies development and policies implementation to the
management. The management is responsible for executing
projects, evaluating results, monitoring potential risks and
reporting on performance.

ESG management approach and strategy for material
ESG-related issues

To better understand the opinions and expectations of
different stakeholders on the ESG issues, materiality
assessment is conducted annually. The Group ensures
various platforms and channels of communication are used
to reach, listen and respond to its key stakeholders. Through
communication with the stakeholders, the Group is able to
understand their expectations and concerns. The feedbacks
obtained allow the Group to make more informed decisions,
and to better assess and manage the impacts of the
business decisions.

The Group has evaluated the materiality for each of the ESG
aspects through the following steps: (i) identification of ESG
issues by the Group; (i) key ESG areas prioritisation with
stakeholder engagement; and (iii) validation and determining
material ESG issues based on the results of communication
with the stakeholders.
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Taking these steps enhances the understanding of the
expectations and concerns of the Group’s stakeholders on
various ESG issues, which enable the Board to plan the
sustainable development direction to address material ESG-
related issues in the future.

Progress review made against ESG-related goals and
targets

ESG-related goals and targets have been set to provide a
strategic direction for all operations, the progress is closely
reviewed by the Company from time to time. Modification
may be needed if the progress falls short of expectation and/
or change of business operations.

The Group’s sustainability target enables the Company
to develop a realistic roadmap and focus on results of
achieving the visions. The sustainability performance and
progress made against the goals are reported annually to the
Board for review at least annually.

REPORTING PRINCIPLES

This ESG Report is based on the following four reporting
principles:

Materiality: Stakeholder engagement and materiality
assessment were conducted regularly to identify material
ESG issues, and to ensure that these issues are addressed
in the report.

Quantitative: Data presented in this report have been
collected prudently. Please refer to the environmental and
social performance data for standards and methodologies
used for calculation of key performance indicators.

Balance: An unbiased and balanced picture of the
performance has been disclosed in a transparent manner.

Consistency: Unless otherwise stated, the disclosures, data
collection and calculation methods have remained consistent
throughout the years to facilitate comparability over time.

REPORTING BOUNDARIES

This ESG Report covers the Group’s business operation
of clubhouse, entertainment and restaurant in Hong Kong
and has primarily highlighted the major performance and
disclosure for the four environmental aspects and eight
social aspects in the Reporting Period.
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STAKEHOLDER ENGAGEMENT

Stakeholder engagement plays a core role in the
sustainability of the Group. The Group fully appreciates
the needs to build both online and offine communication
channels and to provide stakeholders with timely reports
on strategic planning and performance of the Group in
order to establish a continuing communication mechanism
with the stakeholders. In addition, the Group consults the
stakeholders on their recommendations and propositions
to ensure its business practices can meet the expectations
of the stakeholders. Through regular engagement with key
stakeholders, the Group is able to identify major concerns
and proceed to formulating a response.

The stakeholders include the shareholders, government and
regulatory bodies, employees, customers, suppliers, society
and the public. The Group discusses with the stakeholders
through various channels about their expectations and
relevant feedback of the Group as below:

Stakeholders Expectations

ESG Report
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FinESH
FOENZ2EEFAEENAREERTES
EEB-AEERATHRATERIR LR
BMTHBERE IARMNEERREHBERLE
EERBEIRREHRS WERAFHER
URFBEBEG I REBEMFMNEN
BEkEREMMES URFREEBEEL
EIRFOHENRE - BBIEFMHENEHRS
BoXEEEHHITIEHNELEFHES

A

FOHEEERR BHNEEEKE BE - &
P-HEB HEARRATR - AEEEZBEEER
BRFMHESNRMMANERE > MAEBEIER
REEWMT :

Communication and response

FinE HZ &8 K ol FE
Shareholders e Financial results e Improving profitability
f% 2R CUE e Re&NEEN
e ESG performance e Monitoring use of resources
RE-HEREBREN BERERER
e (Corporate transparency e Regular information disclosures
TEFERE EHIE BIRE
e Sound risk control e Optimising risk management and
B2 R R B IE internal control
BIEREEERAEPEEIE
Government and e Compliance with laws and regulations e Compliance operation
regulatory bodies BTEREER BRAKE
B 1T 582 B 5 1% e Tax payment in accordance with laws e Tax payment in full and on time
KL B R BB
e Compliance with environmental e Compliance of environmental policies
regulations BTIRIBHBE
ETIRIBER
Employees e Career development platform e Promotion mechanism
=] BEZERERTS BH
e Salary and benefits e Competitive salary and employee
i sz rm A benefits

e Safe working environment
Z2 TFIRIE

BHRFNFHNRETEF

e Providing trainings for employees and
strengthen their safety awareness
REESEINIRMNEEZEEH
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Stakeholders Expectations

BinE HAZE
Customers e Product (food and beverage) and
g service quality
Ef (B RIRBEXR
e Customer rights and interests
protection
REEXF#ER
Suppliers e Business ethics and credibility
HEER mEEERES
e Integrity cooperation
FEE1F

Society and the public
HERAR

Environmental protection
IRIBIRE
e Employment opportunities

MERT

MATERIALITY ASSESSMENT

During the Reporting Period, the Group conducted a
comprehensive materiality assessment, which involved
interviews and surveys with internal and external
stakeholders to identify “material issues” and reflect the
environment, social and operational issues which have the
most significant impacts on the Company’s business and the
relevant issues which are of concern to the stakeholders.

With reference to the scope of disclosure as required
under the ESG Reporting Guide, as well as taking into
consideration its business features, the Group has identified
and determined 24 issues covering greenhouse gas
(“GHG”) emission, energy consumption, employee welfare,
occupational health and safety, training and development,
supply chain management, customer privacy, anti-
corruption, and community investment with respect to its
business operation.

54 New Amante Group Limited HEEEEERAT

Communication and response

B8 R O] fE

e Monitoring customers’ satisfaction level
through enquiry, questionnaire and
social media platforms
NEH BERMXEBTEERER
R E

e Complaint handling mechanism

iz 1 9% o 1% )

e Performing the contracts according to
law
KEBX

e Building a responsible supply chain
BB EERHERE

e Putting into use environmental
protection and energy saving equipment
FRRRAEERE

e Providing employment opportunities

Rt EXS

BEEMTE
RBRSHAB ~EBETE2ENEEZMTG
BRI R RERNE R IR EETHRE
LRI TE KRR R R AR B EHRFH
ERINEEEEAEATENRRE TR

E RS o

KE2ERB - HERERKRSIESIFMRENR
EREUAEEREEBRM A&EEEHRH
EBREHRET4REE BERBERE
(FRERRE) BER - BEREFE - EERF B
FeErkze - BillkER -HEREEE T
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The Group’s materiality matrix of

ESG issues in the

ESG Report

RIF- B RERRS

BEHMBAERRE HERELFTENESR

Reporting Period: 4 AB P
HIGHEST
85
10 | s,
i High Priority

5 : BBk
2 s
L b
3 5 16 22 19 21
<8 47 13
5 B 6 >
of 1 391
O ¢ 10 6 2.5 A2 S
R o (o) (-]
5% 11 7 4

Fin 12

Sig 4 o’
ok 23
z
< 3
o
(@)
o
s 2

.

0

0 1 2 ) 4 {5) 6 7 8 9 10
IMPORTANCE OF TOPIC TO BUSINESS HIGHEST
RENEENEDY BS

© ENVIRONMENTAL ISSUES IRIEEH

Environmental issues
RESE

1.

2.

Greenhouse gas emissions
BERBEBEW

Energy consumption and
resource management
SERHERERERE
Water resources management
KEREIE

Waste management
BEEYEIE

Use of packaging materials
BEMEHER

Impact on the environment
HIRBENT 2

Climate change

FIREIL

Social issues
HEEE

8.

9.

10.

11.

12.

13.

14.

15.

Community contribution
HeER

Occupational health and
safety

BERREZS

Child labour

BT

Forced and compulsory
labour

9838 K sl 55 T
Development and training
FRE KR

Salaries and employee
benefits

e RESET
Diversity and equal
opportunity

Ltk TEHRE
Talent attraction and retention

AR Rt BN A

SOCIAL ISSUES ##&%=H  © OPERATION ISSUES & EE

Operation issues

REHEH

16. Anti-corruption
R&5

17. Supply chain management
HEEEE

18. Supplier evaluation and
selection
SRR

19. Customer service and
satisfaction
BERRBRWEE

20. Customer privacy
ERIE

21. Feedback and complaint
handling
[ & R 3% & B 18

22. Product safety and quality
EmZekmE

23. Intellectual property protection
RN 8 EERE AR 5B

24. Marketing and labelling

EIHRIRE

99
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ENVIRONMENTAL

During the Reporting Period, the Group measured and
managed its environmental performance in several aspects
throughout its operations.

Emissions

The Group is principally engaged in the operation of
clubhouse, entertainment and restaurant in Hong Kong.
Throughout the operating process, the relevant emission
includes noise emission, light emission, air emission and
GHG emission.

i)

ii)

56

Light Emission

The light emissions should not and do not cause any
disturbance to the public since all the featured events
are conducted inside the Group’s club. To minimise
light emission, the Group has complied with all the
relevant laws, ordinances, rules and regulations in
Hong Kong in the Group’s structural construction
and operation to ensure all the lighting systems are
properly installed.

The Group is not aware of any incidents of non-
compliance with laws and regulations that have
a significant impact on the Group relating to light
emission.

Gas Emission

As cooking process involves the usage of fuels,
restaurant operation inevitably generates exhaust
gases. To protect the vicinity environment, all of the
Group’s restaurants have strictly complied with the
oil fume and cooking odor requirements as stipulated
by Air Pollution Control Ordinance (Chapter 311 of
the laws of Hong Kong). The Company is committed
to executing effective gas emissions control through
the installation and use of appropriate and efficient
filtering equipment as well as organising the regular
inspection, maintenance and repair of the ventilation
system.

During the Reporting Period, the major GHG
emissions of the Group were mainly produced from
indirect emissions due to electricity purchased from
The Hong Kong Electric Company Limited.
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Other air pollutants include nitrogen oxides (“NOx”),
sulphur oxides (“SOx”) and particulate matter
(“PM”), which have adverse effects on the climate,
ecosystems and air quality. The Group uses electric
vehicles which have no vehicle fuel usage and mainly
uses electric cooktops in the operation of restaurants,
therefore no material emissions of NOx, SOx and
PM were generated. The Group generates other
air pollutants through town gas consumption in its
operation.

The key environmental performance indicators of the Group’s
emissions in the Reporting Period are shown in the table

below:

Air emissions

Environmental Indicators Unit

RIS ==K v

NOx (Note 1) Kilogram (“Kg”)
Ea=Rlk/ R F (F7=1)
SOx Kg

maty T

PM Kg

VR L B ] T

Note 1: NOx is produced by gas cooking stove.

Reduction target of air emissions

ESG Report
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Hth=msiesasty (a|t
M) ~meEltty (HRE‘L)) REFH
fL(TREFMAL) EMERE-EER
MEREREEETNFE -AEEER
NMERSEMRHNEEE RETER
KERTREREHEL At EE
ERECY RECYRBIMANE
BHM - -AEBBEBELE ROVHEM
RHEEEHMERTEY -

RSB ~EB IR RRIREENTS
BREHFR TR

RASHER

2025 2024
20254 20244
0.01 0.01
N/A N/A
B N
N/A N/A
B N

M1 aftYHRREES-

RESHF BV HE B 1R

Environmental Indicators Reduction Target Baseline Year Status
IRIBFEIR BHEE R HAEF R R&
NOx intensity Maintain minimal generation N/A N/A
AftYEE REFEEBMY FEA &R
SOx intensity Maintain minimal generation N/A N/A
meEtmEzE REFEEBMY FEA &R
PM intensity Maintain minimal generation N/A N/A
AR E REFEEBMY FiEA &R
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wE

GHG emissions from operation

Environmental Indicators Unit
RIBIEE =R i

Direct emissions (Scope 1)
BB (EBEN) Mg —

Indirect emissions (Scope 2) Nete )

REEENREREHNR

Tonnes of carbon dioxide

equivalent (“Tonnes of COze")

fEREE

(ME_SEHREE))

Tonnes of COze

EEEEN (EE2) W=D W_EICIREE
Other indirect emissions (Scope 3) Tonnes of CO2e
HhE R8N (#E3) —|itEE
Total GHG emissions (Note2) Tonnes of COze
BE RSN AR S (e W _ESICIREE

GHG emissions intensity Nete 3

BEREREE W=

Note 1:

Note 2:

Note 3:

58

Tonnes of COze/

HK$ million revenue

—HIEREZ
E%%Tﬁu&m

The emission factor of electricity consumed is sourced from: Hong
Kong Electric Sustainability Report 2024.

GHG emissions can be classified into three scopes:

Scope 1: It represents mainly town gas consumption by gas cooking
stove.

Scope 2: It represents mainly the electricity purchased from power
suppliers.

Scope 3: It represents mainly the paper waste disposed at landfills
and water consumed.

GHG emissions intensity is calculated by dividing the total GHG
emissions by the Group’s total revenue of club, entertainment and
restaurant business. The Group’s total revenue of club, entertainment
and restaurant business for the year ended 31 May 2025 was
approximately HK$38,838,000 (2024: HK$89,245,000).
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B sET

MisE2 :

B3

2025 2024
20254 20244
0.1 0.2
54.6 142.2
0.2 10.5
54.9 152.9
1.4 1.7
BHHRAYES | 20245 BBBHRETH
%%Eﬁi
BEREHNES A= ERE
BET TR E N AR RN o

BE2: TEERENIHERREEENES-

HES: TRERETHIERNBEMEKFE

BERBHREEDN R BERBHEMK BRI
EESF BREREBEFNBERENE K&
E&HE2025F5831HIEEFENEHR BERE

BB RS AR W 2 4938,838,0008 7T (20244

89,245,00038 7T) ©




Reduction target of GHG emissions intensity

Environmental Indicators
RIBIEE

GHG emission intensity (Scope 1)
BERBHRZE (BEN)
GHG emission intensity (Scope 2)
BERBHREZE (BE2)
GHG emission intensity (Scope 3)
BERBHRZE (BE3)

iii)

HHFE R

2028F AR D5%
2028F AR D5%
2028F AR D5%

Sewage Discharges and Waste Management

During the Reporting Period, all of the Group’s clubs
and restaurants have been granted with the water
pollution control licenses by the Environmental
Protection Department of Hong Kong. To minimise
the environmental impact from the sewage discharge,
the Group has also installed adequate, efficient and
appropriate equipment to ensure the sewage has
been properly processed before discharge.

The Group is committed to reducing waste in its
operating activities which produce non-hazardous
wastes comprising mainly of food wastes, waste
oils, paper wastes and plastic wastes. The Group
hires waste disposal companies to handle club and
restaurants’ waste collection and recycling. No
material hazardous wastes are generated from the
Group’s operations of club and restaurants which
serving customers with food, light refreshment and
beverages.

ESG Report
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BEREHFREENRGEBR

Reduction Target

Reduce 5% by Year 2028
Reduce 5% by Year 2028

Reduce 5% by Year 2028

iii)

Baseline Year Status

HEF AR RE

2023 In progress

20234 AT

2023 In progress

20234 AT

2023 In progress

20234 AT

TR R EEYEE

RESHB ~&EBFMAEMAER
EREEBRERESHBLKTRER
FERR o BB D SR BFMHIRENEE
FEBTERZERH AR RBENR
o RS KEFRA B R ERE-

AEBRNONRBEOEEEZTHREERN
BEEERY ZZERNIZCERY
BEY BEh BAMEHERY TE
BEEAEEYEEASEESGRER
WEZEYWEREIW - AERKEE SR
RER (MBEZRERHEY /NEREE)
TERELEEREEEEY-
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Wastes produced from operation

Environmental Indicators Unit

RIS B

Non-hazardous wastes produced Tonnes
in total MNote

EXMNBRESEEYRE W= g

Non-hazardous wastes produced
intensity MNote )

EFMNBREEEYEE W= =R S €
Hazardous wastes produced in total Tonnes

EFMNBEZSEEYHRESE U]
Hazardous wastes produced intensity

EENEETBEREYEE

Note 1: The Group has engaged waste management companies to handle
non-hazardous wastes, such as kitchen waste and food waste.
Hence, no data of non-hazardous waste is maintained.

Reduction target of intensity of non-hazardous and
hazardous wastes produced

Environmental Indicators

RIGIEIR AR R

Non-hazardous waste produced intensity
EFNBREEEYEE
Hazardous waste produced intensity

EENBEEBEREVEE

TR I B A MR A
R 15 2 A R

Compliance with relevant laws and regulations

The Group is not aware of any material non-compliance
with the Air Pollution Control Ordinance, Water Pollution
Control Ordinance and Waste Disposal Ordinance and
other applicable laws and regulations that have a significant
impact relating to air and greenhouse gas emissions,
discharging into water and land, generation of hazardous
and non-hazardous waste of the Group during the Reporting
Period. In addition, no non-compliance with relevant laws
and regulations that resulted in significant fine or sanction
has been reported in the Reporting Period.
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Tonnes/HK$ million revenue

Tonnes/HK$ million revenue

L=V il 6

Reduction Target

Maintain minimal generation

Maintain minimal generation

REEENEEY
2025 2024
20254 20244
N/A N/A
FE A A
N/A N/A
TR TER
N/A N/A
~iEH TER
N/A N/A
~iEH TER

Mzl 2EHCBFERVEEQDREETERY W
BEEZRNKBMERY AL BIRRERIER
MBI B ©

EENEERRYAASERVEENRGE
*g

Baseline Year Status
HEF AR EE

N/A N/A

TEH TER

N/A N/A

TEH TER

BT EER AN

RREHE AEBTELBEERRENRE
EREHER BRI MBE S - AEREES
EREEEEY I EETAREER TR SR
B HMEB ~ KT FE B K B =Y B B 1R
UREMBRERERER UBEREAFE
BB I o b 4h » FASR &5 BA RS W 4 (R & A RE V&
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Use of Resources

The resources used by the Group are principally attributed to
the consumption of electricity, gas, water and paper at the
back office and outlets.

Electricity is consumed during the daily business
operations from using electrical equipment. To promote
an environmentally friendly office, the Group promotes
and advises several measures such as: (i) employees are
encouraged to switch the electric equipment to energy
saving mode such as the automatically power down of
printers and computers after a period of inactivity and
turn off lightings before leaving the office and outlets;
and (ii) temperature switches are adopted to maintain
the workplaces at a reasonable temperature. The
Group’s electric vehicles are strictly used for transporting
management, customers and for business activities to keep
energy consumption at a minimum.

Although non-significant amounts of water is consumed
through the business activities, the Group also encourages
water saving by driving water-saving habits and posting
green messages in the workplace to remind the employees
to use water effectively. During the Reporting Period, the
Group has not experienced any difficulty in sourcing water
that is fit for the usage of the Group.

The Group implements measures for reducing the paper
consumption such as: (i) double-sided printing and reuse
of single-sided printed papers are encouraged; and (ii)
encourage to use more e-channels to disseminate corporate
information.
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Relevant consumptions from operations

Resources consumed

BiRHE

Energy consumption
RETRIH ¥E

Electricity consumption
BIIHFE

Gas consumption

WA EOH #E

Total energy consumption
HERETRH AR

Energy consumption intensity
BERHERE

Water consumption

KFE

Water consumption

IKFE

Water consumption intensity

KERE

The Group’s operations of club and restaurants mainly
serving customers with food, light refreshment and
beverages, no significant packaging materials were recorded

during the Reporting Period.

Reduction target of resources consumption

Environmental Indicators
IRIBIEE

Energy consumption intensity
BEERE
Water consumption intensity

KERE

REESHBREE
Unit 2025
B i 20254
kWh 91,032
TR EF
kWh -
TR EF
kWh 91,032
TR EF
kWh/HK$ million revenue 2,343.9
TRE GEBETHE
Cubic metre (“M®”) 251
5K (MiLAE K
M3/HK$ million revenue 6.5

UHKR/ BEBTEE

B MR o
BIRHFERUHBEE AR
Reduction Target Baseline Year
AR g
Reduce 5% by Year 2028 2023
2028F A 15% 20234
Reduce 5% by Year 2028 2023
20284F A 15% 20234

OF  New Amante Group Limited EEEEERAT

2024
20245

215,446
487
215,933

2,426.2

1,475

16.6

RBREHE AEECEEMRER(EEM
BERHEBRY N BRRGK) TEELERESR

Status

In progress
EITH
In progress
EITH



During the Reporting Period, the Group adopted a series of
initiatives for efficient energy use and energy conservation.
Details of such measures and the related results achieved
are listed as follows:

Resources saving measures

HIREAVHEE

Water conservation

ESG Report
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PR EARS > A S IR — R 5 SR BB AR

RENKIBETRBIIE T - X FHE BT 1B R T Z R
ARG RN T ¢

Details and results achieved

FREBNFRRER

Usage of water resources is strictly controlled in the back

office and outlets. All staff is encouraged to save water in
the workplace. As a result, consumption of water has been

reduced.
i 49 A 7k

BEMAERFENKEREAZIBRESN SBEEET

EIRSPRERAI K - EIE > KFEBRD

Energy saving

Staff are encouraged to switch the electric equipment to energy

saving mode and turn off lightings before leaving the office and
outlets thus reducing the relevant consumption of electricity.

2

BT A9 BE TR

BERETHERMAMAERFIERNRERRBYIRENERNL

REIRARRER » {E iR L AR B B FE

The Environment and Natural Resources

The Group is committed to reducing the operation
impacts on environment and natural resources. The Group
encourages environmental education and advocacy among
employees to motivate environmentally responsible behavior
which helps fufil the Group’s commitment to minimizing its
adverse impacts on the environment. During the Reporting
Period, there was no significant impact on the environment
and natural resources from the operations of the Group.

The Group actively introduces environmental protection
measures in the office spaces and outlets including turning
off electric equipment and lighting during non-operating
hours, posting green messages in the workplace to remind
staff to save water and reusing of papers. In addition, the
Group also encourages its employees to save resources,
cherish food and avoid wastage of resources.

RIEREAER
AEEROBLVEEHRERBRAERZE
E-rEEZBRARERHREATRERU
EBHRRRAEZTA WIBRTEAEERRE
WMOHEIRBEMN AR EZ A - NRE
i 2EENEETRHIRERERERE
MERTE-

AEBRMWAEBKRPIESIARFRER 21
EFREXEFHREAEERERRA EITFS
PRRAG A EESUIREE ITHNAKREERR
AR Loh  ZREBTHBETHNER
DERYUKRBRREER
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Climate Change

Task Force on Climate-related Financial Disclosures (the
“TCFD”) provides a reporting framework for companies to
report their climate-related risks to the stakeholders. TCFD
divided climate-related risks into physical risks and transition
risks, the physical impacts of climate change and transition
risks brought by decarbonisation could have material impact
to the Group’s operation and development. The Group
has raised its awareness towards the risks and potential
impacts on the Group due to climate change. The Group has
identified the climate-related risks that may adversely impact
the Group’s operations and development.

The Group understands that the climate change has posed
existential threats to the world and its operation, and the
Group must put effective measures in place to protect its
operations from potential disruptions and damages caused
by them. Such risks include physical risks such as typhoon
and rainstorms potentially leading to loss of electrical power
and property damage and staff casualty as well as transition
risks such as policy and regulatory changes.

In response to these, the Group regularly reviews global and
local government policies, regulatory updates and market
trends to identify potential climate-related risks which may
have an impact on the Group’s business operation. The
Group will develop a response plan when necessary such
as by changing the business strategy and modifying the
development plan in order to reduce the negative impacts of
such climate-related risks.

The Group will continuously incorporate sustainable
practices in its business operations and prepare and
maintain sufficient resources for managing identified
climate-related risks and studying the potential remediation
measures.

During the Reporting Period, there was no climate-related
risk, including physical risks and transitional risks that had a
significant impact to the Group.
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SOCIAL
Employment

Employee is the foundation of success of the Group.
The Group is an equal opportunity employer and no
discrimination is tolerated on the basis of age, gender, race,
colour, sexual orientation, disability or marital status.

The Company also prohibits any kinds of discrimination
at the workplace, which generally refer to the gender,
pregnancy, marital status, disability, family status, and
race in the practices for human resources. Other than the
policies for anti-discrimination, the Company provides fair
opportunities for all staff members.

The average number of employees and the distribution on
demographics as of 31 May 2025 have been depicted as
below:
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g

& 1%

BERAEERYNER AEEABLTHE
BX BRLEEREH HH -BHR -Be -1t
0] ~ 52 B 48 4R AR O BY A ] AR o

TRBTRELEETFSREAEANLKR &
BHARANDEROMER S EE BRI E
B RERRKRER - FRREGEERI > BR
AR ERERHB TSRS -

12202558310 THEEEH KREBM S
DWBERWT -

2025 2024

Employee distribution BEDT

By gender g E b
Male E5

Female %z

By age group FER B 2
Under 30 years old 30 AT

30-50 years old 30E505%

Over 50 years old 5088 A &£

By employment type BEFENE 2
Full-time ey

Part-time g

By geographical region it & 8 9
Hong Kong e

20254

47 (54.7%)
39 (45.3%)

30 (34.9%)
47 (54.7%)
9 (10.4%)

40 (46.5%)
46 (53.5%)

86 (100%)

20244

89 (59.7%)
60 (40.3%)

81 (54.3%)
60 (40.3%)
8 (5.4%)

49 (32.9%)
100 (67.1%)

149 (100%)
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During the Reporting Period, the Group’s employee turnover
rate by categories is as follows:

EERKE

Employee turnover rate

By gender "oV 4 Bl &Y 4y )
Male ==
Female 5oy

By age group Mo "

Under 30 years old 30U
30-50 years old 30E505%
Over 50 years old 5058 M k&

i & &4y )
HE

By geographical region "
Hong Kong

Note 1: Employee turnover rate is calculated based on the number of
employees who ceased employment in specified category during the
Reporting Period divided by the average number of employees during
the Reporting Period in specified category.

The Group aims to provide a harmonious and respectful
working environment for the employees through competitive
remuneration packages including basic salary, commissions,
holidays, group insurance and mandatory provident
fund that are comparable to the market standard and
structured to commensurate with individual responsibilities,
qualifications, experiences and performance. Periodical
review is conducted and the appraisal results provide basis
for annual salary review and promotion appraisal.

The employment contract specified the terms including
scope of work, wages/allowances, working hours, rest days,
dismissal and other benefits and welfare to the staff. To stay
competitive, the Group’s base salaries are in line with the
industry norms.
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Compliance with relevant laws and regulations

The Group is not aware of any material non-compliance
with the Employment Ordinance, Employees’ Compensation
Ordinance and other applicable laws and regulations
that have a significant impact relating compensation and
dismissal, recruitment and promotion, working hours, rest
periods, equal opportunity, diversity, anti-discrimination
and other benefits and welfare on the Group during the
Reporting Period. In addition, no non-compliance with
relevant laws and regulations that resulted in significant fine
or sanction has been reported in the Reporting Period.

Health and Safety

The Group realises that ensuring the health and safety of
employees are very important to the business operations of
the Group and therefore we make every effort to build and
maintain a working environment which is free from workplace
health and safety incidents.

The Group follows safety manuals issued by the
Occupational Safety of Health Council which set out work
safety measures to prevent common accidents which could
happen in the outlets. Managers are responsible to ensure
compliance of safety, hygiene and fire requirements by
conducting checks and inspections of the premises regularly
such as fire exit passageway shall be kept clear from
obstruction. Fire extinguishers and other equipment shall be
kept at the correct location and that they are accessible and
remain free from obstruction.

ESG Report
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The Group has engaged a third-party security company
for the clubs which will provide a team of security staff,
working under the supervision of the club managers. The
roles of the security team cover performing patrolling,
attending the scene and liaising with customers to stop
any potential fights in case of arguments or any fights or
other suspicious circumstances, and reporting fights, drug
use, theft and harassments to the police when necessary.
The Group has established safety and anticrime manual,
which is implemented strictly by the security team. The club
managers are responsible for coordinating with the security
team.

The Group implements headcounts and identity checking
procedures at the entrance of the premises of the clubs
to monitor the number of guests inside the premises and
whether the customers are above 18 years old when
entering into the clubs. In order to spot potential illegal
activities such as fights, drug abuse or theft at an early
stage, CCTVs are installed inside the club premises. The
security team will attend the scene investigate immediately
if any suspicious circumstance arises or stop any potential
fight inside the premises once identified.

The below table shows the work-related fatalities and
recordable injury for the three years ended 31 May 2023,
2024 and 2025:

AEEEZEE—BE=ZARZADAEMN
EFRHERZABEBR RETFXEMEE
EE - REZEBNBEEEKE - EARGHR
BEERFBAUELEMFH FRIEMD
RENAIEERNFAR URRLERFDER
REFR - EE - BBERRBESEH -XEEHE
MUEZEREMLERFM ARZEZRERE
Mo BRI EETHBREBRK -

FEEBTEEMADEBT AR RENIBER
FUBEZEEFMABEZE A B REREA ST
EROEmMISH B REEFREMAR - EEAS
MEBEIFELE EAFMESAZERR
BER - BZPANRZEZRERIRBFERGIULAN
ABE REFAREREMRETE L ERE
ko

TRETNE E20235F 2024F %2025%F58
S1HLE=EEE  AIET ABE KDL HEILE

B :

2025 2024 2023
Notification of accident BB 20255 20244 2023%F
Number of work related fatalities EIET AH - _ _
Rate of work-related fatalities RIETEEX - - _
Lost days due to work injury R TEMmERLRNEXH - - -
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Compliance with relevant laws and regulations

The Group is not aware of any material non-compliance
with Occupational Safety and Health Ordinance and other
applicable laws and regulations that have a significant
impact on providing a safe working environment and
protecting employees from occupational hazards of the
Group during the Reporting Period. In addition, no non-
compliance with relevant laws and regulations that resulted
in significant fine or sanction has been reported in the
Reporting Period.

Development and Training

As part of the Group’s initiatives for improving business
performance and encouraging personal development of
the staff, the Group strives to provide comprehensive
development to the employees.

The Group has provided training across different operational
functions, including induction training for new employees,
technical training, and training to enhance the employees’
knowledge, skill level and quality when performing their
duties. For the bartenders and cooks, the Group encourages
them to take courses to further enhance their technical
skills. The senior management also gives regular training to
the staff in relation to customer service skills.

During the Reporting Period, a staff has attended an external
training programme, Basic Food Hygiene Certificate for
Hygiene Supervisors, to enhance food hygiene and safety
knowledge.
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During the Reporting Period, the percentage of employees
trained is as follows:

R E

HifE > ZIIEEB DLW

2025 2024
20255 20245
Percentage of employees trained ™"  Zi|l{E & H % Lb =0 16% 14%
Employees trained by gender "¢ 2 R E D HNZES WE2
Male B 50% 52%
Female £y 50% 48%
Employees trained by ¥ EEEEn 29/
employment category Mot 2 ZilE S e
Senior management BHREERE 36% 4%
Middle management FREIERE 36% 29%
General staff —RET 28% 67%
Note 1: Percentage of employees trained is calculated by dividing the number  [ffz¥1 ! BEZIN B DR B EEIINEE ABBRLUERE

of employees who took part in training by the average number of
employees during the Reporting Period.

Note 2: It is calculated by dividing the number of employees trained in
specified category by the total number of employees trained.

During the Reporting Period, the average training hours
completed per employee are as follows:

Average training hours per 2 & B9 F 39 52 3 B 2y ()

employee Mot

Mi5E2 :

BN FHEEA#ME-

ZEEEINZIEEABFRURIES B ARG
o

RRESHB BEENTFAZIFEHAOT !

Average training hours by gender o2 &4 BI & 43 89 F 39 52 3)l| B gk (0i2)

Male B
Female £y

Average training hours by employment Z{E £3589

category Mot 2 T Z o)l E
Senior management BHREERE
Middle management FREIRE
General staff —RET

Note 1: Average training hours per employee is calculated by dividing the
total number of training hours by the average number of employees
during the Reporting Period.

Note 2: It is calculated by dividing the total number of training hours for

specified category by the average of employees for specified
category during the Reporting Period.
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Labour Standards

The Group fully understands that the exploitation of child
and forced labour are universally condemned, and therefore
it takes the responsibility against child and forced labour
very seriously. The Group strictly complies with all laws and
regulations against child labour and forced labour.

Employment by the Group is based on the principle of
fairness, openness and willingness. All individuals enter into
employment contracts without acts of forced labour. In case
of child labour and forced labour, the Group will immediately
terminate the contract with the employee concerned and the
person-in-charge accountable.

Compliance with relevant laws and regulations

The Group is not aware of any material non-compliance
with the Employment Ordinance, Employment of Children
Regulations and other applicable laws and regulations that
preventing from employment of child or forced labour by
the Group during the Reporting Period. In addition, no non-
compliance with relevant laws and regulations that resulted
in significant fine or sanction has been reported in the
Reporting Period.

Supply Chain Management

Suppliers have a direct impact on the Group’s sustainability
performance. The Group’s suppliers mainly include beverage
and food suppliers.

The Group selects the major suppliers based on a set
of criteria which includes product and service quality,
cost, reputation, service, agility, delivery efficiency, past
performance and relationship with the Group. Suppliers’
attitudes towards environmental and social issues including
workplace health and safety and human rights are also
considered. Such supplier selection criteria ensure that
the Group can secure continual supply of ingredients of
consistent quality, identify the source of supply promptly,
maintain flexibility in stock levels and establish a responsible
supply chain for the environment. Generally, the Group
would not procure from the suppliers unless they pass the
selection criteria.
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The operating managers are primarily responsible for
monitoring the level of food and beverage and making
orders. Each of the outlets place purchase orders with the
procurement staff which then place orders with the relevant
suppliers. Upon delivery of the items to the outlets, the staff
checks the time of delivery, the brand and type, quantity and
quality of deliveries against the delivery notes or invoices
and the orders before acceptance. The Group also inspects
the best by date and condition of the food ingredients, and
if they fall below the Group’s quality control standards, the
Group would return them to the suppliers.

During the Reporting Period, the Group had not experienced
any significant problems with the quality of beverage and
food products provided by the suppliers, any material
limitations in the supply nor any shortage of beverage and
food products. The Group believes that the supply chain
management and procedures can ensure the safety of the
supply chain.

During the Reporting Period, the number of suppliers by
geographical region is as follows:

Suppliers by geographical region EMER D EERE
Hong Kong 58
Mainland China A P
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Product Responsibility

Considering the importance of continuous customers’
satisfaction and support, the Group is committed to
providing customers with high quality services and products.
The Group provides training and guidelines to its staff on
service-related areas such as beverage and food handling
and personal hygiene to enhance the quality of services
provided to the customers. All frontline service staff is
trained to be courteous, competent and responsive and to
provide cordial hospitality to customers. The outlets staff is
required to be professionally uniformed during all working
hours. The operating managers hold daily briefing sessions
with all front-line service staffs on the daily operations of
outlets. In these briefing sessions, the managers would
review staff performance and reflect the customers’
feedbacks. Such daily performance reviews assist the front-
line service staff in maintaining and improving service levels.
The Group strives to promote customer satisfaction through
responding to their comments and feedbacks. The front-
line service staff is required to treat customer requests,
enquiries or complaints promptly and seriously. In case of
any customer complaint in relation to beverage or food or
quality of services, the relevant operating managers would
take initiatives to investigate and resolve the matter and
attend to the customers promptly.

If any staff receives a complaint from a customer, he shall
report to his supervisor, usually the operating manager,
who would review and understand the matter with the
relevant customer and offer remedial proposals to the
customer. If the complaint cannot be resolved on site or if a
complaint has been received through emails, the operating
managers will investigate the incident and file a report to
the management with solutions to improve or avoid similar
incidents in the future. An explanation will be sent to the
relevant customer to ensure the matter would be resolved
and to maintain a good customer relationship. The Group’s
management will review the complaints and arrange
necessary training to the staff to consistently improve
the operation of outlets. During the Reporting Period, no
recalls of products due to safety and health reasons and no
complaints related to products and services were reported.
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Data Privacy Protection

The Group has implemented certain internal control
measures in ensuring the confidentiality of the operation
data so as to protect the suppliers, business partners,
customers and itself. The Group’s employment contract,
staff handbook and internal control manual clearly define the
requirements in relation to protecting the Group’s data. For
example, (i) staffs are only allowed to access, retrieve, store
and/or copy computer data that are necessary and directly
related to their work; (i) any unauthorised access, retrieval,
storage or copy of computer data, as well as unauthorised
transfer and disclosure of data to third parties, are strictly
prohibited and may lead to summary dismissal; and (iii)
administrative department is tasked with the implementation
of a practical and reliable mechanism to ensure security of
all data contained in computers and to protect data against
unauthorised access or retrieval.

Intellectual Property Rights Protection

The Group is committed to complying with relevant laws
and regulations in relation to intellectual property right. It
is the Group’s policy to respect intellectual property rights
during its daily operations and not to use any infringing
articles including computer software. The Group will not use
or copy except for necessary and lawful backup purposes,
any software of related documentation, unless having been
authorised by the owner of the copyright concerned.

Compliance with relevant laws and regulations

The Group is not aware of any material non-compliance with
the Trade Descriptions Ordinance, Copyright Ordinance,
Prevention of Copyright Piracy Ordinance, Personal
Data (Privacy) Ordinance and other applicable laws and
regulations that have a significant impact relating to health
and safety, advertising, labelling and privacy matters relating
to products and services provided and methods of redress
on the Company during the Reporting Period. In addition,
no non-compliance with relevant laws and regulations that
resulted in significant fine or sanction has been reported in
the Reporting Period.
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Anti-corruption

Corruption, deception, bribery, forgery, extortion, money
laundering and any other kinds of business fraud are strictly
prohibited and fully investigated by the Audit Committee. In
every business operation, employees and the management
must demonstrate integrity. No tolerance is given to fraud.
According to the staff handbook and internal control manual
established by the Group, policy is established to govern
investigation and follow-up procedures of reported fraud
incidents. To enhance the governance of the Group, periodic
and systematic fraud risk assessments are conducted. Any
abnormality should be reported to the Audit Committee for
investigation. Whistle blowing channel is also established for
the reporting of violations of professional conducts.

During the Reporting Period, the Company has provided
anti-corruption education and training materials such as
directors’ ethics and myths about corruption which are
published by Independent Commission Against Corruption,
Hong Kong, to its directors and senior management, in
order to raise their awareness towards ethical and corruption
issues.

Compliance with relevant laws and regulations

The Group is not aware of any material non-compliance with
the Prevention of Bribery Ordinance and other applicable
laws and regulations that have a significant impact on
the Group relating to bribery, extortion, fraud and money
laundering during the Reporting Period. In addition, there
was no legal case concerning corruption brought against the
Group or its employees during the Reporting Period.

Community Investment

The Group cares about its community and is willing to give
helping hands to the needy in order to promote harmony and
stability of the society. The management continues to focus
on the needs of the society and endeavour to enhance the
sustainability of the community.
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Report of the Directors

EFEHRS

The Board presents its annual report and the audited
consolidated financial statements of the Group for the
Reporting Period.

COMPANY INFORMATION

The Company was incorporated in the Cayman Islands
with limited liability. The address of its registered office is
located at Windward 3, Regatta Office Park, P.O. Box 1350,
Grand Cayman KY1-1108, Cayman lIslands. The address
of its principal place of business is located at 25/F., China
Huarong Tower, 60 Gloucester Road, Wanchai, Hong Kong.
The Company’s shares are listed on the GEM of the Stock
Exchange.

PRINCIPAL ACTIVITIES

The Company acts as an investment holding company. The
Group’s principal activities include clubs and entertainment,
and catering services.

An analysis of the Group’s performance by the principal
activities and geographical locations of operations for the
Reporting Period is set out in note 6 to the consolidated
financial statements.

FIVE YEAR SUMMARY

A summary of the results and of the assets and liabilities of
the Group for the last five financial years is set out on pages
90 to 91 of the annual report.

BUSINESS AND FINANCIAL REVIEW

Details of the business review are set out in the section
headed “Management Discussion and Analysis” on pages 9
to 22.

RESULTS AND RESERVES

As at 31 May 2025, the Company’s reserves available for
distribution to shareholders comprising share premium
account plus accumulated losses. No distributable reserves
was available for distribution as at 31 May 2025 (2024: nil).
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DIVIDEND

The Board did not recommend the payment of a final
dividend for the Reporting Period (2024: nil).

CHARITABLE DONATIONS

The Group made no charitable donations during the
Reporting Period (2024: nil).

MAJOR CUSTOMERS AND SUPPLIERS

Due to the nature of the Group’s business, the majority
of customers consist of retail customers from the general
public. As such, the Directors consider that it is not
practicable to identify the five largest customers of the
Group for the Reporting Period.

Our Group purchased approximately 57.2% of its total
purchases from the largest supplier during the Reporting
Period. Detail of the trade and other payables of the Group
as at 31 May 2025 are set out in note 21 to the consolidated
financial statements. Up to the date of this report, the
trade and other payables to the largest supplier has been
fully settled. For the procurement of bulk commodities or
services, the Group has set bidding programme with strict
implementation.

The information in respect of the Group’s purchases
attributable to the major suppliers during Reporting Period
are as follows:

The largest supplier B A ERS
Five largest suppliers in aggregate I ARHIERE 48T

None of the Directors, their associates or any shareholders,
which to the knowledge of the Directors owned more than
5% of the Company’s issued Shares, had a beneficial
interest in any of the Group’s five largest suppliers and
customers.
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Report of the Directors

EFEHRS

PROPERTY, PLANT AND EQUIPMENT

Details of movements in the property, plant and equipment
of the Group for the Reporting Period are set out in note
15 to the consolidated financial statements of this annual
report.

LOANS AND BORROWINGS

The total borrowings of the Group as at 31 May 2025
was HK$802,000 (2024: approximately HK$5,652,000).
Particulars of loans and borrowings are set out in notes
23 and 24 to the consolidated financial statements of this
annual report.

SHARE CAPITAL

Details of movements of share capital of the Company
during the Reporting Period are set out in note 26 to the
financial statements.

Details of the Company’s activities involving Shares or
share capital during the Reporting Period are set out in
sub-section “CAPITAL STRUCTURE” under Management
Discussion and Analysis on pages 17 to 18.

DIRECTORS

The Directors during the Reporting Period and up to the date
of this annual report are:

Executive Directors:

Ms. Ma Liangping (Chairman) (appointed on 30 May 2025)
Ms. Liu Huijing (CEO)

Mr. Wong Chi Yung (resigned on 31 December 2024)

Ms. Lui Lok Yan (retired on 4 October 2024)

INEDs:

Mr. Pong Chun Yu

Dr. Chen Xiaofeng (appointed on 22 November 2024)
Mr. Hui Wai Hung

Mr. Jiang Qiaowei (resigned on 21 November 2024)
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CHANGE IN DIRECTORS’ INFORMATION

Save as disclosed below or in the Company’s 2024/25
interim report or elsewhere in this annual report, there is no
other information required to be disclosed pursuant to rule
17.50A of the GEM Listing Rules:

Details of Change
BB

Name of Director

EFus

Ms. Ma Liangping
BRM¥LE

Report of the Directors
EFEGHRE

EEEREE

f& Xl A A B12024/25050 3R 8Y, 7 4F 3R H 1th 26
DEAREEIN TEAEMBIEGEM EHREE
17.50ABHTEABATIRENER !

appointed as an Executive Director and Chairman on 30 May 2025
20255830 EZERNITESAERE

monthly salary increased to HK$30,000 from 1 July 2025
S A+ R2025%781HERE E30,000% 7T

Ms. Liu Huijing
BB+

resigned as Chairman on 30 May 2025 and appointed as a member of
Nomination Committee on 28 August 2025

R2025F 5830 BE T E N 2025F8828H EZ T AIRREE T

=

Pursuant to article 108 of the Articles of Association, at
each annual general meeting, one-third of the Directors for
the time being (or, if their number is not a multiple of three,
the number nearest to but not less than one-third) shall
retire from office by rotation, provided that each Director
(including those appointed for a specific term) will be subject
to retirement by rotation at least once every three years at
the annual general meeting. The retiring Directors shall be
eligible for re-election.

Pursuant to article 112 of the Articles of Association, the
Board shall have power from time to time and at any time
to appoint any person as a Director either to fill a casual
vacancy or as an addition to the Board. Any Director so
appointed shall hold office only until the next following
general meeting of the Company (in the case of filling a
casual vacancy) or until the next following annual general
meeting of the Company (in the case of an addition to the
Board), and shall then be eligible for re-election. Any Director
appointed under this article shall not be taken into account
in determining the Directors or the number of Directors who
are to retire by rotation at an AGM.

Accordingly, Ms. Ma Liangping, Ms. Liu Huijing, Mr. Pong
Chun Yu and Dr. Chen Xiaofeng shall retire from office and,
being eligible, will offer themselves for re-election at the
forthcoming annual general meeting.

RIBABERMRE 108K REFREEF
REL BER=ZDZ—HNES (AMWEFAY
WIF=MEE AURREEBR VR =02 —
ANBRE) ARESR EESRES (BERE
ERAEREZEE) HARKRREFAGLED
BE-FHESE-—R-BREEFABEEET-

RBFABERBRAE 127 EFFERELRE
EREBEZAEEAALIRES UWEHES TR
RERIEBENEZTTAB -ENEZEZES
ZEREEARBD TERRAG R (WBIE
RERHEZHR) HEEARD TERRBEFRE
mEWMBEEFSRAME)  BRABERE
F-REERNRRAFAST LHEREINE
ENEFARFT REFAAUNEZENERNSE
ERTEHAEER-

Hit > SRFEXE BB ER T EIRFEE
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BIOGRAPHICAL DETAILS OF DIRECTORS

The updated biographical details of the Directors since the
date of publication of the 2025 Interim Report are set out on
pages 23 to 26 in this annual report.

DIRECTORS’ SERVICE CONTRACTS AND LETTERS
OF APPOINTMENT

Ms. Ma Liangping, being the Executive Director, has entered
into a service contract with the Company for a term of
three years commencing from 30 May 2025 and shall be
renewable thereafter unless terminated by either party by
giving not less than one month’s written notice to the other

party.

Ms. Liu Huijing, being the Executive Director, has entered
into a service contract with the Company for a term of three
years commencing from 3 April 2023 and shall be renewable
thereafter unless terminated by either party by giving not
less than one months’ written notice to the other party.

Each of Mr. Pong Chun Yu, Dr. Chen Xiaofeng and Mr. Hui
Wai Hung, being the INEDs, has entered into a letter of
appointment with the Company for a term of three years
commencing from 22 January 2021 (Mr. Pong Chun Yu) and
16 February 2021 (Mr. Hui Wai Hung) and from 22 November
2024 (Dr. Chen Xiaofeng) and shall automatically be renewed
thereafter, unless terminated by either party by giving not
less than one month’s written notice to the other party.

None of our Directors, including those proposed for re-
election at the AGM, has entered or has proposed to enter
into any service agreement or letter of appointment with us
or any other members of the Group, which is not expired or
not determinable by us or any member of the Group within
one year without payment of compensation (other than
statutory compensation).

All the INEDs were appointed for a specific terms subject to
the relevant provisions of the Articles of Association or any
other applicable laws whereby the Directors shall vacate or
retire from their office.
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PERMITTED INDEMNITY PROVISIONS

During the Reporting Period and up to the date of this
annual report, the directors are indemnified out of the assets
and profits of the Company from and against all actions,
costs, charges, losses, damages and expenses which they
or any of them shall or may incur or sustain by or by reason
of any act done, concurred in or omitted in or about the
execution of their duty, or supposed duty, in their respective
offices. The Company has taken out and maintained
directors’ liability insurance which provides appropriate
cover for the directors and directors of the subsidiaries of
the Group.

CONFIRMATION OF INDEPENDENCE

The Company has received from each of the INEDs an
annual confirmation of independence pursuant to rule
5.09(c) of the GEM Listing Rules and considers all the
independent non-executive directors to be independent.

DIRECTORS’ AND CONTROLLING SHAREHOLDERS’
INTERESTS IN A COMPETING BUSINESS

During the Reporting Period and up to the date of this
annual report, the Directors, including the INEDs, are not
aware of any business or interest of the Directors, the
management of the Company and their respective close
associates (as defined under the GEM Listing Rules) that
compete or may compete with the business of the Group
and any other conflict of interest which any such person had
or might have with the Group.

DIRECTORS’ INTERESTS IN CONTRACTS,
CONTRACTS ARRANGEMENTS OR CONTRACTS
OF SIGNIFICANCE

Save as disclosed in the section head “RELATED PARTY
TRANSACTION” below and note 34 to the consolidated
financial statements of this annual report, there is no
transaction, arrangement or contract of significance to which
the Company or any of its subsidiaries and the controlling
shareholders of the Company or any of its subsidiaries was
a party and in which the Directors had a material interest,
whether directly or indirectly, subsisted during or at the end
of the year or at any time during the Reporting Period.

MANAGEMENT CONTRACTS

As at 31 May 2025, the Company did not enter into or have
any management and/or administration contracts in respect
of the whole or any principal business of the Company.
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RELATED PARTY TRANSACTIONS

Save as disclosed in the section headed “DIRECTORS’
INTERESTS IN CONTRACTS, CONTRACTS
ARRANGEMENTS OR CONTRACTS OF SIGNIFICANCE”
above and note 35 to the consolidated financial statements
of this annual report, no other connected transaction
nor related party transaction of the Company has been
carried out during the Reporting Period. In relation to the
transactions disclosed under note 34 to the consolidated
financial statements of this annual report, the loans and
transactions are fully exempted connected transactions
under the GEM Listing Rules as they are conducted on
normal commercial terms and are unsecured by the assets
of the Group.

SHARE OPTION SCHEME

The Share Option Scheme was adopted pursuant to a
resolutions passed by the Shareholders on 14 March 2017
for the primary purpose of granting options to eligible
participants as incentives or rewards for their contribution to
the Group. Eligible participants of the Share Option Scheme
include any employees, any executives, non-executive
Directors (including INEDs), suppliers, customers, advisers
and consultants of the Company or any of its subsidiaries.

On 8 March 2021, a total of 68,800,000 Options (prior
to the effect of the share consolidation (the “Share
Consolidation”) and rights issue (the “Rights Issue”)
approved in the annual general meeting of the Company
held on 14 November 2022) were granted to directors,
employees and consultants of the Company at an exercise
price of HK$0.385 per share (prior to the effect of the Share
Consolidation and Rights Issue) exercisable within 5 years
from the date of grant, of which each of the current INEDs,
namely Mr. Hui Wai Hung and Mr. Pong Chun Yu, have been
granted the then 400,000 Options (for details, please refer to
the announcement of the Company dated 8 March 2021). As
at 1 June 2022, there were 11,200,000 Options (prior to the
effect of the Share Consolidation and Rights Issue) available
for grant under the Share Option Scheme. As at 31 May
2025, up to 61,056 Options of HK$0.01 each granted but
yet exercised; and there are up to 1,998,944 outstanding
Options available for grant for the equivalent shares of
HK$0.01 each. During the 12 months ended 31 May 2025,
saved as disclosed in the below table, no Option has been
granted, exercised, cancelled or lapsed. No service provider
sublimit was set under the Share Option Scheme.
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The maximum number of shares which may be issued under
the Share Option Scheme and any other schemes of the
Company (excluding options lapsed pursuant to the Share
Option Scheme and any other scheme of the Company)
is 2,060,000 shares (after taking into the effect of the
Share Consolidation and the Rights Issue), representing
approximately 1.69% of the issued shares of the Company
as at the date of this annual report.

The maximum number of shares which may be issued to
each eligible participant under the Share Option Scheme
in any 12-month period must not exceed 1% of the issued
shares of the Company unless approved in advance by the
Shareholders in general meeting.

Any option to be granted under the Share Option Scheme to
a Director, chief executive or substantial Shareholder or to
any of their respective associates must be approved by all
independent non-executive Directors (excluding independent
non-executive Director who is the grantee). In addition,
any option to be granted to a substantial shareholder or
an independent non-executive Director or to any of their
respective associates which will result in the shares issued
and to be issued in excess of 0.1% of the issued shares or
with an aggregate value (based on the closing price of the
shares at the date of the grant) in excess of HK$5,000,000
within any 12-month period is subject to approval by the
Shareholders in general meeting.

The offer of a grant of Options under the Share Option
Scheme may be accepted within 21 days from the date
of the offer and by payment of HK$1.00 as consideration
for the grant of an Option. An Option may be exercised in
accordance with the terms of the Share Option Scheme at
any time during a period as to be determined and notified
by the Directors to each grantee, but shall end in any event
not later than 10 years from the date of the grant of Option.
There is no vesting period requirement for the options
granted under the Share Option Scheme.

The Share Option Scheme will be valid and effective for a
period of 10 years commencing on the listing date of the
Company. The remaining life of the Share Option Scheme is
four years.
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The exercise price is determined by the Directors and
shall be at least the highest of: (i) the closing price of
the Company’s shares as stated in the Stock Exchange’s
daily quotations sheet on the date of the offer of grant of
an option, which must be a trading day; (i) the average
closing price of the Company’s shares as stated in the
Stock Exchange’s daily quotations for the five trading days
immediately preceding the date of the offer of grant of an
option; and (iii) the nominal value of the Company’s shares.

Share Option Movements

Particulars and movement of the Options granted under the
Share Option Scheme during the Reporting Period are set
out in note 27 to the consolidated financial statements and
summarised as below.

Movement of Options during the Reporting Period:

TEENHESFEE  EAEER TIZERN
EeE (\WRUBRENENEHE (BRAXS
B ZBMXMMEBRBREBRMAIINEARTRMU
HE (NN EEREBRENEZHNA R EAE
R AEBXASERERMAIINEARBFRMD
FHWHE ; KRii)=2ERAOOEE -

REREEE

R{RESHE REBRESERENBRES
BREFDHNGESMBRRMEF27LH L
W

Number of share options'

BlEEE
Exercise
price Exercisable As at As at
Grant date (HK$) period 1/6/2024 Granted Exercised Lapsed Cancelled 31/5/2025
T ® S
bbb (B7) 7168 1/6/2024 B girfE BRH B 31/5/2025
Mr. Hui Wai Hung (INED) 8/3/2021 7,567 08/03/2021 - 20,352 - - - - 20,352
SFEEEE (BUENTES) 07/03/2026
Mr. Pong Chun Yu (INED) 8/3/2021 7,567 08/03/2021 - 20,352 - - - - 20,352
ERFELE BULFATES) 07/03/2026
Continuous contract employee 8/3/2021 7,567 08/03/2021 - 20,352 - - - - 20,352
REANES 07/03/2026
Consultants® 8/3/2021 7,567 08/03/2021 - 488,458 - - (488,458) - -
Eme 07/03/2026
Notes: ByEE
1) All Options are vested immediately on the date of grant. 1) FrEMERESENIZH B RRRERE-
2) Options were granted to 6 consultants (namely, Ms. Hung Wai Ching,  (2) EBRECSEE Y LEN BLEgrt 8lH

Mr. Liu Shaobai, Mr. Chow Yuk Lam, Mr. Liu Xiaoyi, Mr. Dong Bo
Frederic and Mr. Togo Takashi) equally in recognition of their past
and/or for motivation of future contributions and services provided to
and/or to be provided to the Group.

(3) No Option was exercised during the Reporting Period, therefore, the
weighted average closing price of the relevant Shares immediately
before the dates on which the options were exercised was zero.
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REMUNERATION OF DIRECTORS AND FIVE
HIGHEST PAID INDIVIDUALS

Brief summary of the remuneration policy of the Group is
set out in pages 33 to 34 of this annual report. Details of
the Directors’ fee and remuneration of the Directors and the
emoluments of the five highest paid individuals during the
Reporting Period are set out in note 10 to the consolidated
financial statements of this annual report.

PENSIONS SCHEME

The Group’s principal retirement benefits schemes available
to its Hong Kong employees are defined contribution
schemes (including the Mandatory Provident Fund) which are
administered by independent trustees. Both the Group and
the employees contribute respectively to the schemes sums
which represent a certain percentage of the employees’
salaries. The contributions by the Group are expensed as
incurred and may be reduced by contribution forfeited for
those employees who have left the schemes prior to full
vesting of the relevant employer’s contribution. During the
year, the Group had no forfeited contribution available to
reduce its existing level of contributions to the retirement
benefit schemes in future years.

The contributions to pension scheme of Directors for the
year are disclosed in note 40 to the consolidated financial
statements of this annual report.

DIRECTORS’ AND CHIEF EXECUTIVES’
INTERESTS IN SHARES OF THE COMPANY

Save as disclosed below, as at 31 May 2025, none of
the Directors or chief executive of the Company or their
associates had any interests and short positions in the
shares, underlying shares or debentures of the Company
or its associated corporations (within the meaning of Part
XV of the SFO) which are required (a) to be notified to the
Company and the Stock Exchange pursuant to Divisions
7 and 8 of Part XV of the SFO (including interests or short
positions which they are taken or deemed to have under
such provisions of the SFO); or (b) pursuant to section 352
of the SFO, to be entered in the register referred to therein;
or (c) pursuant to the rule 5.46 of the GEM Listing Rules to
be notified to the Company and the Stock Exchange:
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Long positions in shares of the Company

REQXBRBFNGEE

Number of shares
and underlying

Percentage of

Name of Directors Capacity/Nature of Interest shares shareholding
EEHY B HEME 1% R BRI D& E REE L
Ms. Ma Liangping™" Interest of controlled corporation 20,370,000 16.66%
ER¥LZLO SEEEER

Ms. Liu Huijing Beneficial owner 4,265,250 3.49%
NEBHELL BEm#EREA

Mr. Pong Chun Yu Beneficial owner 20,352@ 0.02%
FRIRF L BEm#EEA

Mr. Hui Wai Hung Beneficial owner 20,352@ 0.02%
SrHETESE BEm#EEA

Notes: ByEE

1) Ms. Ma Liangping is deemed to have interest in 20,370,000 Shares (1) ERNLZITWHRANEEZE2EREENLATINMKE

held by her direct wholly owned company, Keen Champ International
Investment Limited.

2) Options granted to the Directors.

DIRECTORS’ RIGHTS TO ACQUIRE SHARES OR
DEBENTURES

Save as otherwise disclosed in this annual report, at no
time during the Reporting Period was the Company or
any of its subsidiaries a party to any arrangements which
enable the Directors to acquire benefits by means of the
acquisitions of shares in, or debentures of, the Company or
any other body corporate, and neither the Directors nor the
chief executive (including their spouse and children under
18 years of age) had an interest in, or been granted any
rights to subscribe for the securities of the Company and its
associated corporations (within the meaning of the SFO), or
had exercised any such right.
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SUBSTANTIAL SHAREHOLDERS’ INTERESTS IN

SHARES OF THE COMPANY

Save as disclosed below, as at 31 May 2025, to the
best knowledge of the Directors or chief executive of the
Company, no person (other than a Director or chief executive
of the Company) had interests or short positions in the
shares or underlying shares of the Company, as recorded in
the register maintained by the Company pursuant to section

336 of the SFO:

Long positions in shares of the Company

Name

Ha, R

Ms. Ma Liangping”

BRMEZ L

Keen Champ International
Investment Limited®

RRERRERRAF

Mr. Wang Ning
TRELE

Mr. Yuan Lin®

Mk ED

Zhongcai Herui Industry

Development Co Limited®

MR EXERARAF?

Zhongcai Herui Investment
Group Co Limited

PHNRKEERARAF

Mr. Cheung Ka Kwan
SRR BB E

Capacity/Nature of Interest

g5 HEEME

Interest of controlled
corporation

ZEEEED
Beneficial owner
EmEE A

Beneficial owner

BEmBEAA

Beneficial owner

BEmBEAA

Interest of spouse

FofBEm

Interest of controlled
corporation

FEEEED
Interest of controlled
corporation
ZEEEED
Beneficial owner

BEmBEAA

Beneficial owner

BEmBEAA
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R NERRMD P ERLHEN A AT RIRES
KHERE B30 EEMN B MR

NP .
KA

REABRKRMFNEE

Approximately
Percentage of

Number of shares shareholding

R 8B IRIEMOBIEE
20,370,000 16.66%
20,370,000 16.66%
17,401,761 14.23%
11,643,250 9.52%

200,000 0.16%
12,075,000 9.88%
12,075,000 9.88%
12,075,000 9.88%
10,000,000 8.18%
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Notes:

(1) Ms. Ma Liangping is deemed to have interest in 20,370,000 Shares
held by her direct wholly owned company, Keen Champ International
Investment Limited.

2) Mr. Yuan Lin (i) personally holds 11,643,250 Shares; (i) is deemed

to have interest in 200,000 Shares held by his spouse; and (iii) is
deemed to have interest in 12,075,000 Shares held by his indirectly
controlled company, Zhongcai Herui Investment Group Co Limited
(a company directly and wholly owned by Zhongcai Herui Industry
Development Co Limited, which is directly held as to 90% by Mr.
Yuan Lin).

PURCHASE, SALE OR REDEMPTION OF SHARES

Neither the Company, nor any of its subsidiaries purchased,
redeemed or sold any of the listed securities of the Company
during the Reporting Period.

PRE-EMPTIVE RIGHTS

There are no provisions for pre-emptive rights under the
Articles of Association or the laws of Cayman Islands which
would oblige the Company to offer new shares on a prorate
basis to existing shareholders.

REVIEW OF THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL
STATEMENTS

The Audit Committee has reviewed with the management of
the Company and the Auditor, the accounting principles and
policies as adopted by the Company, the practices of the
Group and the audited consolidated financial statements for
the Reporting Period.

CORPORATE GOVERNANCE

The Company is committed to maintaining the highest
standard of corporate governance practices. Information
on the corporate governance practices adopted by the
Company is set out in the Corporate Governance Report on
pages 27 to 49 of this annual report.

ESG REPORT

The ESG Report is set out on pages 50 to 75 of this annual
report.

EVENTS AFTER THE REPORTING PERIOD

Save as disclosed in the section headed “EVENTS AFTER
THE REPORTING PERIOD” on page 18 in this annual report,
the Directors are not aware of any significant event requiring
disclosure that has taken place subsequent to 31 May 2025
and up to the date of approval of this annual report.
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AUDITOR

BDO Limited was appointed as the auditor of the Group
in 2017 for conducting the audit works of the Group since
then.

BDO Limited shall retire in the forthcoming AGM and, being
eligible, will offer itself for re-appointment. A resolution for
the re-appointment of BDO Limited as the auditor of the
Group will be proposed at the forthcoming AGM.

SUFFICIENCY OF PUBLIC FLOAT

Based on the information that is publicly available to the
Company and within the knowledge of the Directors, as at
the date of this annual report, the Company has maintained
the sufficient public float under the GEM Listing Rules.

PUBLICATION OF INFORMATION ON WEBSITES

This annual report is available for viewing on the website
of Stock Exchange at www.hkexnews.com.hk and on the
website of the Company at www.new-amante.com.

By order of the Board

Ma Liangping
Chairman

28 August 2025
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Five Year Financial Summary

hFMBRE

A summary of the results and of the assets and liabilities of
the Group for the last five financial years, as extracted from
the audited consolidated financial statements in this annual

report and the prospectus, is set out below:

UTRAEEERREALEATREENEEUR
EERBERHZ NHEBEEAFRANEERZ
REVBBRRREBRER !

RESULT E
Year ended 31 May
HESASIHILEE
2025 2024 2023 2022 2021
20255  2024F  2023F @ 2022 @ 20214
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$000
FET FErT TFET  FErT  TET
Revenue W 38,838 89,245 77,981 50,257 24,427
Changes in inventories 78 7 88 (25,946) (27,714  (20,340) (12,641)  (5,127)
Other income and gains HAKRA K 28 9,940 4,283 5,438 3,304 19,066
Advertising and marketing expenses BEREHAY (1,554) (14,650) (10,104)  (8,594)  (3,591)
Employee benefits expenses BERAFES (9,032) (20,809) (16,569) (13,163) (11,367)
Equity-settled share-based payments MREEEURGOAERZ
N - - - - (15,676)
Depreciation of property, M BB MR ETE
plant and equipment (2,805) (5,589) (4,049) (3,480) (4,131)
Depreciation of right-of-use assets BRESENE (6,159) (14,185)  (8,301)  (7,089) (12,790)
Other expenses HitfAs (7,292)  (20,323) (15,771) (16,057) (14,212)
Impairment loss on property, M BB Kk B R E R 18
plant and equipment - = = = (3,988)
Impairment loss on right-of-use assets AR E ERERE - - - - (8,369)
Reversal of write-off of trade receivables £ 5 FE IR R B4 [o] 2,226 = = = =
Write-off of trade and other receivables  #i8 B 5 B & Ux =018 - (5,571) (914) (593)  (1,951)
Reversal of/(provision for) expected credit &5 Rk EfMEWIEZ
loss on trade and other receivables BHEEEERD/ (BH) 511 361 (579) (367) (226)
Finance costs ROE A A (478)  (1,166) (553)  (1,311)  (1,541)
(Loss)/profit before income tax BRETSMAT (B8 /&A (1,751) (16,118 6,239 (9,734)  (39,476)
Income tax (expense)/credit sk () /HER (2,071)  (1,208) (359) 1,792 (10)
(Loss)/profit and total comprehensive R (B18) &5 &
income for the year PEWGEEE (3,822) (17,321) 5,880 (7,942)  (39,486)
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Five Year Financial Summary

HAFEMBERE

Year ended 31 May

HE5A3BLERE
2025 2024 2023 2022 2021
20255 20244 2023%F 20224 20214
HK$'000 HK$000 HK$000 HKS'000 HK$ 000
FET FET TFET FET  FET
(Loss)/profit and total comprehensive MTFALEGER (K518) /
income for the year attributable to: B R EE R E AR
- Owners of the Company — KRB EEA (4,882) (17,140) 3,649 (8,871) (36,873)
- Non-controlling interests —FFERER 1,060 (181) 2,231 929 (2,613)
(3,822) (17,321) 5880  (7,942) (39,486)
ASSETS AND LIABILITIES BEEHAHE
Year ended 31 May
HESA3MHILEE
2025 2024 2023 2022 2021
20254 20244 20234 20224 2021
HK$000 HK$000 HK$000 HK$'000 HK$000
FET FET FET  FET  FET
Total assets MEE 31,599 50,473 55,363 31,548 64,679
Total liabilities e m (25,719)  (51,445) (44,893) (44,885) (75,674)
Total equity/(deficiency in assets) wEn/ (BEBL) 5,880 972) 10,470  (18,337)  (10,995)
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Independent Auditor’s Report
BN ER S

IBDO

www.bdo.com.hk

FEE ¢ +852 2218 8288
{HE : +852 2815 2239

www.bdo.com.hk

TO THE SHAREHOLDERS OF NEW AMANTE GROUP LIMITED
(HEBREERRAR)

(incorporated in the Cayman Islands with limited liability)

DISCLAIMER OF OPINION

We were engaged to audit the consolidated financial
statements of New Amante Group Limited (the “Company”)
and its subsidiaries (together the “Group”) set out on pages
96 to 188, which comprise the consolidated statement of
financial position as at 31 May 2025, and the consolidated
statement of comprehensive income, the consolidated
statement of changes in equity and the consolidated
statement of cash flows for the year then ended, and notes
to the consolidated financial statements, including material
accounting policy information.

We do not express an opinion on the consolidated financial
statements of the Group. Because of the significance of the
matter described in the “Basis for Disclaimer of Opinion”
section of our report, we have not been able to obtain
sufficient appropriate audit evidence to provide a basis for
an audit opinion on these consolidated financial statements.
In all other respects, in our opinion the consolidated financial
statements have been properly prepared in compliance with
the disclosure requirements of the Hong Kong Companies
Ordinance.

BASIS FOR DISCLAIMER OF OPINION

Scope limitation relating to appropriateness of the
going concern assumption

As disclosed in note 3(c) to the consolidated financial
statements, the Group incurred a net loss of approximately
HK$3,822,000 for the year ended 31 May 2025 and as
of that date, the Group had cash and cash equivalents of
approximately HK$1,549,000 only. In addition, the night
club operated by the Group has ceased operations since
4 August 2024 due to the expiration of the lease and the
Group disposed of a cigar shop in April 2025. Following
the cessation of the Group’s night club business and the
disposal of the cigar shop, the Group recorded a significant
decline in revenue of approximately 56.5%.
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These events and conditions indicate that a material
uncertainty exists that which may cast significant doubt
on the Group’s ability to continue as a going concern and,
therefore, that the Group may not be able to realise its
assets and discharge its liabilities in the normal course of
business.

In view of such circumstances, the directors of the Company
have given careful consideration of the liquidity and future
cash flows of the Group in assessing the Group’s ability to
continue as a going concern. For this purpose, the directors
of the Company have prepared a cash flow forecast of the
Group covering the next eighteen months from the end of
the reporting period (the “Cash Flow Forecast”) which
takes into account the plans and measures as set out in
note 3(c). Based on the assessment made by the directors
of the Company, assuming the plans and measures can be
successfully implemented as scheduled notwithstanding the
inherent uncertainties associated with the future outcome
of those plans and measures, the Group is able to continue
as a going concern and it is appropriate to prepare the
consolidated financial statements on a going concern basis.

The appropriateness of the consolidated financial statements
prepared on a going concern basis largely depends on
whether those plans and measures as detailed in note 3(c)
can be successfully implemented as scheduled.

However, in respect of the plans and measures that the
Group would successfully drawdown the loan facility from a
shareholder, as and when necessary, we were not provided
with the information that we considered necessary for our
evaluation of the financial viability of the shareholder to
provide sufficient funds to the extent that is necessary based
on the Cash Flow Forecast due to the unavailability of the
information of the shareholder.

Due to the limitations on our scope of work as stated above
and there are no alternative audit procedures that we can
perform to obtain sufficient appropriate audit evidence to
support the above plans and measures can be successfully
implemented, as a result, we were unable to obtain sufficient
appropriate evidence to conclude whether the directors’
use of the going concern basis of accounting to prepare the
consolidated financial statements is appropriate.

Independent Auditor’s Report
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Independent Auditor’s Report
BN ER S

Should the Group fail to achieve the intended effects
resulting from the plans and measures as abovementioned, it
might not be able to continue to operate as a going concern,
and adjustments would have to be made to write down the
carrying values of the Group’s assets to their net realisable
amounts, to provide for any further liabilities which might
arise, and to reclassify non-current assets and non-current
liabilities as current assets and current liabilities respectively.
The effects of these adjustments have not been reflected in
these consolidated financial statements.

DIRECTORS’ RESPONSIBILITIES FOR THE
CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

The directors are responsible for the preparation of the
consolidated financial statements that give a true and fair
view in accordance with HKFRS Accounting Standards
as issued by the Hong Kong Institute of Certified Public
Accountants (“HKICPA”) and the disclosure requirements of
the Hong Kong Companies Ordinance, and for such internal
control as the directors determine is necessary to enable the
preparation of consolidated financial statements that are free
from material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error.

In preparing the consolidated financial statements, the
directors are responsible for assessing the Group’s ability
to continue as a going concern, disclosing, as applicable,
matters related to going concern and using the going
concern basis of accounting unless the directors either
intend to liquidate the Group or to cease operations, or have
no realistic alternative but to do so.

The directors are also responsible for overseeing the Group’s
financial reporting process. The Audit Committee assists the
directors in discharging their responsibility in this regard.

AUDITOR’S RESPONSIBILITIES FOR THE AUDIT
OF THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

Our responsibility is to conduct an audit of the Group’s
consolidated financial statements in accordance with Hong
Kong Standards on Auditing (“HKSAs”) issued by the
HKICPA and to issue an auditor’s report. This report is made
solely to you, as a body, in accordance with the terms of our
engagement, and for no other purpose. We do not assume
responsibility towards or accept liability to any other person
for the contents of this report.
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Independent Auditor’s Report
L% B BT R

However, because of the matter described in the “Basis AM ' BHRESEHRENIFERER ZEE | —
for Disclaimer of Opinion” section of our report, we were Eiff#iMNEIE  EEKEEEEHEENEZ
not able to obtain sufficient appropriate audit evidence to EHEUIRHEBG GV BEREBZEENE
provide a basis for an audit opinion on these consolidated  #Eo

financial statements.

We are independent of the Group in accordance with the IRIEEZB Gt ATEMANBESIMEREST
HKICPA's “Code of Ethics for Professional Accountants” B (Tsf8l)) »EFBIRY S&EE L EEIT
(the “Code”), and we have fulfilled our other ethical <FBIRIRHMBEHEEES(E-

responsibilities in accordance with the Code.

BDO Limited ERIUGESEIMEBABERAT
Certified Public Accountants HE B EET

Lau Kin Tat, Terry 2=

Practising Certificate Number P07676 HEDBERIT PO7676

Hong Kong, 28 August 2025 &7 20255%8H28H
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Consolidated Statement of Comprehensive Income

mEEENmR

FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 MAY 2025 #; 2025558310 LLFE

2025 2024
20255 20244
Notes HK$’000 HK$'000
Hiat FET FAET
Revenue & 7 38,838 89,245
Changes in inventories Fa e 9 (25,946) (27,714)
Other income and gains H A A R W = 8 9,940 4,283
Advertising and marketing expenses EBEkEiHEBES (1,554) (14,650)
Employee benefits expense EERFIFHE 9 (9,032) (20,809)
Depreciation of property, plant ME -BERREITE
and equipment 15 (2,805) (5,589)
Depreciation of right-of-use assets FREEEITE 16(a) (6,159) (14,185)
Other expenses Hiihgxz (7,292) (20,323)
Reversal of write-off of trade receivables £ 5 F& Ui = T8 Hiff £4 435 [o] 2,226 =
Write-off of trade and other receivables i #4 B 5 & H {th & Ut =k 18 - (5,571)
Reversal of expected credit losses on B S MEMEKRRIETER
trade and other receivables, net EEEEERLZEE 511 361
Finance costs AR E Al A 11 (478) (1,166)
Loss before income tax FRFT1E R RIS 18 9 (1,751) (16,118)
Income tax expense FTi8ME 12 (2,071) (1,203)
Loss and total comprehensive income FABER
for the year 2 E U 48 & (3,822) (17,321)
Loss and total comprehensive income UTFATEGEFEFAEER
for the year attributable to: SR ARRE :
— Owners of the Company i N/NEIEZ Y =N (4,882) (17,140)
- Non-controlling interests —JEE RS 1,060 (181)
(3,822) (17,321)
Loss per share attributable to owners NABHEB AEML
of the Company SREE
- Basic and diluted (HK cents) — B AR EE B 14 (4.26) (16.94)
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Consolidated Statement of Financial Position

REMBIRRR

AS AT 31 MAY 2025 /$202555H831H

2025 2024
20255 20244
Notes HK$’000 HK$’000
K&t FET FAET
Non-current assets EREBEE
Property, plant and equipment YD R Bk 1 15 755 6,067
Right-of-use assets FREEE 16(a) 2,451 9,667
Deferred tax assets RETRIBE 19 - 1,079
Prepayment SENE O] 18 1,112 =
Deposits & 18 - 1,356
4,318 18,169
Current assets RENEE
Inventories =8 17 16,193 19,173
Trade and other receivables 85 R HEMEWRIE 18 9,539 11,315
Cash and cash equivalents BENRIEEEEY 20 1,549 1,816
27,281 32,304
Current liabilities mEEE
Trade and other payables B 5 KREAMERIE 21 8,054 18,725
Contract liabilities 5868 22 6,800 11,815
Amounts due to directors R EEHIE 25 4,916 188
Amounts due to non-controlling FEAT FE =R #E 7R 18
interests 25 - 2,660
Other borrowings HAMEmR 23 - 3,089
Loan from an ex-shareholder KE—HBIRRZER 24 802 2,563
Lease liabilities HEaE 16(b) 3,094 7,063
Current tax liabilities mMERIEEE 1,841 849
Provision EEg i 21 212 600
25,719 47,552
Net current assets/(liabilities) REBEE/ (AR 38 1,562 (15,248)
Total assets less current liabilities EESBERTHEE 5,880 2,921
Non-current liabilities ERBER
Lease liabilities HEaE 16(b) - 3,893
- 3,893
Net assets/(liabilities) BE/ (867 38 5,880 (972)
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Consolidated Statement of Financial Position

REMFBIRRR

AS AT 31 MAY 2025 /$202555831H

2025 2024
20255 20244
Notes HK$’000 HK$°000
btat FAET FAET
Equity =
Share capital fi& 75 26 1,222 1,019
Reserves EXi 28 7,459 3,294
Equity attributable to owners of ZiN/NETE F =N
the Company 8,681 4,313
Non-controlling interests JEEER 29 (2,801) (5,285)
Total equity/(deficiency in assets) migm (BEBH) 5,880 (972)
On behalf of the board of directors RKEESET
Ms. Liu Huijing Ms. Ma Liangping
EBHERL ERFRL
Director Director
EF BZE
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Consolidated Statement of Changes in Equity

FEEEEHR

FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 MAY 2025 &; £2025%5831H Lt FE

Attributable to owners of the Company

BATERNE
Total
Share Non- equity/
Share Share  Accumulated option Other controlling  (deficiency
capital premium* losses* reserve’ reserve’ Total interests in assets)
an/
k& Riva®  BaGRE  BREHE  HbEE oy FEREZ  (BESH)
HK$000 HKS'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HKS 000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HKS000
FEn 7 FEr FEr FEr FEr FEn FEr
MNote 26 MNote 286)  (Note 28(c)  (Note 28/g)  (Note 28)6)) (Note 29)
(W) (Waosp)  (Wose)  (Waosw)  (Ha2se) (Hiz29)
Balance as at 1 June 2023 17,978 108,587 (126,508) 6,835 8,682 16,574 (5,104) 10,470
Loss and total comprehensive income EWE&?QM@ ﬂl
for the year - - (17,140) - - (17,140) (181) (17,321)
Transaction costs atiibutable o~ EENSEREERFHNA
placing of new ordinary shares - (114) - - - (114) - (114)
Issue of ordinary shares by way BRRERTRILER
of placing 2,398 3,595 - - - 5,993 - 5,998
Capital reduction (19,357) - 19,367 - - - -
Balance as at 31 May 2024 and
1 June 2024 1,019 112,068 (124,291) 6,835 8,682 4,313 (5,285) (972)
Loss and total comprehensive EWE&?@&%EMW@
income for the year - - (4,882) - - (4,882) 1,060 (3,822)
Disposal of subsidiaries (Note 30) - - - - - - 1,424 1,424
Issue of ordinary shares
by share subscription 203 9,167 - - - 9,370 - 9,370
Transaction costs attributable to
share subscription - (120) - - - (120) - (120)
Balance as at 31 May 2025 1,222 121,115 (129,173) 6,835 8,682 8,681 (2,801) 5,880
# The total of these balances represents “reserves” in the consolidated ~ *# ZEERNRRBIEGR BRI RPIEE ©

statement of financial position.
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Consolidated Statement of Cash Flows
SFERERER

FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 MAY 2025 #; 2025558310 LLFE

2025 2024
20255 20244
HK$’000 HK$°000
FET FAET
Cash flows from operating activities REEFIBRERE
Loss before income tax FRETISMAIE 1R (1,751) (16,118)
Adjustments for: KEEEE
Bank interest income IRITFI B UL A (3) (16)
Imputed interest income on financial REBHEN AT EN S/
assets measured at amortised cost BEEEENEWA (89) (238)
Finance costs =N 478 1,166
Depreciation of property, plant and ME - -BEKRRETE
equipment 2,805 5,589
Depreciation of right-of-use assets FREEEITE 6,159 14,185
Gain on early termination and modification RERIEREFTTHEN
of leases W &= (20) 150)
Gain on disposal of subsidiaries HEKB AN KR (3,462) (127)
Gain on disposal of a cigar shop HE—BEmnEsNRE (711) =
Gain on disposal of property, plant and HEYX WEMRKREDN
equipment W &= (828) -
Reversal of provision of reinstatement & 18 BY 2~ 335 4 #2 [0
costs (388) (250)
Write-off of property, plant and equipment WA Y2 ~ B S B sk - 34
Write-off of trade and other receivables it 85 & 5 K E Ath FE W Fk 18 - 5,571
Write-back of other payables H & {3 =0 I8 $35 [0 (1,670) =
Reversal of write-off of trade receivables £ [0l i 55 7Y B 5 FE I FR 18 (2,226) (7)
Reversal of expected credit losses on B 5 M E M E R IETE R
trade and other receivables, net EEEBERFEE (511) (361)
Reversal of provision of staff benefit B T 18 F] # # #2 o] (67) -
Operating (loss)/profit before working EEETEHBaKE
capital changes (E538) im# (2,284) 9,278
Decrease/(increase) in inventories EFEERL (8 2,980 (10,886)
Decrease/(increase) in trade and other B 5 Kk H A E WA
receivables B (B 7,590 (5,316)
(Decrease)/increase in trade and other B 5 REMENRIE
payables CRiZb) /1N (8,370) 994
(Decrease)/increase in contract liabilities BREE OFL) /B (5,015) 11,815
Cash (used in)/generated from operations #&% (FiH) /FRiERE (5,099) 5,885
Income tax paid EfPTER - =
Net cash (used in)/generated from KEEE (FrA) FrifliE
operating activities FEE (5,099) 5,885
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Consolidated Statement of Cash Flows

mARERER

FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 MAY 2025 &; £2025%5831H Lt FE

2025 2024
20255 20244
HK$’000 HK$°000
FAET FAET
Cash flows from investing activities BEETHRERER=E
Purchases of property, plant and equipment BEE¥ - BE KRR HE (93) (2,087)
Disposal of property, plant and equipment HEYE BB MK E 2,401 =
Interest received BUFE 3 16
Proceeds from disposal of subsidiaries, net of HEM B AT FFERIE KD
cash and cash equivalents disposed of HEZRENBEEEY) (8) 96
Deposit paid for a potential acquisition MBEWBEEEN S (1,112) =
Net cash generated from/(used in) KE TS (FrA) ’RE
investing activities 28 1,191 (1,975)
Cash flows from financing activities MEFEBFAFRER=E
Repayments of other borrowings BEEMER (3,089) -
Proceeds from an ex-shareholder ARG RPT1SFRIE - 700
Repayments to an ex-shareholder EREINEE =N (1,761) (4,614)
Repayments of principal portion of BEREEESEAEHD
lease liabilities (5,009) (13,568)
Interest paid BFE (478) (1,025)
Advances from/(repayments to) directors REEZEEHNENR
(AESBER 4,728 (15)
Repayments to non-controlling interests BEZ2S S = - (40)
Proceeds from issue of ordinary shares BREERNETEER
by way of placing FTigs18 - 5,993
Proceeds from issue of ordinary shares HERMABEETEER
by share subscription FTigs18 9,370 =
Transaction costs attributable to placing BoEM L BB Z WA
of new ordinary shares - (114)
Transaction costs attributable to share A& 1D SR B8 FE (22 5 Bl AN
subscripton (_1_?9_) _________________ -
Net cash generated from/(used in) MEEHRE FTR) BE
financing activities AR 3,641 (12,683)
Net decrease in cash and cash RERREEEBYR L EEE
equivalents (267) (8,773)
Cash and cash equivalents at beginning F#RERALZEY
of the year 1,816 10,589
Cash and cash equivalents at end of EXRBEREEEEY
the year 1,549 1,816
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

AR e MR R MY EE

31 MAY 2025 202555531H

GENERAL

New Amante Group Limited was incorporated in
the Cayman Islands, as an exempted company with
limited liability under the Companies Law (as revised)
of the Cayman Islands. Its shares are listed on the
GEM of The Stock Exchange of Hong Kong Limited.
The address of its registered office is Windward 3,
Regatta Office Park, P.O. Box 1350, Grand Cayman
KT1-1108, Cayman Islands and its principal place of
business in Hong Kong is located at 25th Floor, China
Huarong Tower, 60 Gloucester Road, Wan Chai,
Hong Kong. The Company is an investment holding
company and the Group is principally engaged in the
operation of club, entertainment in Hong Kong. The
Company and its subsidiaries are collectively referred
to as the “Group”.

CHANGES IN ACCOUNTING POLICIES

(a) Adoption of new and amendments to
HKFRS Accounting standards - effective 1
June 2024

The Hong Kong Institute of Certified Public
Accountants (“HKICPA”) has issued a number
of amendments to HKFRS Accounting
Standards that are first effective for the current
accounting period of the Group:

— BN

MEEEEERADREHREHRE AT
= (B THEHETMM LA E
REBRAR -HRIONEER GRS
FT B BR A BIGEM k1 © E &F fift #i¥ =5 5 #h
It AWindward 3, Regatta Office Park,
P.O. Box 1350, Grand Cayman KT1-
1108, Cayman Islands’ MEEHETE
EEMBAMUREBAEFSELITEGO
P ERM KE25E A AB A —BEK
EERABRAEBFENREELE T
FT IR 25 KN R R ENB A RIE
TARER) -

THBEED

(a) FHAWITREEITEERBRSE
ZA| g #R - 1220246 81H
22K
EEEGsMA g ((EEEEMA
) EBEEAETRAEEEAS
STHIBEE RERNEEITEEY
B EER G ER]

Amendments to HKFRS 16
BEMBRESENFE165E (BFTAE)
Amendments to HKAS 1
SSRGS ENFE1R (BETE)
Amendments to HKAS 1
SSRGS ENFE1R (BETE)
Amendments to HKAS 7
and HKFRS 7
SR ENFTRREBMBREE
BIEE 7% (BRI A)
Amendments to HK Int 5 (Revised)

BEREH (BFT4) (BEE])

None of these new and amendments to HKFRS
Accounting Standards has a material impact
on the Group’s results and financial position for

the current or prior years.
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Lease Liability in a Sale and Leaseback
EROENHEASR

Classification of Liabilities as Current or Non-current
BEEDEA RN IERE

Non-current Liabilities with Covenants
G2 O S =K

Supplier Finance Arrangements

HEERRME RS

Presentation of Financial Statements — Classification
by the Borrower of a Term Loan that Contains a
Repayment on Demand Clause

MBRENZI —BRAEHERERERGRZEH
BRMNn%E

ZEMITREEITEBUBRS
G EBSENAERLAT
EXBEFERERMBRRE
TERTE-



Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

AR e MR R M EE

31 MAY 2025 2025%5531H

2. CHANGES IN ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued) 2. it HEEH @)

(a)

New and amendments to HKFRS (a) CilEMfEHEKEMNHTREE
Accounting standards that have been I EABMBFREEN TR
issued but are not yet effective

The following new and amendments to HKFRS AT REEIEBMBRE
Accounting to standards have been issued, but EH S EREEHREH RE
are not yet effective and have not been early WMo BREREFBIEZEEHRMN oK
adopted by the Group. The Group’s current EEEHABERNEENBBHERES
intention is to apply these changes on the date RREH) o

they become effective.

Amendments to HKAS 21 Lack of Exchangeability’
and HKFRS 1
BEEGTEANE21R K TRZ Pl ST HA
BEBMBRSERFE15 (BI14)
Amendments to HKFRS 9 Classification and Measurement of Financial Instruments?
and HKFRS 7
BEEMBREERFEIR K R T AN D HE & 22
BEBMBRSERE7I (BIH)
Amendments to HKFRS 9 Contract Referencing Nature-dependent Electricity?
and HKFRS 7

BEEVBREENFIRREEBHUE S REBEAEREEEHINEL?
SR FE7IR (BFTZ)

Amendments to HKFRS 1, HKFRS 7,  Annual improvements to HKFRS Accounting Standards —
HKFRS 9, HKFRS 10 and HKAS 7 Volume 11?2

SR BREENFIR - FBUHE EAVBREER G ER FEICE—F1152
WEEETR BB BRSER
FOF BB BIRSERFE105E &
SR G ERFTH (BT E)

HKFRS 18 Presentation and Disclosures in Financial Statements®
BEVBIRESERE185% B IRRNE S 3 28

HKFRS 19 Subsidiaries without Public Accountability: Disclosure®
BEVBIRSERE195% FAHZAEEMBAE © HKES

Amendments to HK Int 5 Presentation of Financial Statements — Classification

by the Borrower of a Term Loan that Contains a
Repayment on Demand Clause®

HAEAREFESR (BFTE) HBRERNEIN-—ERAEHERERERBERZEH
BRpy o iae
Amendments to HKFRS 10 Sale or Contribution of Assets between an Investor and
and HKAS 28 its Associate or Joint Venture*
AU BHREEAFI10FKREE KREEHHBENTNEGE X 2HHETEAEE
g5 2R 52858 (85T 4)
1 Effective for annual periods beginning on or after 1 1 R2025F1 A1 2 BB E
January 2025. EHRBEM
2 Effective for annual periods beginning on or after 1 2 R2026F1 A1 2 BB E
January 2026. EHAB AR
3 Effective for annual periods beginning on or after 1 3 R2027FE1B 1B 2 BHBNE
January 2027. EHMER -
4 Effective for annual periods beginning on or after a 4 RETCHHR 2B BENEELRR
date to be determined. A 55 o
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements
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31 MAY 2025 202555531H

2. CHANGES IN ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)

(a)

New and amendments to HKFRS
Accounting standards that have been
issued but are not yet effective (continued)

HKFRS 18 “Presentation and Disclosure in
Financial Statements”, which was issued by
the HKICPA in July 2024 supersedes HKAS
1 and will result in major consequential
amendments to HKFRS Accounting Standards
including HKAS 8 Basis of Preparation
of Financial Statements (renamed from
Accounting Policies, Changes in Accounting
Estimates and Errors). Even though HKFRS
18 will not have any effect on the recognition
and measurement of items in the consolidated
financial statements, it is expected to have
a significant effect on the presentation and
disclosure of certain items. These changes
include categorisation and sub-totals in the
statement of profit or loss, aggregation/
disaggregation and labelling of information,
and disclosure of management-defined
performance measures.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

2. CHANGES IN ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)

(b)

New and revised HKFRS Accounting
Standards that have been issued but are
not yet effective

Amendments to HKFRS 9 and HKFRS 7
“Classification and Measurement of Financial
Instruments”, clarify that a financial liability is
derecognised on the ‘settlement date’, i.e.,
when the related obligation is discharged or
cancelled or expires or the liability otherwise
qualifies for derecognition. They also introduce
an accounting policy option to derecognise
financial liabilities that are settled through an
electronic payment system before settlement
date if certain conditions are met. The
amendments also clarify how to assess
the contractual cash flow characteristics of
financial assets that include environmental,
social and governance (ESG)-linked features
and other similar contingent features and
the treatment of non-recourse assets and
contractually linked instruments (CLI).
Additional disclosures for financial assets and
liabilities with contractual terms that reference
a contingent event (including those that are
ESG-linked), and equity instruments classified
at fair value through other comprehensive
income are also introduced.

The directors of the Company is in progress of
assessing the potential impact of the above.
Other than HKFRS 18, the directors do not
anticipate that the application of all new and
amendments to HKFRS Accounting Standards
will have material impact on the consolidated
financial statements in the foreseeable future.

AR e MR R M EE

31 MAY 2025 2025%5531H

2. WHEEZD (H

(b)

B 1B A R E MBI ET R AE(E
AERMBREEN G ER

BEEVBREERFIORKER
MBREENF7E (B5TH) &
MIENDEKRFEIZBTTR
BRAEMEE R & IEHEEE - B8
B E B WA BUS SR > 5
ZEEUEMS AT 5 LRSS
Rt - ZFEFTRESI A
REE ETmEXERENEBER
T RIEBIEEEBZABES
BErxaMEENEsmas-
ZFEFT AN BB U0 A 51 1 & AR
EENGHNRESRETH 8F
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements
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3.

BASIS OF PREPARATION

(a)

(b)

(c)

Statement of compliance

The consolidated financial statements have
been prepared in accordance with Hong
Kong Financial Reporting Standards, Hong
Kong Accounting Standards (“HKASs”) and
Interpretations (hereinafter collectively referred
to as the “HKFRS Accounting Standards”)
issued by HKICPA and the disclosure
requirements of the Hong Kong Companies
Ordinance. In addition, the consolidated
financial statements include applicable
disclosures required by the Rules Governing
the Listing of Securities on the GEM of The
Stock Exchange of Hong Kong Limited.

Basis of measurement

The consolidated financial statements have
been prepared under the historical cost basis.

Going concern assumption

The Group incurred a net loss of
HK$3,822,000 for the year ended 31 May
2025, and as of that date, the Group only had
cash and cash equivalents of approximately
HK$1,549,000. In addition, the night club
operated by the Group ceased operations
since 4 August 2024 due to the expiration
of the lease and the Group disposal of a
cigar shop in April 2025 (note 8), the Group
recorded a significant decline in revenue by
approximately 56.5%.
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3.

(a)

(b)

(c)
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

3. BASIS OF PREPARATION (continued)

(c)

Going concern assumption (continued)

In view of these circumstances, the directors of
the Company have given careful consideration
of the liquidity and future cash flows of
the Group in assessing the Group’s ability
to continue as a going concern. For this
purpose, management has prepared a cash
flow forecast, which covers a period of 18
months from the year end date of 31 May
2025 (the “Forecast Period”) with plans and
measures to mitigate the liquidity pressure and
to improve its financial positions. Major plans
and measures will be taken by the directors of
the Company include, but not limited to, the
following:

(i) In August 2025, the Group entered
into a loan facility agreement with
a shareholder for an amount of
HK$20,000,000 for 24 months. The
Group will utilise this facility to support
its liquidity needs;

(ii) From June to August 2025, the Group
received financial support amounting
to approximately HK$2,400,000 in
aggregate from a director of the
Company; and

(iii) The directors will strengthen to
implement measures aiming at
improving the working capital and cash
flows of the Group, including closely
monitoring the general administrative
expenses and operating costs.

AR e MR R M EE

31 MAY 2025 2025%5531H

3. RUBE®W

(c)
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31 MAY 2025 202555531H

3.

BASIS OF PREPARATION (continued)

(c)

(d)

Going concern assumption (continued)

Based on the above, the directors of the
Company are of the opinion that the Group will
have sufficient working capital to finance its
operations and to meet its financial obligations
over the Forecast Period as and when they fall
due. Accordingly, the directors considered that
it is appropriate to prepare the consolidated
financial statements on a going concern basis.

However, the validity of the going concern
assumption is dependent upon the successful
outcome of the Group’s plans and measures,
including:

(i) the loan facility from the shareholder
can be drawn down successfully as and
when necessary; and

(ii) the successful implementation of the
cost control measures to improve the
Group’s working capital and cash flows.

These events or conditions indicate that a
material uncertainty exists that may cast
significant doubt on the Group’s ability to
continue as a going concern, and therefore
it may be unable to realise its assets and
discharge its liabilities in the normal course of
business.

Should the Group be unable to continue as
a going concern, adjustments would have to
be made to reduce the carrying values of the
Group’s assets to their net realisable amounts,
to provide for any further liabilities which
might arise, and to classify non-current assets
and liabilities as current assets and liabilities
respectively. The effects of these adjustments
have not been reflected in these consolidated
financial statements.

Functional and presentation currency

The consolidated financial statements are
presented in Hong Kong dollars (“HK$”), which
is the same as the functional currency of the
Company and its subsidiaries, and all values
are rounded to the nearest thousands, except
when otherwise indicated.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

4. ACCOUNTING POLICIES

(a)

Basis of consolidation and non-controlling
interests

The consolidated financial statements
comprise the financial statements of the
Company and its subsidiaries (the “Group”).
Inter-company transactions and balances
between group companies together with
unrealised profits are eliminated in full
in preparing the consolidated financial
statements. Unrealised losses are also
eliminated unless the transaction provides
evidence of impairment on the asset
transferred, in which case the loss is
recognised in profit or loss.

Non-controlling interests in subsidiaries
are identified separately from the Group’s
equity and are initially measured at their
proportionate share of the fair value of the
acquiree’s identifiable net assets at the date of
acquisition. Subsequent to initial recognition,
the carrying amount of non-controlling interests
that represent present ownership interests
in the subsidiary is the amount of those
interests at initial recognition plus such non-
controlling interest’s share of subsequent
changes in equity. Non-controlling interests
are presented in the consolidated statement
of financial position within equity, separately
from equity attributable to owners of the
Company. Profit or loss and each component
of other comprehensive income is attributed
to the owners of the Company and to the
non-controlling interests, even if this results in
those non-controlling interests having a deficit
balance.

Changes in the Group’s interest in a subsidiary
that do not result in a loss of control are
accounted for as equity transactions. When
the Group loses control over a subsidiary, it
derecognises the assets and liabilities of the
subsidiary, and any related non-controlling
interest and other components of equity. Any
resulting gain or loss is recognised in profit
or loss. Any interest retained in the former
subsidiary is measured at fair value when
control is lost.

AR e MR R M EE

31 MAY 2025 2025%5531H

4. TEHHBEER

(a)

REBERIFERERS

REMBREREREEARFARAN
BrE (TH&EEH) MHHRE-
EEARBDBER G MEHFER K
BREMNNERESMHTRE
RE#HE RERBERETEY
HoRIFAERARSBTREHEER
EHBERE ELLERT  EE

AE L pE S
RIEmER

RUEBE  RNEB LR ZIFE
PRtem A EE o B H
Al BB ERBERES 28
WA BEFELAFERMMGEL
PIStE -RATBRAVE > FIER
BmpIREE (AREFRHEA
BIMNERAEED) ARER=EN
P SRR A= B A IR E R
o EREa REHNE D -
FEREDNGEEMHRRTERL
BmRNE25 BXRTEE AR
HEmoFAEY BakHME
HRZHNSEXBIEBERER
BIEA ANRIFER B BN I
PEERFEREGELE GG
Bf o

rEERNBABDZEaBE
M AEERRLIFRERR S
AlR-BEXAEBRXREMNBLATZ
EHE HEXRIERIANE LS
ZEERBRE -EABEMIFER
B R Em B EMAAR D - P
EEZEMREHBERN BT
- EMERERANERDR
Bam bR REERRFRATE

st

2025 ANNUAL REPORT %2 109



Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

4 A

17 o = |

FAFsERAR MYEE

31 MAY 2025 202555531H

4.

ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)

(b)

(c)

Subsidiaries

A subsidiary is an investee over which the
Company is able to exercise control. The
Company controls an investee if all three of
the following elements are present: (i) power
over the investee, (i) exposure, or rights, to
variable returns from the investee, and (iii) the
ability to use its power to affect those variable
returns. Control is reassessed whenever facts
and circumstances indicate that there may be
a change in any of these elements of control.

In the Company’s statement of financial
position, investments in subsidiaries are
stated at cost less impairment loss, if any. The
results of subsidiaries are accounted for by the
Company on the basis of dividend received
and receivable.

Property, plant and equipment

Property, plant and equipment are stated
at cost less accumulated depreciation and
accumulated impairment losses. The cost
of property, plant and equipment includes
its purchase price and the costs directly
attributable to the acquisition of the items.

Subsequent costs are included in the asset’s
carrying amount or recognised as a separate
asset, as appropriate, only when it is probable
that future economic benefits associated with
the item will flow to the Group and the cost of
the item can be measured reliably. The carrying
amount of the replaced part is derecognised.
All other repairs and maintenance are
recognised as an expense in profit or loss
during the financial period in which they are
incurred.

110 New Amante Group Limited $EEEEERAT

4.

BEEER ()

(b)

(c)

Bt B 2 5]

Bt /BB R B) 2 2 2 B) BT 17 i 2 1 4
WEREHR - NI =BTtEEM
mER RABERKEHR (i)
EREFMREHR (I)KZXHE

F 5 R(iESAFMBEBRNDEEZ
FOEOKR-EEFERBERRE
TERZFERNTRAIERE
RIZAE M fE o

RERBDHBRIEAR K E
AANRERETREREBRE
(WmAE) ik -WE AT EEH
ERBRBREEBERREEEA
fRe

ME--BERRE

Y2~ R B K 5k e ¥8 B A R R 5T
TERRFBAEBERIEK -9
X2 - BERRBEREICEBEE
REIEEE N ERBGRAE -

BEMUASTABERBEIER
% 78 B Ffr M 75 B9 2R 2R A % # 2 7T
FEMAXREBBEZEE R ARD
SEREIRABILIEE (WEB
) - REBEMBONREEEALE
- FTAEHEMEERFEOR
EENVHERBEREaRE SR
%o



Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

4. ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)

(c)

Property, plant and equipment (continued)

Property, plant and equipment are depreciated
so as to write off their cost net of expected
residual value over their estimated useful
lives on a straight-line basis. The useful lives,
residual value and depreciation method are
reviewed, and adjusted if appropriate, at the
end of each reporting period. The principal
annual rates are as follows:

20% and the lease
term, whichever is
the shorter

Furniture, fixtures and 20%
equipment

Motor vehicles

Leasehold
improvements

20%

The gain or loss on disposal of an item of
property, plant and equipment is the difference
between the net disposal proceeds and its
carrying amount, and is recognised in profit or
loss on disposal.
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4.

ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)

(d)

Leasing
Accounting as a lessee

All leases are capitalised in the statement of
financial position as right-of-use assets and
lease liabilities, except for (i) leases which are
short-term leases and/or (ii) leases for which
the underlying asset is of low-value for which
the Group has elected not to recognise. The
lease payments associated with those leases
have been expensed on straight-line basis over
the lease term.

Right-of-use asset

The right-of-use asset is recognised at cost
and would comprise: (i) the amount of the initial
measurement of the lease liability (see below
for the accounting policy to account for lease
liability); (i) any lease payments made at or
before the commencement date, less any lease
incentives received; (iii) any initial direct costs
incurred by the lessee; and (iv) an estimate
of costs to be incurred by the lessee in
dismantling and removing the underlying asset
to the condition required by the terms and
conditions of the lease. The Group measures
the right-to-use assets at cost, less any
accumulated depreciation and any impairment
losses, and adjusted for any remeasurement of
lease liability. The Group accounts for leased
properties which is held for own use under
HKFRS 16 and are depreciated over the lease
term on a straight-line basis.

Lease liability

The lease liability is recognised at the present
value of the lease payments that are not paid
at the date of commencement of the lease.
The lease payments are discounted using the
interest rate implicit in the lease, if that rate
can be readily determined. If that rate cannot
be readily determined, the Group uses the
lessee’s incremental borrowing rate.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

4. ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)

(d)

(e)

Leasing (continued)

Lease liability (continued)

Subsequent to the commencement date,
the Group measures the lease liability by:
(i) increasing the carrying amount to reflect
interest on the lease liability; (i) reducing the
carrying amount to reflect the lease payments
made; and (iii) remeasuring the carrying
amount to reflect any reassessment or lease
modifications, or to reflect revised in-substance
fixed lease payments.

Financial instruments

()

Financial assets

A financial asset (unless it is a trade
receivable without a significant financing
component) is initially measured at
fair value plus, for an item not at fair
value through profit or loss, transaction
costs that are directly attributable
to its acquisition or issue. A trade
receivable without a significant financing
component is initially measured at the
transaction price.

Debt instruments that are held for
collection of contractual cash flows
where those cash flows represent
solely payments of principal and
interest are measured at amortised
cost. Financial assets at amortised
cost are subsequently measured using
the effective interest method. Interest
income is recognised using the effective
interest method, and is calculated
by applying the effective interest
rate to the gross carrying amount
of the debt instruments when the
asset is not credit-impaired. For debt
instruments that have become credit-
impaired, interest income is calculated
by applying the effective interest rate
to the amortised cost of the financial
asset. Interest income, foreign exchange
gains and losses and impairment are
recognised in profit or loss. Any gain or
loss on derecognition is recognised in
profit or loss.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements
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4.

ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)

(e)

Financial instruments (continued)

(i)

Impairment loss on financial assets

The Group measured loss allowances
for expected credit loss (“ECLs”) on
trade receivables and other financial
assets measured at amortised cost.

ECLs are a probability-weighted
estimate of credit losses. Credit losses
are measured as the difference between
all contractual cash flows that are due
to the Group in accordance with the
contract and all the cash flows that the
Group expects to receive. The shortfall
is then discounted at an approximation
to the assets’ original effective interest
rate.

The Group measured loss allowances
for trade receivables using HKFRS 9
simplified approach and has calculated
ECLs based on lifetime ECLs. The
Group has established a provision
matrix that is based on the Group’s
historical credit loss experience,
adjusted for forward-looking factors
specific to the debtors and the
economic environment.

For other debt financial assets, ECLs are
based on lifetime ECLs excepts when
there has not been a significant increase
in credit risk since initial recognition, in
which case the allowance will be based
on the 12 months ECLs.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

4. ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)
(e) Financial instruments (continued)

(i)

Impairment loss on financial assets
(continued)

Significant increase in credit risk

When determining whether the credit
risk of a financial asset has increased
significantly since initial recognition
and when estimating ECLs, the Group
considers reasonable and supportable
information that is relevant and
available without undue cost or effort.
This includes both quantitative and
qualitative information analysis, based
on the Group’s historical experience
and informed credit assessment and
including forward-looking information.

In particular, the following information
is taken into account when assessing
whether credit risk has increased
significantly:

o an actual or expected significant
deterioration in the financial
instrument’s external (if available)
or internal credit rating;

o significant deterioration in
external market indicators of
credit risk, e.g. a significant
increase in the credit spread, the
credit default swap prices for the
debtor;

o existing or forecast adverse
changes in business, financial
or economic conditions that are
expected to cause a significant
decrease in the debtor’s ability to
meet its debt obligations;
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements
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4.

ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)
(e) Financial instruments (continued)

(i)

Impairment loss on financial assets
(continued)

Significant increase in credit risk
(continued)

o an actual or expected significant
deterioration in the operating
results of the debtor;

o an actual or expected significant
adverse change in the regulatory,
economic, or technological
environment of the debtor that
results in a significant decrease
in the debtor’s ability to meet its
debt obligations.

Irrespective of the outcome of the above
assessment, the Group presumes that
the credit risk has increased significantly
since initial recognition when contractual
payments are more than 30 days past
due, unless the Group has reasonable
and supportable information that
demonstrates otherwise.

The Group regularly monitors the
effectiveness of the criteria used
to identify whether there has been
a significant increase in credit risk
and revises them as appropriate to
ensure that the criteria are capable of
identifying significant increase in credit
risk before the amount becomes past
due.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

4. ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)
(e) Financial instruments (continued)

(i)

Impairment loss on financial assets
(continued)

Definition of default

For internal credit risk management,
the Group considers an event of default
occurs when information developed
internally or obtained from external
sources indicates that the debtor is
unlikely to pay its creditors, including
the Group, in full. Irrespective of the
above, the Group considers that default
has occurred when a financial asset is
more than 90 days past due unless the
Group has reasonable and supportable
information to demonstrate that a
more lagging default criterion is more
appropriate.

A financial asset is credit-impaired when
one or more events of default that have
a detrimental impact on the estimated
future cash flows of that financial asset
have occurred. Evidence that a financial
asset is credit-impaired includes
observable data about the following
events:

(a) significant financial difficulty of
the issuer or the borrower;

(b) a breach of contract, such as a
default or past due event;

(c) the lender(s) of the borrower, for
economic or contractual reasons
relating to the borrower’s financial
difficulty, having granted to the
borrower a concession(s) that
the lender(s) would not otherwise
consider; or

(d) it is becoming probable that the
borrower will enter bankruptcy or
other financial reorganisation.
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4.

ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)

(e)

Financial instruments (continued)

(i)

Impairment loss on financial assets
(continued)

Definition of default (continueq)

The Group recognises an impairment
gain or loss in profit or loss for
all financial instruments with the
corresponding adjustment recognised
through a loss allowance account.

Werite-off policy

The Group writes off a financial asset
when there is information indicating that
the debtor is in severe financial difficulty
and there is no realistic prospect of
recovery, e.g. when the debtor has been
placed under liquidation or has entered
into bankruptcy proceedings. Financial
assets written off may still be subject
to enforcement activities under the
Group’s recovery procedures, taking into
account legal advice where appropriate.
Any recoveries made are recognised in
profit or loss.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

4. ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)
(e) Financial instruments (continued)

(iii)

(iv)

(v)

Financial liabilities

The Group classifies its financial
liabilities at amortised cost. Financial
liabilities at amortised costs are
initially measured at fair value, net of
directly attributable costs incurred and
subsequently measured at amortised
cost, using the effective interest
method. The related interest expense is
recognised in profit or loss.

Gains or losses are recognised in
profit or loss when the liabilities are
derecognised as well as through the
amortisation process.

Equity instruments

Equity instruments issued by the
Company are recorded at the proceeds
received, net of direct issue costs.

Derecognition

The Group generally derecognises a
financial asset when the contractual
rights to the future cash flows in relation
to the financial asset expire.

Financial liabilities are derecognised
when the obligation specified in
the relevant contract is discharged,
cancelled or expires.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements
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4.

ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)

(f)

(9)

Inventories

Inventories are initially recognised at cost,
and subsequently at the lower of cost and net
realisable value. Cost comprises all costs of
purchase and other costs incurred in bringing
the inventories to their present location
and condition. Cost is calculated using the
weighted average method. Net realisable value
represents the estimated selling price in the
ordinary course of business less the estimated
costs necessary to make the sale.

Revenue recognition

()

(i)

Sales of tobacco, food and beverage

Revenue from sales of tobacco,
food and beverage is recognised at
a point in time when the customer
takes possession of and accepts the
products. There is generally only one
performance obligation. Payment of the
transaction price is due immediately
when the tobacco, food and beverage
are transferred to the customers. For
wholesales of beverage, invoices are
generally payables within 7 days.

Consultancy services

Consultancy services represent a single
performance obligation that is a series
of distinct services that are substantially
the same and have the same pattern of
transfer to the customer. The customers
simultaneously receive and consume
the benefits provided by the Group’s
performance as the Group performs
and therefore the services are satisfied
over time. The Group satisfied the
performance obligation and recognises
revenue over time with reference to the
actual service period passed relative to
the total contract period.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

4. ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)
(9) Revenue recognition (continued)

(iii)

Commission fee income

The Group has acted as an agent to
arrange for the sales of jewellery. The
Group is merely responsible for helping
the suppliers to arrange those goods
to be transferred to the customers.
The Group has no bearing for inventory
risks because the Group does not have
ownership of jewellery; and has no
discretion in establishing the prices. The
Group has no control on these specified
goods before they were transferred to
the customers and only act as the agent
to help the supplier to distribute those
goods to the customers.

When the Group acts as an agent, it
recognises revenue in the amount of any
commission to which it expects to be
entitled when it satisfied its obligation to
arrange those goods to be transferred
to the customers.
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4.

ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)

(h)

U]

Contract liabilities

A contract liability represents the Group’s
obligation to transfer goods to a customer for
which the Group has received consideration
(or an amount of consideration is due) from the
customer. Contract liabilities are recognised
in the consolidated statement of financial
position until the control of the related good is
transferred to the customer.

Income taxes

Income taxes for the year comprise current tax
and deferred tax. Income taxes are recognised
in profit or loss except when they relate to
items recognised in other comprehensive
income, in which case the taxes are also
recognised in other comprehensive income or
when they relate to items recognised directly
in equity, in which case the taxes are also
recognised directly in equity.

Current tax is based on the profit or loss from
ordinary activities adjusted for items that are
non-assessable or disallowable for income tax
purposes and is calculated using tax rates that
have been enacted or substantively enacted
at the end of reporting period. The amount of
current tax payable or receivable is the best
estimate of the tax amount expected to be
paid or received that reflects any uncertainty
related to income tax.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

4. ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)

U]

1)

Income taxes (continued)

Deferred tax is recognised in respect of
temporary differences. Deferred tax assets are
recognised to the extent that it is probable
that taxable profits will be available against
which deductible temporary differences can
be utilised, provided that the deductible
temporary differences are not arises from
initial recognition of assets and liabilities
in a transaction other than in a business
combination that affects neither taxable profit
nor the accounting profit and does not give
rise to equal taxable and deductible temporary
differences.

Deferred tax is measured at the tax rates
appropriate to the expected manner in which
the carrying amount of the asset or liability is
realised or settled and that have been enacted
or substantively enacted at the end of reporting
period, and reflects any uncertainty related to
income taxes.

Employee benefits
(i) Short term employee benefit

Short term employee benefits are
employee benefits that are expected to
be settled wholly before twelve months
after the end of the annual reporting
period in which the employees render
the related service. Short term employee
benefits are recognised in the year
when the employees render the related
service.

(ii) Defined contribution retirement plan

Contributions to defined contribution
retirement plans are recognised as
an expense in profit or loss when the
services are rendered by the employees.
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4.

ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)

(k)

U]

Share-based payments

Where share options are awarded to
employees and others providing similar
services, the fair value of the services received
is measured by reference to the fair value of
the options at the date of grant. Such fair
value is recognised in profit or loss with a
corresponding increase in the share option
reserve within equity.

Impairment of assets (other than financial
assets)

At the end of each reporting period, the Group
reviews the carrying amounts of the following
assets to determine whether there is any
indication that those assets have suffered
an impairment loss or an impairment loss
previously recognised no longer exists or may
have decreased:

o property, plant and equipment;
o right-of-use assets; and
° investment in subsidiaries

If the recoverable amount (i.e. the greater of
the fair value less costs of disposal and value
in use) of an asset is estimated to be less than
its carrying amount, the carrying amount of the
asset is reduced to its recoverable amount. An
impairment loss is recognised as an expense
immediately.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

4. ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)

U]

(m)

Impairment of assets (other than financial
assets) (continued)

Where an impairment loss subsequently
reverses, the carrying amount of the asset
is increased to the revised estimate of its
recoverable amount, to the extent that the
increased carrying amount does not exceed
the carrying amount that would have been
determined had no impairment loss been
recognised for the asset in prior years. A
reversal of an impairment loss is recognised in
profit or loss immediately.

Value in use is based on the estimated future
cash flows expected to be derived from the
asset or cash generating unit, discounted to
their present value using a pre-tax discount
rate that reflects current market assessments
of the time value of money and the risks
specific to the asset or cash generating unit.

Provisions and contingent liabilities

Provisions are recognised for liabilities of
uncertain timing or amount when the Group
has a legal or constructive obligation arising
as a result of a past event, which it is probable
that it will result in an outflow of resources
embodying economic benefits that can be
reliably estimated.

Where it is not probable that an outflow of
resources embodying economic benefits
will be required, or the amount cannot be
estimated reliably, the obligation is disclosed
as a contingent liability, unless the probability
of outflow of resources embodying economic
benefits is remote. Possible obligations, the
existence of which will only be confirmed by
the occurrence or non-occurrence of one
or more future events, are also disclosed as
contingent liabilities unless the probability of
outflow of resources embodying economic
benefits is remote.
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4.

ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)

(n)

(o)

Cash and cash equivalents

Cash and cash equivalents include cash at
bank and in hand, and short-term highly liquid
investments with original maturities of three
months or less that are readily convertible into
known amounts of cash and which are subject
to an insignificant risk of changes in value.

Segment reporting

The Group identifies operating segments and
prepares segment information based on the
regular internal financial information reported
to the executive directors for their decision
about resources allocation to the Group’s
business components and for their review of
the performance of those components. The
business components in the internal financial
information reported to the executive directors
are determined following the Group’s major
product and service lines.

The measurement policies the Group use for
reporting segment results under HKFRS 8
are the same as those used in its financial
statements prepared under HKFRS Accounting
Standards, except interest income, unallocated
finance costs, unallocated corporate income
and gains/(losses) and unallocated corporate
expenses, which are not directly attributable
to the business activities of any operating
segment, are not included in arriving at the
operating results of the operating segment.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

CRITICAL ACCOUNTING JUDGEMENTS
AND KEY SOURCES OF ESTIMATION
UNCERTAINTY

In the application of the Group’s accounting policies,
the directors are required to make judgements,
estimates and assumptions about the carrying
amounts of assets and liabilities that are not readily
apparent from other sources. The estimates and
associated assumptions are based on historical
experience and other factors that are considered to
be relevant. Actual results differ from these estimates.

The estimates and underlying assumptions are
reviewed on an ongoing basis. Revisions to
accounting estimates are recognised in the period in
which the estimate is revised if the revision affects
only that period, or in the period of the revision and
future periods if the revision affects both current and
future periods.

Critical judgement on going concern assumption

As disclosed in note 3(c), the consolidated financial
statements have been prepared on a going concern
basis. The appropriateness of the going concern
basis is assessed after taking into account all
relevant available information about the future of the
Group, including the cash flow forecast of the Group
covering a period up to 30 November 2026. Such
forecast about the future, at a particular point of time,
about the future outcome of events and conditions,
which inherently involves various assumptions and
uncertainties. In the preparation of the cash flow
forecast of the Company, the directors assumed that
the loan facility granted by the shareholder could be
drawn down successfully as and when necessary.
Actual results could differ significantly, and hence it
may cast significant doubt in relation to the going
concern assumption.
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CRITICAL ACCOUNTING JUDGEMENTS
AND KEY SOURCES OF ESTIMATION
UNCERTAINTY (continued)

The key sources of estimation uncertainty

In addition to the information disclosed elsewhere in
these consolidated financial statements, other key
sources of uncertainty at the end of each reporting
period, that have a significant risk of causing a
material adjustment to the carrying amounts of
assets and liabilities within the next financial year, are
discussed below:

(i) Impairment loss for trade and other
receivables

The Group estimates impairment losses of
trade and other receivables resulting from the
inability of the customers and other debtors
to make the required payments in accordance
with accounting policy stated in Note 4(e)
(ii). The Group bases the estimates on the
ageing of the receivable balances, debtors’
creditworthiness and historical write-off
experience. If the financial condition of the
customers and debtors were to deteriorate,
actual credit loss would be higher than
estimated.

(ii) Impairment loss for non-financial assets

The Group assesses at the end of the reporting
period whether non-financial assets suffered
any impairment or previously recognised loss
may decrease in accordance with accounting
policy stated in Note 4(l). The non-financial
assets are reviewed for impairment or reversal
of impairment whenever events or changes
in circumstances indicate that the carrying
amount of the assets exceeds its recoverable
amount or vice versa. The determination of
recoverable amount requires an estimation
of future cash flows and the selection of
appropriate discount rates. Changes in these
estimates could have a significant impact on
the carrying amount of assets and could result
in additional impairment charge or reversal of
impairment in future periods, where applicable.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

CRITICAL ACCOUNTING JUDGEMENTS
AND KEY SOURCES OF ESTIMATION
UNCERTAINTY (continued)

The key sources of estimation uncertainty
(continued)

(i)

(i)

Impairment loss for non-financial assets
(continued)

Determining whether an item of property,
plant and equipment and right-of-use assets
is impaired or previously recognised loss
may decrease requires an estimate of the
recoverable amount of the relevant cash-
generating unit to which the asset belongs,
which is the higher of the value in use or fair
value less costs of disposal. The value in use
calculation requires the Group to estimate
the future cash flows expected to arise from
the cash-generating unit and a suitable
discount rate in order to calculate the present
value. Where the actual future cash flows are
less than expected or change in facts and
circumstances which results in the downward
revision of future cash flows, a material
impairment loss may arise.

As at 31 May 2025, the carrying amount of
property, plant and equipment and right-of-use
assets was HK$755,000 (2024: HK$6,067,000)
and HK$2,451,000 (2024: HK$9,667,000)
respectively.

Provision for reinstatement costs

Provision for reinstatement costs are estimated
at the inception of leasing property with
reinstatement clause and reassessed at the
end of each reporting period with reference to
the latest available quotation from independent
contractors. Estimation based on current
market information may vary over time and
could differ from the actual reinstatement
cost upon closures or relocation of existing
premises occupied by the Group. As at 31
May 2025, the carrying amounts of provision
for reinstatement costs are approximately
HK$212,000 (2024: HK$600,000).
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6. SEGMENT INFORMATION

The chief operating decision maker is defined as
executive directors of the Company. The Group
has identified its operating segment based on
the regular internal financial information reported
to the Company’s executive directors for their
decisions about resources allocation and review of
performance.

Each operating segment are managed separately as
each business offers different products and services
and requires different business strategies. For the
year ended 31 May 2024, the Group has identified
the following two operating and reportable segments:

. The operation of club and entertainment
business
. Securities investment

For the year ended 31 May 2025, the Group has only
one operating and reporting segment, the operation
of club and entertainment business, as the segment
of securities investment was abandoned during the
year.

Disaggregation of revenue from contracts with

customers within the scope of HKFRS 15 is as
follows:

Revenue from contracts with

SEER
TEEERARECMERETATNNT
EFXZ AEERBRAEARATDRTESTE
HE2RANERDERR MR RIEHN
NEMBENEEEEDS -

BN S EBETIRMHNE R KRR KRR
EMEBRRBEA— WIS EEDBTLD
HEIE-H E2024F5831HILEFE >
SEBEDHRFUTMEEERIZ{RS

=N

. BERE

B E2025FE5H31HIEEE  AREE
KRESHERERARE AEEES—
BEB RS DI BN E AT R iR %

REBMBREGERNF155RBERIZK
BREZERITYZGHANKREDFUMT -

EERMBREZENF157RN

customers within the scope of #ET KRBEEZEAHNMN

HKFRS 15: Weam
Operation of club and entertainment 4% & & Fff & §2 24 2 35
business

2025 2024
20254 20244
HK$’000 HK$'000
FET FET
38,838 89,245

Timing of revenue recognised under HKFRS 15:

Operation of club and 4% o Py o YR M TS

entertainment business
At a point in time

R — R R

REEBMBREERFEI5RERI N
m B A

2025 2024
20254 20244
HK$’000 HK$’'000
FET FET
38,838 89,245
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements
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SEGMENT INFORMATION (continued) 6. HWEN B
Segment profit or loss, assets and liabilities (a) SEEE - EEREE
Operation
of club and
entertainment
business Total
REERK 4mst
Yl 8 22 3%
HK$°000 HK$°000
FET FET
For the year ended 31 May 2025 & 2025458310 L FE
Revenue from external customers ShED % B U 2 38,838 38,838
Reportable segment profit o 2H D EREF] 3,599 3,599
Other income and gains H WA B W = 4,480 4,480
Advertising and marketing expenses B &S i (1,084) (1,084)
Employee benefits expense EERMMEX (2,602) (2,602)
Depreciation of property, plant and ~ #1% R KB HEITE
equipment (2,780) (2,780)
Depreciation of right-of-use assets  FRBEERE (5,675) (5,675)
Other expenses HMFE> (3,976) (3,976)
Reversal of write-off of trade B 5 W R I i #E 5 O]
receivables 2,226 2,226
Reversal of expected credit losses on B 5 R EHMEWRIETEE &
trade and other receivables, net 5384 [0 3 28 509 509
Finance costs A& B AN (391) (391)
Additions of non-current assets REFERBEE (93) (93)
As at 31 May 2025 R2025%5H831H
Reportable segment assets AIE2ERDIEE 29,121 29,121
Reportable segment liabilities E2HnEaE (21,803) (21,803)
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6. SEGMENT INFORMATION (continued) 6.

(a)

Segment profit or loss, assets and liabilities

(continued)

SEER (@

(@ DEHEZ-BERER (@

Operation
of club and
entertainment Securities
business investment Total
K28k
LEE S BHRE a5t
HK$ 000 HK$ 000 HK$ 000
FET FET FET
For the year ended 31 May 2024 HE2024F5A310 L EE
Revenue from external customers NP B A 89,245 - 89,245
Reportable segment (loss)/profit 2R D (BB /5H (5,668) 228 (5,440)
Other income and gains HE A e & 3,916 228 4,144
Advertising and marketing expenses BEREHAZ (14,608) - (14,608)
Employee benefits expense EERA X (14,035) - (14,05)
Depreciation of property, plant and ME BERRERE
equipment (5,575) - (5,575)
Depreciation of right-of-use assets FEREENE (13,355) - (13,355)
Other expenses HB% (17,572) - (17,572)
Write-off of trade and other receivables iS5 E 2 R EMEKTIE (5,230) - (5,230)
Provision for expected credit losses on BoREMERFERSES
trade and other receivables, net BERERE 238 - 238
Finance costs RE R 978) - (978)
Additions of non-current assets REFRDEE (13,190) - (13,190)
As at 31 May 2024 1R202455831H
Reportable segment assets E2RAHEE 48,243 = 48,243
Reportable segment liabilities AE2RAHEE (41,488) (18) (41,508)
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SEGMENT INFORMATION (continued) 6.

(b)

Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

Reconciliation of reportable segment profit (b)

or loss, assets and liabilities
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DEER (8
TEHABEE HERGBERER

2025 2024
20255 20244
HK$’000 HK$°000
FEIT FAET
Loss before income tax FRET1S 0 A1 B 18
Reportable segment profit/(loss) B 29 EiEF] (E518) 3,599 (5,440)
Other income and gains H AU A K I8 &= 5,460 139
Advertising and marketing BEEREHKBZ
expenses (470) (42)
Employee benefits expense BERMEX (6,430) (6,774)
Depreciation of property, plant  #1%¥ -HE KRBT E
and equipment (25) (14)
Depreciation of right-of-use FREEERE
assets (484) (830)
Unallocated corporate expenses k% Bo b 2B % (3,316) (2,751)
Write-off of trade and other i H B 5 K H Ath FE W FR I8
receivables - (341)
Reversal of expected credit B REMEWFIETEREE
losses on trade and other Ei=E - CIDER
receivables, net 2 123
Finance costs B ES A A (87) (188)
Consolidated loss before FRPTISMAIAZ B E5 18
income tax (1,751) (16,118)
2025 2024
20255 20244
HK$’000 HK$’000
FET FET
Assets BE
Reportable segment assets AE2WRDEEE 29,121 48,243
Unallocated corporate assets APEELESE 2,478 2,230
Consolidated total assets AWM BE 31,599 50,473
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6. SEGMENT INFORMATION (continued) 6. SOHEN B

(b)  Reconciliation of reportable segment profit (b) FEHRSPEZ -BEREBEHRER

or loss, assets and liabilities (continued) (#&)
2025 2024
20255 20244
HK$’000 HK$°000
FAET FAET

Liabilities af&

Reportable segment liabilities AERNIEE (21,803) (41,506)
Unallocated corporate liabilities RO PR 2 & & (3,916) (9,939)
Consolidated total liabilities REEEE (25,719) (51,445)

The following is an analysis of the Group’s

WFRAERZE R I E S

revenue by the geographical locations of DR ER DT
customers:

2025 2024
20255 20244
HK$’000 HK$'000
FAET FAET
Hong Kong 548 21,168 89,245
The PRC s 17,670 -
38,838 89,245

The geographical location of the non-current
assets are located in Hong Kong.

Revenue attributed from customers that
accounted for 10% or more of the Group’s
total revenue during the years are as follows:

Revenue from clubs and RE TR R iR %
entertainment business

Customer “A” BATA |
Customer “B” ZRAIB]

ERBEENMBUEURSE

o

FARGAEBRBUTAI10%T A

FOEREENWEMOT
2025 2024
20255 20244
HK$’000 HK$'000
TAET TAET

EBH U m

12,227 -
5,443 -
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REVENUE 7. W=
Revenue from the Group’s principal activities during REFBRHKREHANEITEEZRKZ U
the reporting period is as follows: T
2025 2024
20255 20244
HK$’000 HK$°000
FET FET
Revenue from: TFEEN KRS :
Clubs and entertainment business P R IR S 2 7S
Sales of tobacco, food and beverage (EE-BRmAMIHE 38,211 88,301
Entrance fees ABZE - 13
Sponsorship income BB A 506 657
Others HAth 121 274
38,838 89,245
The following table provides information about trade TRIEMEEMEBEZERFEREEER
receivables and contract liabilities from contracts with EHNENEENER
customers:
2025 2024
20255 20244
HK$’000 HK$°000
FET FET
Trade receivables (Note 18) B 5 EUERIE (i5E18) - 902
Contract liabilities (Note 22) EREE ([:E22) 6,800 11,815
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8.

136

OTHER INCOME AND GAINS 8. HigA RIS
2025 2024
20255 20244
HK$’000 HK$'000
FET FET
Bank interest income RITH B A 3 16
Imputed interest income on financial FRBIE AT EW
assets measured at amortised cost SHEEHENEKRA 89 238
Gain on early termination and RERIERESTHEN W S
modification of leases 20 150
Gain on disposal of subsidiaries HEWB AT (Mf5E30)
(Note 30) 3,462 127
Gain on disposal of a cigar shop (Note) H & — RIS finn /s &8I U
(B =) 711 =
Reversal of write-off of B 53 JfE IS Rk TE il £ 43 (o]
trade receivables - 7
Reversal of provision of reinstatement  &18 5 7= 5 & #5 0] (M 5E21)
costs (Note 21) 388 250
Reversal of provision of staff benefit BT & E 50 67 =
Consultancy services income 55 58 AR 75 WA 1,333 975
Commission fee income AW A 1,131 2,260
Write-back of other payables O H A FE I RIB 1,670 =
Gain on disposal of property, plant and HEY¥ B E & ZEHHI T
equipment 828 =
Others HAth 238 260
9,940 4,283
Note: Mt

In April 2025, the Group entered into a sale and purchase agreement
with a former shareholder of the Company for the disposal of
Wanchai Amante Shop with a cash consideration of HK$1,800,000.
The net assets of Wanchai Amante Shop at the date of disposal were

12202548 AEBEAAT —HATRETILE
EtiE UIREME1,800,000% T H &EWanchai
Amante Shop o 74 H & & H » Wanchai Amante Shop
HEEFEDNT :

as follow:

HK$'000
FET
Property, plant and equipment ME-BERZE 1,007
Right-of-use asset FEREEE 758
Deposit b 164
Lease liabilities HEAR (840)
Net assets disposed of BEHEEEFE 1,089

Gain on disposal: HE W
Cash consideration receivable FEWIRERE 1,800
Net assets disposed of BHEEEZFE (1,089)
711

Net cash outflow arising on disposal:
Cash consideration received
Less: cash and cash equivalents disposed of

HEZFRERY :

BWIREAE

B PTHENRERIREEEY

Net cash outflow

FRE MY
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LOSS BEFORE INCOME TAX
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9. [RFRIGMAIEGIE

Loss before income tax is arrived at after charging: SErEMAIEREL&INGRUTER RS
e <

2025 2024

20255 20244

HK$’000 HK$’'000

FET FAET

Changes in inventories recognised as
expense

RSN EFEEZES

— Clubs and entertainment business — R R YR L 2 T 25,946 27,714
Expense in respect of land THRIBFRZ .

and buildings:
— Short term lease payments — RSN 341 576
— Variable lease payments linked — B E R IR Pl & =

to sales (Note 16(c)) (FF5E16(c) ) 12 433

Auditors’ remuneration % S M BN <&
— Provision for the year —REEEE 680 756
Write-off of property, WEE YD R R sk 18

plant and equipment - 34

Employee benefits expense (including
directors’ remuneration (Note 10))
— Wages, salaries and other benefits
— Contribution to defined contribution
retirement plans

BEEBMNHS (BRES
A (f95E10))
—TE e hEMEF 8,733 20,047
— R E MR ARt B R
299 762

9,032 20,809

2025 ANNUAL REPORT &3 137



Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

AR e MR R MY EE

31 MAY 2025 202555531H

10. DIRECTORS’ REMUNERATION AND FIVE
HIGHEST PAID INDIVIDUALS

10. EEFMRAIBEREHFMAL

(a) Directors’ remuneration (a) =R
The remunerations of the directors of the KRABIEESEHMEH T :
Company are set out below:
Contribution
to defined
Salaries and  contribution
other retirement
Fees benefits plans Total
RE MR
HER ERatEl
ik Hitisa# A L
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
FA7 FA7 iz iz
Year ended 31 May 2025 HE2025E5H31HILEE
Executive directors BTES
Ms. Liu Huijing (note vi) Y=EL L (fzhvi) - 840 18 858
Ms. Lui Lok Yan (note v) BRmL Tt (k) - 165 6 17
Ms. Ma Liangping (note ) ERFwL () - - - -
Mr. Wong Chi Yung (note i) EEELE (ki) - 594 11 605
Independent non-executive directors HiJEH{TES
Dr. Chen Xiaofeng (note iii BB+ (W i) 63 - - 63
Mr. Hui Wai Hung SHEIREE 180 - - 180
Mr. Jiang Qiaowei (note iv) BERLE (5hv) 86 - - 86
Mr. Pong Chun Yu ERFRE 180 - - 180
509 1,599 35 2,143
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10. DIRECTORS’ REMUNERATION AND FIVE
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10. EEFMRAIBEREHFMAL

HIGHEST PAID INDIVIDUALS (continued) (&)
(a) Directors’ remuneration (continued) (a) EFHM &)
The remunerations of the directors of the KRANBIEEHNESI WM T - (&)
Company are set out below: (continued)
Contribution
to defined
Salaries  contribution
and other retirement
Fees benefits plans Total
REMT
HER Rk
kA Htha7 T st
HK$000 HK$ 000 HK$000 HK$ 000
FE1 FET FEr FAET
Year ended 31 May 2024 BE2024F5R31ALERE
Executive directors BTES
Mr. Wong Chi Yung (note ii EEELE (ki) - 1,296 18 1,314
Ms. Lui Lok Yan (note v) Bt (M) - 480 18 498
Ms. Liu Huijing (note vi) EELL (ki) - 840 18 858
Independent non-executive directors HiJEHITES
Mr. Pong Chun Yu ERFRE 180 - - 180
Mr. Hui Wai Hung SHEIREE 180 - - 180
Mr. Jiang Qiaowei (note iv) BERELE (W) 180 - = 180
540 2,616 54 3,210
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10. DIRECTORS’ REMUNERATION AND FIVE
HIGHEST PAID INDIVIDUALS (continued)

(a) Directors’ remuneration (continued)

The remunerations of the directors of the
Company are set out below: (continued)

Notes:

(i) Ms. Ma Liangping was appointed as executive
director on 30 May 2025.

(if) Mr. Wong Chi Yung was resigned as executive
director on 31 December 2024.

(ifi) Dr. Chen Xiaofeng was appointed as independent
non-executive director on 22 November 2024.

(iv) Mr. Jiang Qiaowei was resigned as independent
non-executive director on 22 November 2024.

(v) Ms. Lui Lok Yan was retired as executive director on
4 October 2024.

(vi) Ms. Liu Huijing was appointed as executive director
on 3 April 2023.

During the current and prior years, none of
the Directors waived or agreed to waive any
remuneration and there were no emoluments
paid by the Group to any of the Directors as an
inducement to join, or upon joining the Group,
or as compensation for loss of office. The
executive directors’ emoluments shown above
were mainly for their services in connection
with the management of the affairs of the
Company and the Group. The independent
non-executive directors’ emoluments shown
above were mainly for their services as the
Directors.
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10. DIRECTORS’ REMUNERATION AND FIVE 10.
HIGHEST PAID INDIVIDUALS (continued)

(b)

(c)

Five highest paid individuals

Of the five individuals with the highest
emoluments in the Group, 2 (2024: 2) are
executive directors of the Company for the
year ended 31 May 2025 whose emoluments
are included in Note 10(a). The remuneration of

AR e MR R M EE

31 MAY 2025 2025%5531H

EEFMNRELEaHFMAL

(%&)

(b) TEEEFMAL
HE2025F5H31HIEEE » K
ERRLERETFMALTEELRR
TIR92% (20245 @ 2%) BT E
EoMENFMENKEE10(a) e
BR 3% (20244 : 3%) AEMIF

the remaining 3 (2024: 3) individuals were as a0 -
follows:
2025 2024
2025% 20244
HK$’000 HK$'000
FAET FET
Salaries, allowances and e R REYRER
benefits in kind 1,489 2,240
Contribution to defined REEFRIKET B R
contribution retirements plans 50 54
1,539 2,294

The emoluments fell within the following bands:

Nil to HK$1,000,000 Z%1,000,000% 7T

BERALHME A FUTEHE :

2025 2024
20255 20244
Number of Number of
individuals individuals
AE A

3 3

The emoluments paid or payable to
members of senior management were
within the following band:

Nil to HK$1,000,000 Z£ 51,000,000 7T

(c) ENfIENSHREEERENM

ENFUTEER :
2025 2024
20255 20244
Number of Number of
individuals individuals
A& AE
1 1
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AR e MR R MY EE

31 MAY 2025 202555531H

11. FINANCE COSTS 11. RMERZE

2025 2024
20255 20244
HK$’000 HK$°000
FET FAET
Interest on other borrowings HMERFN 2 47 141
Interest on lease liabilities (Note 16(b)) FEEE&EF] B (MizE16(b) ) 431 1,025
478 1,166

12. INCOME TAX EXPENSE 12. FrEREX

The Group is subject to income tax on profits arising
in or derived from Hong Kong, being its principal
place of business. The income tax expense in the
consolidated statement of comprehensive income

FERRMPETEEXMBEBEE
HREEBN G BAFER -GREE
EHWmEABFFRAXE

represents:
2025 2024
20255 20244
HK$’000 HK$'000
FAET FAET
Current tax — Hong Kong Profits Tax BNHARRIE - EBFRFR
— provision for the year —FEE - 748
— over-provision in prior year — B FEBREEE - (250)
- 498
Current tax — the PRC BPHAFR I8 — AR
— provision for the year —FERNEHE 992 =
992 -
Deferred tax (Note 19) EIEFRIE (FFEE19)
— Origination and reversal of temporary — £ B4 2= %889 & & M # (o]
differences - 555
— Write-down of deferred tax asset — WU RIE IR B E E 1,079 150
Income tax expense PSR < 2,071 1,203

Pursuant to the rules and regulations of the Cayman
Islands, the Group is not subject to any taxation
under the jurisdictions of the Cayman Islands.
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AR e MR R M EE

31 MAY 2025 2025%5531H

INCOME TAX EXPENSE (continued) 12. FRif8MBEX (&)
Under Enterprise Income Tax Law of the PRC (“EIT WIEPRPEMRERE (TEXEFRER
Law”) and the Implementation Regulation on the EIT E ) RPHEFEREERER » AERH
Law, the tax rate of the Group’s subsidiaries operating FRARHEKCSHNNBATINMEXAH
in the PRC during the year was 25% of their taxable FEZE 55 F BY25% o
profits.
Under the two-tiered profits tax rates regime, the first BIEMASFERNESE 5BKRE
HK$2 million of assessable profits of the qualifying ERECEEEAE T ESRR B EIL
group entity will be taxed at 8.25%, and assessable 8.25%HNMEHM > MEBBE2BEE BT
profits above HK$2 million will be taxed at 16.5%. FESR A F B2 16.5% MR TR o R
Assessable profits of group entities not qualifying for HEMBREFERREE EEEERE
the two-tiered profits tax rates regime will continue to BB B ET16. 5% K — R
be taxed at a flat rate of 16.5%. o
A reconciliation of loss before income tax at the HE EMEAENSGRF SR A EBIEERR
statutory tax rate to the income tax expense is as EMREYHHEEDNT
follows:
2025 2024
20255 20244
HK$’000 HK$'000
FET FAET
Loss before income tax FRETSIRAIE IR (1,751) (16,118)
Tax at the applicable statutory rate BEREAEREFTENRIE 49 (2,824)
Tax effect of non-deductible expenses A~ B 1 #3 B Xk M AR 75 22 22 1,101 1,944
Tax effect of non-taxable income BEARRIMENRIFLE (1,012) 2)
Tax effect of deductible temporary AERTIN ARG EEREN
differences not recognised MFETE 83 478
Tax effect of tax losses not recognised ARV IBE BN T T L 771 1,161
Over-provision in prior year BEFEBREEE - (250)
Write-down of deferred tax asset WOR AR IEFR TE & B 1,079 150
Tax effect of tax losses utilised EFAREBEGENRETE - 555
Utilisation of tax losses previously not U fERFESRIRIERS 18 2 8 B
recognised - 9)
Income tax expense FRiSIRR X 2,071 1,203
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13.

14.

144

DIVIDEND 13. KRR
No dividend was paid or proposed for ordinary shares KABIREE2025%F K2024F5831H
of the Company during the years ended 31 May 2025 IFFEMEREAASZBERIKCNES
and 2024, nor has any dividend been proposed since KT RE B > B RSB R AR N 2 5
the end of the reporting period. I ERBR B o
LOSS PER SHARE ATTRIBUTABLE TO 14. ZAATHEAEGESRER
OWNERS OF THE COMPANY
2025 2024
2025% 20244
Loss attributable to owners of the KNBHEE ANELEE
Company (HK$’000) (F#Em (4,882) (17,140
Weighted average number of ordinary Bt EESREREIE
shares for the purpose of calculating BB INRE T 9
basic loss per share (in thousands) (F5) 114,605 101,155
Basic and diluted loss per share (HK$) S BREARE#HEREE GBx) (4.26) (16.94)

The number of ordinary shares for the purpose of
calculating basic loss per share has been determined
based on the loss attributable to owners of the
Company of approximately HK$4,882,000 (2024: a
loss of HK$17,140,000) and the weighted average
number of 114,605,000 (2024: 101,155,000) ordinary
shares in issue.

The share options outstanding during the years ended
31 May 2025 and 2024 had an anti-dilutive effect on
the basic loss per share, the exercise of outstanding
share options were not assumed in the computation
of diluted loss per share. Accordingly, diluted loss per
share is the same as the basic loss per share for the
years ended 31 May 2025 and 2024.

New Amante Group Limited #EEEEARAE
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15. PROPERTY, PLANT AND EQUIPMENT 15. YME - -BERHEE
Furniture,
Leasehold fixtures and
improvements equipment Motor vehicles Total
HEMERE KRR RERRE HE @t
HK$ 000 HK$ 000 HK$'000 HK$'000
FET FET FET FET
Cost: A
At 1 June 2023 120236518 17,023 5,919 2,431 25,373
Additions HE 1,783 304 - 2,087
Written off fiisH (4,288) (1,470) - (5,758)
At 31 May 2024 and 12024558310 K
1 June 2024 2024%681H 14,518 4,753 2,431 21,702
Additions HE 80 13 = 93
Disposal HE 9,177) (4,200) - (13,377)
Disposal of a cigar shop HE-BEMEE (1,280) - - (1,280)
Disposal of subsidiaries HEMBAA (330) (366) - (696)
At 31 May 2025 11202545831H 3,811 200 2,431 6,442
Accumulated depreciation: ~ B3iTE:
At 1 June 2023 120236518 10,686 3,693 1,391 15,770
Depreciation i 4,092 809 488 5,589
Written off s (4,267) (1,457) = (5,724)
At 31 May 2024 and 1202458310 &t
1 June 2024 2024681H 10,711 3,045 1,879 15,635
Depregciation & 2,142 176 487 2,805
Disposal HE (9,009) (2,799) - (11,804)
Disposal of a cigar shop HE-BERER (273) = = (273)
Disposal of subsidiaries HEREAF (331) (345) - (676)
At 31 May 2025 1£202545H31H 3,244 77 2,366 5,687
Carrying amount: IREE:
At 31 May 2025 12202545831H 567 123 65 755
At 31 May 2024 12024858310 3,807 1,708 552 6,067
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4 A

17 o = |

FAFsERAR MYEE

31 MAY 2025 202555531H

16.

LEASES

(a)

Right-of-use assets

As at 31 May 2025, the Group leases 4 (2024
7) properties as office premises and for the
operation of club and entertainment business.
The leases have a non-cancellable lease period
of 1 year as at 31 May 2025 (2024: 2 years).

The remaining lease terms are generally 1
year (2024: 1 to 2 years). One of the leases
contains extension option whose terms are
subject to negotiation between the Group and
the lessor.

The carrying amounts of the Group’s right-of-
use assets and the movements during the year
are as follows:

16.

HE
(a)

EREEE

MR2025F5831H  KEEHEE4S
1R (20244 74 MEEA PR
BRREE SR RIREER P
2025F5831H  ZEHENF
AHHAEHA15 (20245 @ 2
) o

BRI EEE— MR A 14 (20244 ¢
1526F) cHP—BHHESELER
RiER BHESFAEEALTH
A o

ENEEBEAREE REE
REENT :

Leased

properties

HEME

HK$°000

FAET

At 1 June 2023 1R2023F681H 12,503
Additions B 11,989

Early termination of lease IR IEFRE (640)
Depreciation e (14,185)
At 31 May 2024 and 1 June 2024 202455831 H 2024685 1H 9,667
Early termination of lease IERI&IETRE (137)
Disposal of a cigar shop HE— B hn s &6 (758)
Lease modification HEE:] (162)
Depreciation e (6,159)
At 31 May 2025 R2025%5H31H 2,451
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16. LEASES (continued) 16. HE (&)
(b) Lease liabilities (b) FHE&E
The carrying amount of lease liabilities and the FREEEBZERERES U
movements during the year are as follows: T
2025 2024
2025% 20244
HK$’000 HK$’ 000
FET FET
Carrying amount at 1 June FR2024 4 5202356 8 1H
2024 and 2023 ZHREE 10,956 14,705
Additions NE - 11,801
Interest expense (Note 11) MERZ (WsE11) 431 1,025
Payments EN (5,440) (14,593)
Early termination of lease AL E (147) (790)
Disposal of a cigar shop HE—BSh/Es (840) -
Lease modification HEE] (172) -
Reclassify to trade and other BEMNDEEES &
payables (note (i)) HAunE A mRIE BsE)) (1,694) (1,192)
Carrying amount at 31 May 20255 K2024FE5831HZ
2025 and 2024 REE 3,094 10,956
Note: f5E -
(i) The amounts represented lease payments due for (i) Z & REIEN2025FE5831 H 2 HA 4L
settlement and remained unsettled as at 31 May BANMKREEZHENR
2025.
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16. LEASES (continued) 16. HE (&)
(b) Lease liabilities (continued) by MHMEEE B
Future lease payments are due as follows: AERBEMREBEROT

Future lease

payments Interest  Present value
RIKBE LR Gil)S) RiE
HK$’000 HK$°000 HK$°000
FET FET FET
At 31 May 2025 12202558318

Not later than one year FEE—F 3,150 (56) 3,094

Later than one year and —FEERBEME
not later than two years - - -
3,150 (56) 3,094

Future lease

payments Interest Present value
RIERMEE MR RS RE
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
FAET FET FET
At 31 May 2024 2024%5831H

Not later than one year FBE—F 7,503 (440) 7,063

Later than one year and —FEMN EBRBEME
not later than two years 3,993 (100) 3,893
11,496 (540) 10,956
The Group discounts the lease liabilities at BIE2025F5H31HIEFE >
the incremental borrowing rates ranging from KEBUNNRE.57%ET7.8 9%
5.57% to 7.89% for the year ended 31 May E*i] BEERMNEXHNHEHEERE
2025 (2024: from 3.97% to 7.89%). 73R (202445 - NIRB.97%E

7.89%) °
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LEASES (continued)

(b)

(c)

16.

AR e MR R M EE

31 MAY 2025 2025%5531H

HE (&)

Lease liabilities (continued) by MHME&EE B
The present value of future lease payments are FREENTNIBEESFUT
analysed as follows:
2025 2024
20255 20244
HK$’000 HK$°000
FAET FET
Current liabilities mEaE 3,094 7,063
Non-current liabilities JEREERE - 3,893
3,094 10,956
For the year ended 31 May 2025, the total B E2025F5831HIEFE
cash outflow for leases was approximately BIREMHAREEAI5,793,00078 7T
HK$5,793,000 (2024: HK$14,679,000). (20244 : 14,679,000 7T) °©
Variable lease payments (c) A EFH B
Some property leases contain variable payment HoMERERIHEKLEEMK
terms that are linked to sales generated fR 404 22 S AE A4 O £F B 8 19 o]

from the operation of club and entertainment
business. For the night club, up to 1.98%
(2024: 2.55%) of lease payments are on the
basis of variable payment during the year
ended 31 May 2025. Percentages per variable
lease payment terms are ranging from 0.5%
to 2.4% (2024: 0.9% to 2.4%) of sales.
Variable lease payments that depend on sales
are recognised in profit or loss in the period
in which the condition that triggers those
payments occurs.

TRRER R EE2025F55 31
HIEEE -t EtEFMs &
%1.98% (20244 : 2.55%) BFE
ENARRUEBNREEFTH O
BEENMAN FHEEN05%E
2.4% (20244 : 0.9%ZF2.4%) o
BGRB8 & BV A 0 B (T TTE
B SHENRAEEEEE R
R8P RESD o
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17. INVENTORIES 17. =F&
2025 2024
20255 20244
HK$’000 HK$°000
FET FAET
Merchandise 7 oh 16,193 19,173
For the year ended 31 May 2025, no write-down of HZE2025F5B31HIEFE > W EEIE
inventories (2024: Nil) was recognised in profit or PR EE MO (20245 @ £#) o
loss.
18. TRADE AND OTHER RECEIVABLES 18. B KR HMEWRIE
2025 2024
20254 20244
Notes HK$’000 HK$’000
k=3 FET FET
Trade receivables B 5 W IE (a) - 902
Consideration receivable from HE—RISZnEHE
disposal of a cigar shop FEW A E 1,800 =
Other receivables EH g Wz 1a - 806
Advance to a supplier B RE e A (b) 6,571 4,810
Prepayments AT RIE (c) 1,112 945
Deposits & (d) 1,168 5,208
10,651 12,671
Less: Non-current portion under  Ji& : IERENEEE F
non-current assets JERNHEREB (1,112) (1,356)
Current portion under current MENEEE T RIEAE
assets 9,539 11,315
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18. TRADE AND OTHER RECEIVABLES (continued) 18.

Notes:

(a)

(b)

(c)

Trade receivables

Majority of the Group’s revenue is attributable to sales of
tobacco, food and beverages to be settled via cash and
credit card. There was no credit term granted to customers.

An ageing analysis of the Group’s trade receivables at the
end of the reporting period, net of impairment, based on
invoice date is as follows:

AR e MR R M EE

31 MAY 2025 2025%5531H

B 5 REMthEUWRIE (&)

Myt

(a)

FEBABOWEHRKEUBEERERF
RFZNHNEE - RRKRRRIEE  AEH
THEEEFRHEERH-

AREEN RS HARNE Z BUGRIE (RFRR
B) BEREZAHNRETMT :

2025 2024

20255 20244

HK$’000 HK$'000

FET FAET

0-30 days 0%E30H - 574
31-90 days 31E90H - 187
91-180 days 91F180H - 141
181-365 days 181E365H - -
- 902

Movements in impairment loss on trade receivables were as
follows:

S REGT R EBREBNT

2025 2024

20255 20244

HK$’000 HK$'000

FET FAET

At beginning of year F4) 575 936
(Reversal of)/provision for impairment losses B{EEE (BE]) ##E (475) 361
Write-off b6} (100) -
At end of year FxR - 575

As at 31 May 2025, no trade receivables (2024:
HK$8,414,000) is past due at the end of the reporting
period. The Group does not hold any collateral over these
balances.

Details of impairment assessment of trade receivables are
set out in note 38(b).

Advance to a supplier

As at 31 May 2025 and 2024, the balance represents the
prepayments made to a supplier for purchase of goods. The
supplier is the largest supplier and one of the shareholders
of the Group in 2024.

Prepayments

As at 31 May 2025, the balance mainly represents the
prepayment for acquisition of 51% equity interest of a
company incorporated in the PRC (Note 41).

(b)

(c)

2025658310 RBEHR THEE S
FEUTFUIE (20244 : 8,414,000 7T) #HA o
NEBU RSB ZEERTEEMIERSR

5 F& W IR B9 IR (B BT fil 57 15 8000 Y 5
(0)°

@

A HFE R TR IE

1220255 2024558310 » xRN F
HIERREEY BRI - 102024 F Z HFE
HRRAREETAREERRZ —-

FE{tRIE

R2025%5831H » s E Eis5 W — R
o 5] 5% 1 AR 3L B9 A B15 1% AR A B9 FE 4 7B
(FfF5£41) o
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18. TRADE AND OTHER RECEIVABLES (continued) 18. B S KR EMhFEUWEIE (48)

Notes: (continued) MIsE © (88

(d) Deposits (d) bi's
As at 31 May 2025 and 2024, the balance mainly represents 20255 K2024F5H831H » 45r = 24570
rental deposit. At each reporting date, an impairment 2R - RNIREBAE  HA—RAEEL
analysis is performed by applying the general approach to BEDTUAST BB REZERFREE
provide for expected credit losses as prescribed by HKFRS HNIEREEEEERRE - HESNEREE
9. The expected credit losses rate for deposits is minimal. B

19. DEFERRED TAX ASSETS 19. BERBEEZE

Depreciation in

excess of
depreciation
allowance Tax losses Total
mEREN
BERE MIAREE “ast
HK$'000 HK$000 HK$'000
FE1 FEr FET
At 1 June 2023 R2023%F681H 1,229 555 1,784
Charged to profit or loss (Note 12) k8% (MizE12) (150) (555) (705)
At 31 May 2024 and 112024558318 &

1 June 2024 2024F6H1H 1,079 - 1,079
Charged to profit or loss (Note 12)  I0kR#E% (fizE12) (1,079) = (1,079)
At 31 May 2025 12202558 31H = = =
The Group has accumulated tax losses arising in R2025FE5831H RNEBHERSE
Hong Kong of approximately HK$48,708,000 as at HIRIEEE 448,708,000 ¢ (2024
31 May 2025 (2024: HK$71,698,000), in which no tax £ 171,698,000/ 7T) » HPur EIRIBE
loss (2024: Nil) is expected to be utilised in offsetting 18 (20244 . &) st B ANIKIE A~ E
against future taxable profits of the Group. The tax B AKRERZRREZH - RMIEBEEIEIINRE S
loss can be carried forward in Hong Kong indefinitely. WA E AN AATEENE ) EER
No deferred tax asset has been recognised in MEMAXKAERANZERIBEIEN L
respect of the tax losses of HK$48,708,000 (2024: B H N # 5548,708,00078 7T (20244 ¢
HK$71,698,000) as in the opinion of the directors of 71,698,00078 7t) FUFR T8 5 18 FE s 3R LR
the Company, it is not probable that taxable profit will IHEE o
be available against which these tax losses can be
utilised.
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21.
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CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS

Cash and cash equivalents represented cash at banks
and in hand. Cash at banks earns interest at floating
rates based on daily bank deposit rates. The bank
balances are deposited with credit worthy banks with
no recent history of default.

Bank balances, included in cash and cash equivalents
of the Group, denominated in foreign currencies are
as follows:

—%7T
—AR¥T

- USD
- RMB

20.

AR e MR R M EE

31 MAY 2025 2025%5531H

RERREFEY
ReRRSEEMIERTRFBERS
RTRSEEARTERNEHHHF
A EBIA S RITERE RN EE
RYF BT HAN SR A SR IR MVIRT o

RTHER (Bt ALERBREREESE
BEY) LU TINEEHE :

2025 2024
20255 20244
HK$’000 HK$'000
FET FET

1
1,292 =

As at 31 May 2025, cash and cash equivalents
denominated in RMB were approximately
RMB1,186,000 (2024: Nil). The RMB is not freely
convertible into other currencies, however, under
Mainland China’s Foreign Exchange Control
Regulations and Administration of Settlement, Sale
and Payment of Foreign Exchange Regulations, the
Group are permitted to exchange RMB for other
currencies through banks authorised to conduct
foreign exchange business. Banks balances earns
interest at floating rates based on daily bank
deposit rates. The bank balances are deposited with
creditworthy banks with no recent history of default.

TRADE AND OTHER PAYABLES AND
PROVISIONS

21.

R2025F5H831H  UAR B ENIR
ERIBEEEYWHI AR 1,186,0007T
(2024F 1 &) c \R¥EAEERRIHRS
HM G AR 5 o B A9 #h iY (4 B & 12
BR)R(GEE-EERNESERE)
AEB O EBERBETIHEEFRNIR
THEARETIHRAHME - IR1745 6%
HEHRTERANXGFEZENF) B
BRF B -RITHEGERNEERTESR
R B AV S BRIV ERTT o

B REMBENRERERE

2025 2024

2025% 20244

Notes HK$’000 HK$°000

iog=3 FET FET

Trade payables = ANEE (a) 154 1,329
Accruals and other payables FEStE A R EMRE N I8 4,220 15,281
Rental payables FE (& 2,117 2,115
Other tax payable HA TR I8 1,563 -
8,054 18,725

Provision B iE (b) 212 600
8,266 19,325
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21. TRADE AND OTHER PAYABLES AND 21. B RHEMEMSIEREE (&)
PROVISIONS (continued)
(a) Trade Payables (a) BRI
The average credit period of trade payables BNEES AL RNSEEN
in relation to the sales of tobacco, food and B oM IEN YA S8 530
beverage ranged from 30 to 60 days (2024: 30 Z=60H (20244 : 30E60H) o &
to 60 days). An ageing analysis of the Group’s = @RS RN B 5 e 2
trade payable at the end of the reporting HR = O ER ST
period, based on invoice date is as follows:
2025 2024
20255 20244
HK$°000 HK$'000
FAET FAET
0-30 days 0E30H - 878
31-60 days 31E60H - 249
Over 60 days BiB60H 154 202
154 1,329
(b)  Provision (b) &
HK$’000
FET
Reinstatement costs (note) &8s (FisE)
Balance at 1 June 2024 120245681 H B4 &R 600
Reversal # (o] (388)
Balance at 31 May 2025 2025595831 H B4 & 212
Note: BT

The Group provides reinstatement costs for its leased
properties. The estimation basis is reviewed on an ongoing
basis and revised where appropriate. The amount is
expected to be utilised in one year (2024: one year).
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CONTRACT LIABILITIES 22. EH&E
2025 2024
20255 20244
HK$’000 HK$’'000
FHETT FHT
Contract liabilities arising from: UTERBBEENEHNEE:
Billing in advance for sales of tobacco, HEEE B M KAEH
food and beverage BYTE /2 H 6,800 11,815
Note: B 5
Movements in contract liabilities: SHEEEH)
2025 2024
20255 20244F
HK$’000 HK$'000
FET FAET
Balance as at 1 June 2024 and 2023 20244 %2023FE6 81 H K4S iR 11,815 =
Decrease in contract liabilities as a result of BHNEERFARIEFTAENENE
recognising revenue during the year that was 18 B9 W 2 T HH 3R P 1
included in the contract liabilities at beginning of
year (5,015) =
Increase in contract liabilities as a result of billing in &4 & {& & 4 A FE % 5% K
advance during the year IR 18 18 - 11,815
Balance as at 31 May 2025 and 2024 20254 %2024 E58 31 H B4 iR 6,800 11,815
OTHER BORROWINGS 23. Hithgx
A loan was granted by an independent third party — 2 BIUE = EE%E 43,089,000
for an amount of HK$3,089,000. The loan was BTN ESH o EHAEIKE BRER
unsecured, bore interest at 4.80% per annum and KA 80%E B RER2024E5831H R
repayable within one year from 31 May 2024. The S EREB LR EN2024FE1084
balance was settled on 4 October 2024. H 435 o
LOAN FROM AN EX-SHAREHOLDER 24. RKE—LAREZEN

A loan was granted by an ex-shareholder, Mr.
Kester Ng. The loan is unsecured, interest-free and
repayable on demand or within one year from the
reporting date.

EMBARRBBASLERR T -&ZE
MABERE RERARERIABRS
HHE—FRNEE-
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25. AMOUNTS DUE TO DIRECTORS AND NON- 25,

CONTROLLING INTERESTS

The amounts due were non-trade in nature,
unsecured, interest-free and have no fixed terms of

BNEFERIFEREDR ZME

BAREBFEZHEE ERR -ER
R R [E B o

repayment.
26. SHARE CAPITAL 26. B
Number of ordinary shares Amount
LERYE &8
HK$0.2 each ~ HK$0.01 each HK$ 000
REE SREE
0287 0.01871 FET
Authorised: 3T
At 1 June 2023 112023E65 1H 500,000,000 - 100,000
Share Sub-division (Note (b)) Kinira (155 (0)) (500,000,000) 10,000,000,000 -
At 31 May 2024, 1 June 2024 and 12202458310 ~ 20246818
31 May 2025 202558310 - 10,000,000,000 100,000
Issued and fully paid: BETRARE
At 1 June 2023 12023565 1H 89,892,000 - 17,978
Issue of ordinary shares by way of placing BREERAETEER
(Note (a)) (Mizt(a) 11,985,600 - 2,398
Capital reduction (Note (o)) Rl (Mzk) (101,877,600) 101,877,600 (19,357)
At 31 May 2024 and 1 June 2024 122024458310 k202465 1H - 101,877,600 1,019
Issue of ordinary shares by share subscription BB &7 L ER
(Note (c)) (Fft3¥(c)) - 20,370,000 203
At 31 May 2025 12025458310 - 122,247,600 1,222
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26. SHARE CAPITAL (continued)

(a)

On 17 May 2023, the Company entered
into a Placing Agreement with the placing
agent in connection with the placing for
an aggregate of 11,985,600 new ordinary
shares of the Company of HK$0.2 each at
a placing price of HK$0.5 per share. The
placement was completed on 23 June 2023
and the premium on the issue of shares,
amounting to approximately HK$3,481,000,
net of the placing commission and other
related transaction costs of approximately
HK$114,000 was credited to the Company’s
share premium account.

On 26 July 2023, a special resolution has been
passed by the shareholders of the Company
for a capital reorganisation which involves
capital reduction and share subdivision.

The Company implemented the capital
reduction involving the reduction of the par
value of each issued share from HK$0.20
to HK$0.01 by cancelling the paid up share
capital to the extent of HK$0.19 per issued
share so that following such reduction, each
issued share with a par value of HK$0.01
in the share capital of the Company shall
become one new share; and (ii) the share
premium reduction involving the reduction of
the entire amount standing to the credit of
the share premium account. The credit arising
from the capital reduction and share premium
reduction will be applied towards offsetting the
accumulated losses as at the effective date
of the capital reduction, thereby reducing the
accumulated losses.

Immediately following the capital reduction
becoming effective, each authorised but
unissued share will be sub-divided into twenty
(20) authorised but unissued new shares with a
par value of HK$0.01 each.

The capital reduction and share subdivision
became effective on 20 December 2023.

AR e MR R M EE

31 MAY 2025 2025%5531H

26. Bg7s (48)

()

R2023F5817H » &~ A & &
FEREMRZERAEEE0.58
TR E45111,985,6000 & /&
0.2B T ARNBHMEERETIL—
REEHZE BELEN2023%464
23H TR EITRMONEEBLY
3,481,000 7t (BRINPREEERE
K E A8 RE 32 5 A A 49114,000
B7t) Bt AR AR EE
iR o

R2023FE7H26H A AT E
T e Bl 7 B& A K BR AR 0 3 2 BR
NEHBEB—BIFRRERE

KABEHERAH R RER
HHMERA (UERBRBERTHE
7H019BTAR)  BERE %
TR Z EEB0.20% T HI B =
0.018c> UEHEBRE RE
KABRAFEREEOC.0O1E T
ZEBTROBERS —RTK
195 ()B4 mBH R 5 K AR
B 17 m B AR B 2 20 4 AR 58 o BR A<
BB B BR AR a8 B R 2= A B BR
BB A% A3 VE3E 88 X AR A BB AE U H
BN EstEBE ML Btk

Be

MR EBBENE  BREE
BRETRMA KRR Z1+(20)
KEKREECOIEBITZIEEMBRX
LATRTRD

R A H 8 B B AR 3 $R FR 20284512
H20H £/ o
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26.

27.

158

SHARE CAPITAL (continued)

(c) On 24 September 2024, the Company
entered into a Subscription Agreement with
the subscriber to subscribe for 20,370,000
subscription shares at the subscription price
of HK$0.46 per subscription share. The
subscription was completed on 3 October
2024 and the premium on the issue of shares,
amounting to approximately HK$9,164,000,
before the share subscription commission
and other related transaction costs of
approximately HK$120,000 was credited to the
Company'’s share premium account.

EQUITY-SETTLED SHARE BASED PAYMENTS

A share option scheme (the “Share Option
Scheme”) was adopted pursuant to a resolution
in writing passed by all shareholders on 14 March
2017. The purpose of the Share Option Scheme
is to provide incentives or rewards to the eligible
participants for their contribution to the Group’s
operation. Eligible participants of the Scheme include
the Company’s directors, including independent non-
executive directors, other employees of the Group
and consultants. The Share Option Scheme became
effective on 8 March 2021 and, unless otherwise
cancelled or amended, will remain in force for five
years from that date.

The maximum number of unexercised share options
currently permitted to be granted under the Share
Option Scheme shall not in aggregate exceed 10%
of the total number of shares in issue at the Listing
date. The maximum number of shares issuable under
share options to each eligible participant in the Share
Option Scheme within any 12-month period is limited
to 1% of the shares of the Company in issue up to
the date of grant. Any further grant of shares options
in excess of this limit is subject to shareholders’
approval in a general meeting.

The share options do not confer rights on the holders
to dividend and to vote at shareholders meetings.

New Amante Group Limited #EEEEARAE

26.

27.

&2 (48)

(c) HR2024F9H24H » & 'A B B
BANLUDBERZ EERIB
BRRMD0.46BTHRBEERE
20,370,000 BAER D - BB =
TEE 2024 F 1083 52 A% » 21T
B8 15 B9 3% (B 499,164,000 75 5k
NBRIRM BB M R EMAERAR
2R ZA%9120,0008 75) B 5t AZ
NEIBIRRMD HEER o

UREEBEURMNAERZIR
BE2ERENR2017E3814HBBEN
EEREER KA RN — BB RES
2 (TRERG TR - BRESEEER
EER2EENREHAEREEFRIE
BT HBNRE BRESEZE
ERZ2EECREARRES (BEBIL
ERITESR) AEEHMEES RER-
BERG ST 2722021 E3H8H £ 3% 2 FRIE
BT FUFHELET TIERZBE R
AEHEFHR

RIFERES R REFEER T ZRT
EEREZEZHEFTFTBEANR LT H
HEETROBEZ10% REM+Z
BRABA BRESFBARERTS
LEERSREZEREMIZETZR
ZROVBEDERARTEERHHH
BETROHZI% - HFEMBBEIR
BHBRERESRENERRAG L#H
#fE e

BRETERETRHAE ARRRE &K
RAGREBER -
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EQUITY-SETTLED SHARE BASED PAYMENTS 27. UGG EURMGASER Z
(continued) (%&)
Set out below are details of movements of the TREYEHE2025F K2024F5H31H
outstanding options granted under the Share Option IFFEEREBREAZIFELENERITE
Scheme during the years ended 31 May 2025 and BRGNS e -
2024:
Outstanding Adjustment Outstanding
as at Granted Exercised dueto  Adjustment Lapsed as at
Exercise 1Jdune  during the during Share due to during 31 May
price 2024 year the year consolidation  rights issue the year 2025
1420245 1420255
6A1A AR 58318
4 HATE ERRL EnfrfE AHRE  EfRAZ ERXY HATE
HKS ‘000 000 ‘000 000 ‘000 000 ‘000
An & & & & & & T
Share Option Scheme BRETE
Directors 2 7.567* 4 - - - - - 4
Employees 8 7.567¢ 2 - - - - - 2
Consultants B 7.567* 488 - - - - - 488
Total &3 550 - - - - - 550
Weighted average exercise price ~ MIETITEE 7.567 - - - - - 7.567
QOutstanding Adjustment Qutstanding
as at Granted Exercised dueto  Adjustment Lapsed as at
Exercise 1 June during during Share due to during 31 May
price 2023 the year the year  consolidation rights issue the year 2024
120235 120245
6818 Rkt 58318
ffefE HALTHE Rt ERiTE afi#E  AERSE ERXR AT
HKS 000 voo 000 0oo 000 0oo oo
BT T 4 & 4 & 7K &
Share Option Scheme RS
Directors £ 7.567* 4 - - - - - 4
Employees &8 7.567* 21 - = = = = 21
Consultants Bf 7.567* 488 - - - - - 488
Total & 550 = = = = - 550
Weighted average exercise price ~ MIEFITEE 7.567 - = = = - 7.567
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27.

160

EQUITY-SETTLED SHARE BASED PAYMENTS
(continued)

All of the Company’s share options are exercisable at
grant date. The options outstanding at the end of the
year have a weighted average remaining contractual
life of 1 year (2024: 2 years) and the exercise price of
HK$7.567 (2024: HK$7.567) per share.

During the years ended 31 May 2025 and 2024, no
expense in relation to share options grants by the
Company to employees and others providing similar
services was recognised.

* Adjustments were made to the exercise price and the
number of shares entitled to be issued upon full exercise
of the share options as a result of the Share Consolidation
became effective on 16 November 2022. The exercise price
of the share options was adjusted from HK$0.385 per share
to HK$7.567 per share.

New Amante Group Limited #EEEEARAE

27.

%EE%%M&@%E%ZN%
I\‘g

NATFTEBREIINEE BEfTE-
FERHEARTEERENINE TSR GS
HEAMRE A14E (20244%F : 26F) » 171684
FRE7. 5678 7T (20244  7.567E ) ©

RE E2025%F K2024%F5H31H IEF
E ERIEBRESATRES RIZMH
BFLRBFNEMA TR FTEREMNR
E‘Zo

* HRIRDEHIR2022F11B16HEM > &
NEERBECTEERABREERHTE
MARETHNRDHME - BEBRETEEHS
f%0.385 B TR E FR7.567HTT
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements
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RESERVES 28. f#fE
Details of the movements on the Group’s reserves are NREBNFEBEEHFEFEHNRNGEEGDE
set out in the consolidated statement of changes in H K o
equity.
Movements on the Company’s reserves are as KRABIWEEESHINT .
follows:
Share Capital Accumulated Share option
premium reserve losses reserve
(note(a)) (note(b)) (note(c)) (note(d)) Total
RN EE R A RitERE  BRERE
(tz¥(a) (GEL)) (3£ (c)) (It 3¥(d)) @t

HK$'000 HK$000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
TAT TE7T Y TE7m TET

At 1 June 2023 1*2023%6A1H 108,587 34 (124,510) 6,835 (9,054)

Loss and total comprehensive FREBRREANREE

income for the year - - (15,840) - (15,840)
Issue of ordinary shares by way of BBEEATLETEER

placing 3,595 = = = 3,695
Transaction costs attributable RENTEREGRZRE

to the placing of

new ordinary shares (114) = = - (114)
Capital reduction BRI - - 19,357 - 19,357
At 31 May 2024 and R2024F58318 &

1 June 2024 20246811 112,068 34 (120,993) 6,835 (2,056)

Loss and total comprehensive FREERZAKGERE

income for the year - - (9,550) - (9,550)
Issue of ordinary shares by way of EBRERIAH

share subscription ¥OLBR 9,167 - - - 9,167
Transaction costs attributable to {3 REEIER B A A

share subscription (120) - - - (120)
At 31 May 2025 12025558318 121,115 34 (130,543 6,835 (2,559
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28.

RESERVES (continued)

(a)

(b)

(c)

(d)

(e)

Share premium

Share premium represented the amount
subscribed for share capital in excess of
nominal value.

Capital reserve

Capital reserve represents the difference
between the fair value of consideration paid
and the carrying value of the subsidiaries
acquired.

Accumulated losses

Accumulated losses represented the
cumulative net losses recognised in profit or
loss.

Share option reserve

The share option reserve represents the fair
value of the unexercised share options granted
to employees and consultants of the Company
recognised in accordance with the accounting
policy adopted for equity-settled share-based
payments in note 4(k) to the consolidated
financial statements.

Other reserve

Other reserve represents the difference
between the consideration and the carrying
amount of the net liabilities attributable to
the reduction of interest in a subsidiary being
disposed to non-controlling interests.
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R sEEIBREATRBLE
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements
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NON-CONTROLLING INTERESTS

Set out below is the summarised financial information
of City Silver Limited. The amounts disclosed are
before intra-group eliminations. City Silver Limited
was disposed of during the year ended 31 May 2025

(Note 30 (b)).

29. JEIERGHER

T2 FCity Silver LimitedRy 81755
BME-FIiIRENSEAERMIEHN S
%8 o City Silver LimitedB & E 20254
5A31HIEEEHE (HE30(b)) °

2025 2024
20255 20244
HK$’000 HK$°000
FET FAET
For the year ended 31 May BZE5831ALLEE
Revenue Y 7 - =
Profit and total comprehensive income & W& Al K & B U i 42 58
for the year 5,531 763
Profit allocated to non-controlling PDEEIFERER 2 mF
interests 2,212 305
Dividends paid to non-controlling EXNTIEERETZRE
interests - =
For the year ended 31 May BZE5831ALLEE
Cash flows (used in)/generated from e ES) (A Frfg
operating activities HBEMRE (58) 778
Cash flows generated from investing KREGHMEREMNE
activities 58 =
Cash flows used in financing activities BRE EHFFAIESRE - (780)
Net cash outflows RS M58 - 2)
2025 2024
20255 20244
HK$’000 HK$°000
FAET FET
As at 31 May 58318
Current assets MENEE - 4
Non-current assets ERBEE - =
Current liabilities mEas - (5,586)
Non-current liabilities ERBERE - =
Net liabilities BEFEE - (5,582)
Accumulated non-controlling interests R &t JEIE R =5 - (2,282)
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29.

NON-CONTROLLING INTERESTS (continued) 29.

Set out below is summarised financial information
of Castle Team Limited. The amounts disclosed
are before inter-company eliminations. Castle Team
Limited was disposed of during the year ended 31

JESERERE (B)
X & %|Castle Team Limitedfy it #5
ERBME-FMIENESEA QR B
fH A1 %8 o Castle Team LimitedB
HE2025F5831HIEFEHE (M

May 2025 (Note 30 (a)). 30(a)) °
2025 2024
20255 20244
HK$’000 HK$°000
FET FAET
For the year ended 31 May HE5H31ALEE
Revenue W &= - 4,010
Profit and total comprehensive income & W& Al K & E U 42 58
for the year 3,526 711
Profit allocated to non-controlling PDEEIFERE R 2 mF
interests 1,728 348
Dividends paid to non-controlling B FIFERER KRS
interests - -
For the year ended 31 May BE5831ALLEE
Cash flows (used in)/generated from RESEE (TR /FiieRE
operating activities Vil (85) 2,142
Cash flows generated from investing KREEHMERE
activities ME - 34
Cash flows generated from/(used in) MEEFAE, (FTA) Be
financing activities ME 80 (2,286)
Net cash outflows BERt FE (5) (110)
2025 2024
2025% 20244
HK$’000 HK$'000
FET FET
As at 31 May 58318
Current assets MENEE - 564
Non-current assets ERENEE - 418
Current liabilities mEas - (7,373)
Non-current liabilities EREER - =
Net liabilities BEF5H - (6,391)
Accumulated non-controlling interests 2 5t JE1E= R - (3,132)
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NON-CONTROLLING INTERESTS (continued) 29.

Set out below is summarised financial information of
Crown Grand Limited. The amounts disclosed are

JEERED (B)
T HFCrown Grand LimitedR B 75
ERNME-FIRENEEES A B B IKHE

before inter-company eliminations. B &E o
2025 2024
20255 20244
HK$’000 HK$°000
FET FAET
For the year ended 31 May BZE5831ALLEE
Revenue Wz 7,620 61,719
Loss and total comprehensive income FRNEEKREEWFLEEE
for the year (9,600) (2,878)
Loss allocated to non-controlling DEEFRERER 2 BB
interests (2,880) (834)
Dividends paid to non-controlling EXNTIEERETZRE
interests - =
For the year ended 31 May BZE5831ALLEE
Cash flows generated from operating K& EHBRERE
activities 817 13,923
Cash flows generated from/(used in) REEEFTR (FTA) R
investing activities ME 2,307 (619)
Cash flows used in financing activities BIE EHFFAIESRE (3,784) (14,224)
Net cash outflows e ML RER (660) (920)
2025 2024
2025% 20244
HK$’000 HK$°000
FET FET
As at 31 May 58318
Current assets MENEE 5 11,128
Non-current assets ERBEE - 4,818
Current liabilities mEnaE (9,334) (15,675)
Non-current liabilities ERBERE - =
Net (liabilities)/assets (BB BEFHE (9,329) 271
Accumulated non-controlling interests R &5t JEIEIE (2,801) 79
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30.

DISPOSAL OF SUBSIDIARIES

(a)

30. HEMBAR

Disposal of subsidiaries (a) HEMEBAR
On 10 February 2025, the Group disposed of R2025FE2810H  AEEHBE
its entire interest in a subsidiary, Castle Team BERKE A S Castle Team
Limited to an independent third party. Limited 2w HE F—28
E=F0
On 20 March 2025, the Group further disposed R2025FE3820H » AE HE
of its entire interest in two subsidiaries, Buzz — TR ERmEN B ASBuzz
Concepts Management (H.K.) Limited and Concepts Management (H.K.)
Grand Diamond Limited to an independent LimitedEz\ HEE R A B 2 I0HE
third party. HHEF—BBIUE=F-
The net liabilities of three subsidiaries at the REEHH Z=BARBATNEAE
dates of disposal were as follows: BEFEEUT :
HK$’000
FAETT
Property, plant and equipment Mz HERKE 20
Deposits, prepayments and other & AN RRIE R H AW EIE
receivables 4
Cash and cash equivalents HWERREEEY 14
Trade and other payables B 5 &k HEMENRIE (2,156)
Amount due to non-controlling interests & {xf JE 3 B R 25 7R IE (2,660)
Net liabilities disposed of BEHE&BEFHE (4,778)
Gain on disposal: HE W :
Cash consideration received 2 WIRENE 10
Net liabilities disposed of BEHEBEFE 4,778
Non-controlling interests JEZER = (1,404)
3,384

Net cash outflow arising on disposal:
Cash consideration received
Less: cash and cash equivalents
disposed of

HEMEEMNIRES ML FEE
BRRERE 10
B EHERERFEFEY

Net cash outflow

Stk il b L (4)
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31.

Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

DISPOSAL OF SUBSIDIARIES (continued)

(b)

Disposal of certain inactive subsidiaries

In March 2025, the Group entered into a sale
and purchase agreement with an independent
third party, for the disposal of the Group’s
interests in 3 subsidiaries with a consideration
of HK$10,000. The transaction was completed
on 20 March 2025 with a gain of approximately
HK$78,000. These subsidiaries included Ace
Gain Limited, City Silver Limited and Maximus
(HK) Limited.

CAPITAL COMMITMENTS

At the 31 May 2025 and 2024, the Group had no

significant capital commitments.

AR e MR R M EE

31 MAY 2025 2025%5531H

30. HEMBAR (&)

(b) HEESTUEZEZEWEAS
R2025F38  REBEE—%F
UE=ARJILBEEmZE URE
10,0007 7 tH & 7 & B 7t = R Fft
BABZHEm %X 7 BEM2025
F3H20H 7T W 4978,000%
TTeozEMB AR BIEACe Gain
Limited ~ City Silver Limited&
Maximus (HK) Limited e

31. BERKIE
20255 K 20245831 H » AEE I
HERERNAIE-
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32. HOLDING COMPANY STATEMENT OF 32. ERATIEMEIRRE
FINANCIAL POSITION

2025 2024
20255 20244
HK$’000 HK$’000
FET FAET
Non-current assets ERHEE
Investment in subsidiaries KRB ABNKE 1 1
Property, plant and equipment YD BB KR 64 83
Amounts due from subsidiaries NG 1,048 5,772
1,113 5,856
Current assets REEE
Inventories 78 - 32
Cash and cash equivalents RERIBEEEY 7 53
7 85
Current liabilities mMEIEE
Amounts due to directors ENEEZHIE 147 168
Other payables HpE S 18 2,310 3,721
Other borrowings H A& - 3,089
2,457 6,978
Net current liabilities mEhEEFEE (2,450) (6,893)
Net liabilities BEFEE (1,337) (1,037)
Equity @
Share capital fi& 2 26 1,222 1,019
Reserves (Eoki] 28 (2,559) (2,056)
Total deficiency in assets “E E R A (1,337) (1,037)
On behalf of the board of directors REREZFE
Ms. Liu Huijing Ms. Ma Liangping
JEBELL ERNLZL
Director Director
EE EBF
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PARTICULARS OF SUBSIDIARIES 33. MIBATFIE
The following are the particulars of the Group’s AEBEM B AT R2025F5831H %
subsidiaries at 31 May 2025: S :
Country/place and date of Issued
incorporation/establishment and and paid up Principal activities and
Name form of business structure capital Attributable equity interest place of operations
HRBL/RIAR/ HER BEfTk
47 RBEZHERYS BRRS Rl IBRBRERNE
Direct Indirect
E# [}
BCI Group Holdings (BVI) Limited  The British Virgin Islands (the “BVI’), US$10 100% - Investment holding,
6 February 2013, limited liability company Hong Kong
BCI Group Holdings (BVI) Limited ~ XBR%ES ((RBRLEE)) 10%7 100% - REEREE
201352860 BRAT
BCI Group Enterprises Limited Hong Kong, 28 November 2012, HK$1 - 100%  Investment holding,
limited liability company Hong Kong
BCI Group Enterprises Limited &7 20126118280 BR /A7 187 - 100% REER BA
Group Best Investment The BVI, 26 April 2013, US$10,000 - - Inactive
Holdings Limited limited liability company (2024: 100%)
Group Best Investment Holdings ~ EBRZE & 2013F45 268 - 10,0007 - - BEex
Limited ERAT (20242 : 100%)
Bannock Holdings Limited The BVI, 4 February 2014, USS1 = - Inactive
limited liability company (2024: 100%)
Bannock Holdings Limited EBRYES 2014E284R BB AT 1% - - BEgz

(20042 : 100%)

Buzz Concepts Management Hong Kong, 17 February 2014, HK$1 = - Provision of public relations
(H.K.) Limited (Note 30 (a)) limited liability company (2024: 100%) services, Hong Kong
Buzz Concepts Management B8 014528170 BRAT 137 - - REABRE &
(H.K) Limited (¥f330(a)) (20044 : 100%)
Lively World Limited The BVI, 2 January 2015, USS1 - - Inactive
limited liability company (2024: 100%)
Lively World Limited ZREYHE 201551520 BRAT 157 - - EEEx

(2004% : 100%)
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33. PARTICULARS OF SUBSIDIARIES (continued) 33. [MBATIRE (@)

The following are the particulars of the Group’s KEREM B AT R2025F5831H 5%
subsidiaries at 31 May 2025: (continued) =N =)
Country/place and date of Issued
incorporation/establishment and and paid up Principal activities and
Name form of business structure capital Attributable equity interest place of operations
AR/ RIEX/ HER BEfTk
47 RBEZHERY S BRRS Rl IEEBREENE
Direct Indirect
B# 3
Grand Diamond Limited Hong Kong, 13 February 2008, HK$2,030,750 - - Inactive
(Note 30 (a)) limited liability company (2024: 100%)
EEERLE (F3E30() &5 2008%2R130 BRAF 2,030,75087 - - ERgx

(2004% : 100%)

Litton Global Limited The BVI, 4 February 2014, US$1 - - Inactive
limited liability company (2024: 100%)
Litton Global Limited RBRLHS 201452848 ERAT E30 - - EREZ

(20244 : 100%)

Crown Grand Limited Hong Kong, 20 November 2014, HK$100 = 70%  Operation of entertainment
limited liability company (2024: 71%) and club business,
(Note) Hong Kong
Crown Grand Limited 8 014F11RNR BRAR 1007 - 0% KEREREMER FF
(2024% 1 71%)
(R )
City Silver Limited (Note 30 (b))~ Hong Kong, 12 October 2013, HK$625,003 - - Inactive
limited liability company? (2024: 60%)
City Siver Limited (MfEE300)) &> 2013108128 BRAF: 625,003% 70 - - EEEX

(20242 : 60%)

Ace Gain Limited (Note 30 (b)) Hong Kong, 5 May 2016, HK$1 - - Inactive
limited liability company (2024: 100%)
Ace Gain Limited (¥3£30(b)) 4201665850 BRAF 187 - - BEEz

(2024 : 100%)

Maximus (HK) Limited (Note 30 (b)) Hong Kong, 7 July 2017, HK$100 = - Inactive
limited liability company (2024: 100%)
Maximus (HK) Limited (5F30()) &% 201747870 BR AR 1007 - - EEEX

(20242 : 100%)
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33.

Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

PARTICULARS OF SUBSIDIARIES (continued) 33.

The following are the particulars of the Group’s
subsidiaries at 31 May 2025: (continued)

Country/place and date of Issued

incorporation/establishment and and paid up

Name form of business structure capital

BRI/ RIBX/ HER BEfTR

418 RBALRERY S RRRS

Castle Team Limited (Note 30 (@)  Hong Kong, 25 January 2018, HK$100
limited liability company

Castle Team Limited (1zE30(8) &% 2018F1A 258 ERAF 1007

KLSK Holdings Limited Hong Kong, 21 September 2016, HK$1
limited liability company

KLSK Holdings Limited % 2016597218 BRAT 1371

Sage wonder Limited The BVI, 26 February 2021, US$50,000
limited liability company

Sage wonder Limited EERYHE 2021528260 BRAT 50,000%7

Party Alc Limited Hong Kong, 9 February 2021 HK$10,000

limited liability company

EREERAT B8 2021E2890  BRAF 10,000%7

(12 Beverage Limited The BVI, 24 October 2024, USD100
limited liability company

(12 Beverage Limited EBRUEE 2024E10824A 10027
BRAH

FRHEBEXEEEARAT  PRC, 28 March 2024, RMB1,000,000
limited liability company

SRHERYEERERAT  DE 2024538280 BRAR AR 1,000,000

Note:

The Company indirectly owns 70% of the equity interest in Crown
Grand Limited (“Crown Grand”) and 51% of the equity interest in
Castle Team. Since Castle Team holds 2% equity interest in Crown
Grand, the Group’s effective equity interest in Crown Grand amounts
to 71% as at 31 May 2024. During the year ended 31 May 2025,
the disposal results in a reduction of the Group’s effective ownership
in Crown Grand from 71% to 70%, while the Group still maintains
control over Crown Grand.

AR e MR R M EE

31 MAY 2025 2025%5531H

M B AT R (&)
REEKNBASNR2025F5831 HH %
(=R N =)

Principal activities and
Attributable equity interest place of operations

FEfbRg IRERREENE
Direct Indirect

B# itk

- - Investment holding,
(2024: 51%) Hong Kong
- - RERROBE
(20245 - 51%)

- 100%  Inactive

- 00% EEEX

100% - Investment holding, Hong
Kong
100% - RERREA

- 100%  Operation of entertainment
and club business,
Hong Kong

- 100% RERERBFMER BE

100% - Inactive

100% - EBEEX

- 100%  Operation of entertainment
business, PRC
- 100%  SEREEE hE

MIEE -

&N BB EFACrown Grand Limited (T Crown
Grand |) 70% &1 K Castle Team 51%f&7%  H
Castle Team#¥ACrown Grand 2%&# > #122024
F5831H » AEE R Crown GrandBd 5 &4 & LA
FE71% o REE2025F5831HIEFE  BEFES
AE@PCrown GrandBIEBRIFRELEFIH71%MEE
70% > It A< 2 @7 ¥ Crown Grand {R 13512 1 1 o
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

ERE MR M

17 o = |

31 MAY 2025 202555531H

34.

35.

36.

172

RELATED PARTY TRANSACTIONS 34. REAERS
(a) Compensation of key management personnel (@ FEEEASHFHN
Remuneration for key management personnel REFWTESEAEFHH (R
of the Group, excluding amounts paid to the BFERE10@MMEENE R A
directors of the Company as disclosed in Note BIEEMIE) WT .
10(a), is as follows:
2025 2024
2025% 20244
HK$’000 HK$’000
FET FET
Salaries, allowances and e R REYER
benefits in kind 677 738
MATERIAL INTERESTS OF DIRECTORS 35. EENX S -ZHHESLUNEK
IN TRANSACTIONS, ARRANGEMENTS OR S
CONTRACTS
Except as disclosed in Note 34 to the consolidated PRIz S B ISR sS4 I EE 4 0 1
financial statements, no contracts of significance HmANTWNB ATz ILEXRATES
to which the Company’s subsidiaries was a party NEENAESRERNELEED BEE
and in which a director of the Company or an entity BEEARENEASAN T KREESRRD
connected with a director had a material interest, NAERFIAB N ©
whether directly or indirectly, subsisted during or at
the end of the financial year.
NOTE SUPPORTING CONSOLIDATED 36. #aBRE&RExRM:E

STATEMENT OF CASH FLOWS

Reconciliation of liabilities arising from financing
activities

The table below detail changes in the Group’s
liabilities arising from financing activities, including
both cash and non-cash changes. Liabilities arising
from financing activities are liabilities for which cash
flows were, or future cash flows will be, classified in
the Group’s consolidated statement of cash flows
from financing activities.

New Amante Group Limited #EEEEARAE
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36.

Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

NOTE SUPPORTING CONSOLIDATED 36.

STATEMENT OF CASH FLOWS (continued)

Reconciliation of liabilities arising from financing
activities (continued)

AR e MR R M EE

31 MAY 2025 2025%5531H

meERERERME (@

MEZPFEENERYER (@

Amounts due to  Total liabilities
Lease Loan from an Other Amounts due  non-controlling  from financing
liabilities  ex-shareholder borrowings to directors interests activities
HEED
RE—&H EfiES FEf IR 2R FELM
HEak BRRZER Hitifa® A BHEZHE aaf
HK$000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
FET FET FET FET FET FET
(Note 16/b)) (Note 24) (Note 23) (Note 25) (Note 25)
(Wz161)) (W24 (H#25) (H#225) (Hs225)
As at 1 June 2024 #2024%6818 10,956 2,563 3,089 188 2,660 19,456
Changes from cash flows: RenELH:
Repayments of other borrowings BEAMER - - (3,089) - - (3,089)
Repayments of loans - (1,761) - - - (1,761)
Repayments of principal portion of ~ EEREEEALHS
lease liabilities (5,009) - - - - (5,009)
Advances from directors EE - - - 4,728 - 4,728
Interest paid BFE (431) - (47) - - (478)
Total changes from cash flows REMERLEE (5,440) (1,761) (3,136) 4,728 - (5,609)
Other changes: Hitigs .
Disposal of subsidiaries HEMBAR - - - - (2,660) (2,660)
Early termination of lease REAILHE (147) - - - - (147)
Disposal of a cigar shop HE—HEMER (840) - - - - (840)
Lease modification HEBT (172) - - - - 172
Reclassify to trade and ENNBEBAR
other payables HEMNTIE (1,694) - - - - (1,694)
Interest expense FERE 431 - 47 - - 478
Total other changes Hitgsemn (2,422) - 47 - (2,660) (5,035)
As at 31 May 2025 12025458318 3,094 802 - 4,916 - 8,812
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

AR e MR R MY EE

31 MAY 2025 202555531H

36.

STATEMENT OF CASH FLOWS (continued)

Reconciliation of liabilities arising from financing
activities (continued)

NOTE SUPPORTING CONSOLIDATED 36.

maRE

MEZFIEENERYHER (@

MERMEE (@)

Amounts due to Total liabilities
Loan from Other ~ Amounts due to non-controlling from financing
Lease liabilities an ex-shareholder borrowings directors interests activities
MEEY
RE—%A BNES IR FEER
HEEE BEZER HitifE R 2HE BrmZIE RaE
HK$000 HK$ 000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
FET FET FET FET FET FET
(Note 16(b)) (Note 24) (Note 23) (Note 25) (Note 25)
(Hi161)) (Hiato4) (Hta23) (Hs225) (H25)
As at 1 June 2023 #2023%6H1H 14,705 6,477 2,948 203 2,700 27,033
Changes from cash flows: RenmELE:
Proceeds from new loans HEFFRHE = 700 = = - 700
Repayments of loans BEER - (4,614) - - - (4,614)
Repayments of principal portion of ~ EEREEEALHS
lease liabilities (13,568) - - - - (13,568)
Repayments to directors RESER - - - (15) - (15)
Repayments to minority shareholders [0 8k REM - - - - (40) (40)
Interest paid BEFE (1,025) - - - - (1,025)
Total changes from cash flows Remenes (14,599) (3.914) - (15) (40) (18,562)
Other changes: Hitigs
New leases WHE 11,801 - - - - 11,801
Early termination of lease RERIAE (790) - - - - (790)
Reclassify to trade and ENNEEESN
other payables HitFEf B (1,192) - - - = (1,192)
Interest expense FIEB% 1,025 - 141 - - 1,166
Total other changes HiE) e 10,844 = 141 = = 10,985
As at 31 May 2024 #2024558318 10,956 2,563 3,089 188 2,660 19,456
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37.

38.

Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

AR e MR R M EE

31 MAY 2025 2025%5531H

SUMMARY OF FINANCIAL ASSETS AND 37. #ERESoNETHSERSHE

FINANCIAL LIABILITIES BY CATEGORY BHEE
The carrying amounts presented in the consolidated AR EREYNEREAMU TS
statement of financial position relate to the following BEENTSRAaEER AR -

categories of financial assets and financial liabilities.

2025 2024
20255 20244
HK$’000 HK$°000
FET FET
Financial assets ERMEE
Measured at amortised cost: BEH A E -
Trade receivables, deposits and BEEWZIE -HE M
other receivables Hh e FIE 2,968 6,916
Cash and cash equivalents BERREEZEEY 1,549 1,816
4,517 8,732
Financial liabilities ERAafE
Measured at amortised cost: HEHR AN E -
Trade and other payables, excluding other B 5 K H 1 fE {7 X 1B
tax payables (FEEEM
FE TR 18) 6,491 18,725
Amounts due to directors FEESE 2B 4,916 188
Amounts due to non-controlling interests FE(T IESZER e 2 2 7R I8 - 2,660
Other borrowings H &R - 3,089
Loan from an ex-shareholder KE—ZAIKREZER 802 2,563
12,209 27,225
Lease liabilities HEaE 3,094 10,956
15,303 38,181

FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT

The Group’s financial assets that derive directly from
its operations are trade receivables, deposits and
other receivables and cash and cash equivalents.
Principal financial liabilities of the Group include
trade and other payables, other borrowing, lease
liabilities, loan from an ex-shareholder, amounts due
to directors and amounts due to non-controlling
interests. The main purpose of these financial
liabilities is to finance the Group’s operations.

38.

MEBRRER
FEEERREEENEMEENE
7 FE WA IR ~ 4% & Ko H th & WL =B DU
REhBEcFEY AEENTEETH
BEEEES REMEMNRE  HiE
PoHEER -KE—RZAKRRZEMR
BANEEZMARBNIFERED 2™
R tEFTMEBEFTEAEERREHE
BEE-
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

AR e MR R MY EE

31 MAY 2025 202555531H

38. FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT (continued)

The main risks arising from the Group’s financial
instruments are currency risk, credit risk, liquidity
risk and interest rate risk. The Group does not enter
into or trade financial instruments for speculative
purposes.

(a) Currency risk

The Group operated in Hong Kong and PRC
with most of the transactions settled in Hong
Kong dollars and Renminbi.

At the end of the financial year, certain bank
balances of the Group are denominated in or
linked to foreign currencies, details of which
are set out in respective notes, expose the
Group to foreign currency risk. The Group
currently does not have a foreign currency
hedging policy. However, the management
monitors foreign exchange exposure and will
consider hedging significant foreign currency
exposure should the need arise.

The carrying amounts of the Group’s monetary
assets and liabilities denominated in RMB at
the end of the year are as follows:

Assets
Liabilities

38.

MBRRER (@

AEEERTAMEENETEZARBE
MHB””\T:. = EE\/ML@Jﬁ%ﬂK EZEF'J
=8 g °$$E#DT_LZJZEE€£@$I
BUUERERAR -

(@ &SE¥ER
rEEREBRTECEET
MABARXZUBTRAREE
o

K%WEFX FEBRETIR

TTHE R T LASNEE 51 (8 30 22 51 S
% BB RN BRANE &
NAEBEAZIIERR EH
IR By U6 £ ) TE SN B B OREUR o 24
m-EEEEREIIERR I
WS B R P E R SMNE A

FEBUANREHAENEKEE

REafERERNERERY N
T

2025

20254

HK$’000

FHET

5,646

2,670
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

38. FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT (continued)

(a)

Currency risk (continued)

Sensitivity analysis

The following table details the Group’s
sensitivity to a 5% increase and decrease in
Hong Kong dollar against foreign currencies,
the foreign currencies with which the Group
may have a material exposure. 5% represents
management’s assessment of the reasonably
possible change in foreign exchange rate. The
sensitivity analysis uses outstanding foreign
currency denominated monetary items as a
base and adjusts their translation at the end
of each reporting period for a 5% change in
foreign currency rate. A positive number below
indicates a decrease in loss for the year where
foreign currencies strengthen 5% against Hong
Kong dollar. For a 5% weakening of foreign
currencies against Hong Kong dollar, there
would be an equal and opposite impact on loss
for the year.

(Decrease)/increase in loss
for the year

AR e MR R M EE

31 MAY 2025 2025%5531H

38. MHERERE ()

(a)

FAEE GRL) 18

— as a result of increase in foreign —HREZXR LA
currency rate
— as a result of decrease in foreign —HREXRTR

currency rate

B¥ERE (8

B E T
TREVNEEEHNBTZINE
(A& B 7 5E E BR & X B R B9 5h
) A EREZESNZBRE 5%
REREEEHEXGEREEY
BY 51 1 o BRRKE 3 4 168 A AR 45 X
SN EEREERERE WX
BEREHERMEXREFH %Y
HBFHAE - T EHET
ENE R BT ESNR FAE
BHEL - IERTETRESS
B B HFENEBRENRFE

=40 o

|

2025
20254
HK$°000
FHET

149

(149)
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4 A

17 o = |

FAFsERAR MYEE

31 MAY 2025 202555531H

38.

FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT (continued)

(b)

Credit risk

The Group’s credit risk is primarily attributable
to its trade and other receivables (note 18).
There are no significant concentrations of
credit exposure to the Group. It is spread over
a diversified portfolio of customers.

In respect of trade receivables relating to the
provision of individual credit, evaluations are
performed on the customers requiring credit
over a certain amount. These evaluations
focus on the customer’s history of making
payments when due and current ability to pay
and take into account information specific to
the customer. Typically, the Group does not
obtain collateral from customers, except for the
deposits received.

The credit risk of the Group’s other financial
assets, which mainly comprise of bank and
other deposits, arises from potential default
of the counterparties, with a maximum
exposure equal to the carrying amounts of
these instruments. Credit risk in cash and cash
equivalents are limited as cash is deposited
in the bank with high credit rating. Credit
risk arising from refundable rental deposits is
considered to be low, taking into account the
credit rating of the landlord, and the remaining
lease payments covered by the rental deposits.

Trade receivables

The Group measures loss allowances for trade
receivables at an amount equal to lifetime
ECLs, which is calculated using a provision
matrix. As the Group’s historical credit loss
experience does not indicate significantly
different loss patterns for different customer
segments, the loss allowance based on past
due status is not further distinguished between
the Group’s different customer bases.

178 New Amante Group Limited 3EEEEARAT

38.

MEREER (&)

(b)

EERE

AEENEEABRIZRNER
2R EAMEWRIE (HFE18) o &
ERTESAETNEERR -
FERESREZNEF AR -

MARREAGEAENEZRE
WRIEMS > FELDHEFE

SRETENEPAPMET &£E
FEEER P XN EMRIENS
fE5C &k LA B Bl H X (Y BY BE
oWt RZERNFTEER -
BEMS AEETAEEER
ESHHR 0 o MR ER B IR T FR 5b o

rEBHEMEMEE (T20HE
RITREMER) HEERRR
BRFHINBEEOTR RS
BEEERZELAENIKREE-
HRBEEFERGEETRESH
RIT - WRERBEFEBYHIGE
ERBELURSE - EEEEERE
Btk RBEREFIRENE T
HEN FHrREEEZEM
EENEERRAE-

ESERSE
AEERBEZBUWRIENEGIBERE
DAEEREHERGEERENE
BstE HNhMEBHERESR-
HRAEENBETEEBRLR
WARKBARELDHLEEER
TEBEERN  BERARERN
BREEGTIBRAEETAER
BERzBE—TED-



Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

38. FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT (continued)

(b)

AR e MR R M EE

31 MAY 2025 2025%5531H

38. MHERERE ()

Credit risk (continued) (b) ==ERM (&)
Trade receivables (continued) E S EIE (42)
The following table provides information about TERIEHAEEFEHEEERMR
the Group’s exposure to credit risk and ECLs REBoEINHRIENTEEE EEE
for trade receivables: HE R
Gross
Expected carrying Loss
2025 loss rate amount allowance
20255 TRHEARSIE X IREAE E51E 1
% HK$°000 HK$’000
% FET FET
0-30 days past due A HA0E30H - - -
31-90 days past due A HA31E90H - - -
91-180 days past due A HA91 E180H - - -
181-365 days past due  #1H§181E365H - - -
Gross
Expected carrying Loss
2024 loss rate amount allowance
20244 RHEEX AREAAE B
% HK$'000 HK$°000
% FET FET
0-30 days past due #HB0ZES0H 21.9 735 161
31-90 days past due A HA31E90H 33.0 279 92
91-180 days past due #HF91ZE180H 69.5 463 322
181-365 days past due  #iH181%E365H = = =
1,477 575

Expected loss rates are based on actual loss
experience over the past 5 years. These rates
are adjusted to reflect differences between
economic conditions during the period over
which historical data has been collected,
current conditions and the Group’s view of
economic conditions over the expected lives of
the receivables.

FHREREXRTERNBEENE
REECEET ZFHLEXERL
B DU BR PR WAER R S BB P B
HARE PO A B IR ~ B R IR I R &
EEHBWRIARRFRNEE
RRNERZENER -
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AR e MR R MY EE

31 MAY 2025 202555531H

38. FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT (continued)

(b)

Credit risk (continued)
Other receivables

38.

The Group has adopted the general expected

credit loss model

in relation to other

receivables. A summary of the assumptions
underpinning the Group’s expected credit loss

model is as follows:

Category
55

Performing

Underperforming

Non-performing
73!

Write-off

i 55

Company definition
of the category

AFNHEBERNESE

Counterparties have a low risk of
default and a strong capacity to
meet contractual cash flows

HFAEVWEARREEEREESRES
NEERE

Balance for which there is a significant
increase in credit risk; and
significant increase in credit risk is
presumed if interest and/or principal
repayments are 30 days past due

ERNEERBBELN; REFNER/
FAEENAHBBIOBAEEAREE
2 B BB E

Interest and/or principal repayments
are 90 days past due
R R/ HAEEFAIABEOH

Interest and/or principal repayments
are 180 days past due and there
is no reasonable expectation of
recovery

FER/HAEEFAIBEI180HBL
mEIEIREITERA
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MEREER (&)
(b)

EERR (&

Bl A

A& E Bl H M8 R IR B A —
RERACEEEEEN -Z/FEXE
ERACEEEREANBRREE
LI

The basis for recognition
of expected credit loss provision

HREREEGRERENEE

12 month expected credit losses.
Where the expected lifetime of an
assets is less than 12 months,
expected credit losses are
measured at its expected lifetime

12BN BHREEEE BN BEREER
TR ZANEE BHREEERE
ERERFEERA 2

Lifetime expected credit losses (non-
credit impaired)

2HBEREEEE GFEERE)

Lifetime expected credit losses
(credit-impaired)

2HBEREERE (EERHE)

Asset is written off

MIsEE
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

AR e MR R M EE

31 MAY 2025 2025%5531H

FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT (continued) 38. HERAKER (B
(b)  Credit risk (continued) (b) EERR @
Other receivables (continued) B zIE (2
The Group accounts for the above items’ REBZEBRFATEREERE
credit risk by appropriately providing for BEstIREESE LMIEBENESE
expected credit losses on a timely basis. In R AR - TEBHEEBEEX
calculating the expected credit loss rates, the B xEBEHZEBHEFANE
Group considers historical loss rates for each FPEEXRETEE LHAEMS
category of counterparties, and adjusted for SEHEEBERNETHEE FHEMEW
forward-looking macroeconomic information. KRB TEHE EEETIER AT
Expected credit losses against other T
receivables are provided as follows:
2025 2025%
Carrying amount
Basis for recognition Estimated gross (net of
Expected credit of expected credit carrying amount impairment  Basis for calculation
Company internal credit rating loss rate loss provision at default provision) of interest revenue
RIENEE fhsiEs REE #EHE
PELEEE R BMEEERE BRAGHEE REAE  (MREESE KEhEE
HK$'000 HKS$'000
Tér Fén
Performing 0.07% 12 month expected credit 2917 2,968 Gross carrying amount
losses
E% 12RWRBEEER REAfE
Underperforming -% Lifetime expected credit - - Gross carrying amount
losses (non-credit
impaired)
[} 2HEREERR REAfE
(FEEHE)
Total deposits and other receivables 2,977 2,968

RERAMERRELE
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AR e MR R MY EE

31 MAY 2025 202555531H

38. FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT (continued) 38.

(b) Credit risk (continued)

MBERBRER (B
(b) fEEEMR (&)

Other receivables (continued) B zIE (2
2024 20244
Garrying amount
Basis for recognition Estimated gross (net of
Expected credit of expected credit carrying amount impairment  Basis for calculation
Company internal credit rating loss rate 10ss provision at default provision) of interest revenue
RARHARE RN fEE HEFE
REARBESTR FHEERE: BERENAE REAE  MRAERE) UeHEE
HK$000 HK$000
T TET
Performing 0.7% 12 month expected credit 6,056 6,014 Gross carrying amount
losses
R PAEEEDEE R R
Underperforming 100% Lifetime expected credit 3 - (Gross carrying amount
losses (non-credit
impaired)
it 2HRHRREER KERE
(GFEEHE)
Total deposits and other receivables 6,059 6,014

B R AMERTEAE

No significant changes to estimation
techniques or assumptions were made during
the reporting period.
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38. FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT (continued) 38.

(b)

AR e MR R M EE

31 MAY 2025 2025%5531H

MHERERER (@

Credit risk (continued) (b) EERR @
Other receivables (continued) B zIE (2
The opening loss allowance for deposits and B e & HE hFE U R IE B ) & 18 8
other receivables reconciles to the closing loss i S K E MM E U 15 B R 5
allowance for deposits and other receivables, BEEHE BEREEAGWT
and the gross carrying amounts are as follows:
Under-
Performing performing Total
EE 7Pz Mt
HK$°000 HK$°000 HK$°000
F#ET F#ET F#ET
Gross carrying amount for 20255658310
deposits and other receivables e R EAMMEWEIE
as at 31 May 2025 RE4E 2,977 - 2,977
Opening loss allowance as at 120246 51HBY
1 June 2024 R E R R A 42 3 45
Reversal of provision for expected — TEER{E B85 & 0]
credit loss (33) (3) (36)
Closing loss allowance 20255658310
as at 31 May 2025 IR ERE 9 - 9
Net carrying amount for 11202555831 HY
deposits and other receivables we Rk HEAEREIE
as at 31 May 2025 BREFER 2,968 - 2,968

2025 ANNUAL REPORT 438 183



Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

AR e MR R MY EE

31 MAY 2025 202555531H

38. FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT (continued) 38.

(b)

(c)

Credit risk (continued)

MBERBRER (B
(b) fEEEMR (&)

Other receivables (continued) BgEiz1E (%)
Under-
Performing performing Total
S 3pas 45t
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
FET FET FET
Gross carrying amount for 2024558310
deposits and other receivables & K H M FE W R I
as at 31 May 2024 IREAEE 6,056 3 6,059
Loss allowance as at 120246818 K
1 June 2024 and 31 May 2024 2024%5831HK
BEEE 42 3 45
Net carrying amount for 2024558310
deposits and other receivables & R H M FE R 1A
as at 31 May 2024 IR AR 6,014 - 6,014
Liquidity risk (c) mEEZRERE

Liquidity risk relates to the risk that the
Group will not be able to meet its obligations
associated with its financial liabilities. The
Group is exposed to liquidity risk in respect
of settlement of trade payables, accruals and
other payables, other borrowings, loan from an
ex-shareholder, lease liabilities, amounts due to
directors and amounts due to non-controlling
interests, and also in respect of its cash flow
management. The Group’s objective is to
maintain an appropriate level of liquid assets to
meet its liquidity requirements in the short and
longer term.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

38. FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT (continued)

(c)

Liquidity risk (continued)

The Group’s policy is to regularly monitor
current and expected liquidity requirements to
ensure that it maintains sufficient reserves of
cash and adequate committed lines of funding
from major banks and financial institutions to
meet its liquidity requirements in the short and
longer terms.

The liquidity policies have been followed by the
Group during the years ended 31 May 2025
and 2024 and are considered to have been
effective in managing liquidity risks.

As disclosed in note 3(c), the Group incurred a
net loss of approximately HK$3,822,000 for the
year ended 31 May 2025 and as of that date,
the Group had cash and cash equivalents of
approximately HK$1,549,000 only. In addition,
the night club operated by the Group ceased
operations on 4 August 2024 due to expiration
of the lease and the Group disposed of a cigar
shop in April 2025. Following the cessation of
the night club business and the disposal of a
cigar shop, the Group recorded a significant
decline in revenue by approximately 56.5%.
The Group has taken and shall continue to take
actions to mitigate the impact as set out in
note 3(c) to ensure, as far as possible, that the
Group will have sufficient liquidity to meet its
liabilities when they fall due.

The following table details the Group’s
remaining contractual maturity for its financial
liabilities. The table has been drawn up based
on the undiscounted cash flows of financial
liabilities and the earliest date on which the
Group can be required to pay. The maturity
dates for other non-derivative financial liabilities
are based on the agreed repayment dates. The
table includes both interest and principal cash
flows. To the extent that liabilities carry interest
at floating rate, the undiscounted amount is
derived from interest rates at the end of the
reporting period.

AR e MR R M EE

31 MAY 2025 2025%5531H
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(c)

RBETEE (B
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BHABESTR R BEERFT
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me@iik RN ABEESE
R o

REBREE2025% 202445
BliHLEFEE—BEBRHES
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SRBEEFETZAN

WM EE3(C)FTIREE  ZEBREE
20255831 HIEEEEXEIE
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EEE RN RBESNEBRE

TREREAEE TR EHRER
GHRHR - TRRBETMEEN
AERFEEREREEBRBEANTR
WREHRGRR -HMIFTES
MEENIRETERHEER
HHE -TXRBEMNEREZRE
MEB -HMEENFIBMNXREFR
AR IREBERBESHROFZX
st

2025 ANNUAL REPORT &3 185



Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

RA TS ER R B 5E

4= AH

17 o = |

31 MAY 2025 202555531H

38.

FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT (continued)
(c)

(d)

Liquidity risk (continued)

38- Iﬁ\jiﬂnﬁﬁﬁqii (l\‘E)
(c) RENEEEME (8

Total More than More than
contractual Within one  one year but two years but
Carrying  undiscounted year or on less than less than
amount cash flow demand two years five years
BHRER
Réng L E B-F BBRE
REfE am EEX BOREE  BOREE
HK$ 000 HK$ 000 HK$ 000 HK$ 000 HK$'000
FEr FEr FEr FEr FEr
At 31 May 2025 12025558310
Trade and other payables BAREMERNTE 6,491 6,491 6,491 - -
Amounts due to directors ENESZHE 4,916 4,916 4,916 - -
Loan from an ex-shareholder RE—2EIRRZER 802 802 802 - -
Lease liabilities HE&R 3,094 3,150 3,150 - -
15,303 15,359 15,359 - -
Total More than More than
contractual Within one  one year but  two years but
Carrying  undiscounted year or on less than less than
amount cash flow demand two years five years
AHRIER
Reng —FRg BE—F BRmE
RAB L EEXx BORWmE  BOREE
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
FET FET FET FET FET
At 31 May 2024 122024555318
Trade and other payables B REMEMNTE 18,725 18,725 18,725 = =
Amounts due to directors ERNEEZHE 188 188 188 - -
Amounts due to non-controlling interests I EERER 2 2,660 2,660 2,660 - -
Other borrowings HtEw 3,089 3,110 3,110 - -
Loan from an ex-shareholder RE—LARRZER 2,563 2,563 2,563 - -
Lease liabilities HEAE 10,956 11,496 7,508 3,998 =
38,181 38,742 34,749 3,993 -
Interest rate risk (d FI=EREBE
Interest rate risk relates to the risk that the fair MEREIREMTAERFER

value or cash flows of a financial instrument will
fluctuate because of changes in market interest
rates. The Group’s bank deposits bear floating
interest rates. The Group’s other borrowings
bear interests at fixed interest rates and
therefore are subject to fair value interest rate

risks.
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39.

Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

AR e MR R M EE

31 MAY 2025 2025%5531H

CAPITAL MANAGEMENT 39. BEFXEHE
The Group’s primary objective when managing REBSESEANTEBENERELE
capital is to safeguard the Group’s ability to continue BN EKESENTRSRES/TMNEN
as a going concern and maximising the return to [O] %R o
stakeholders.
In order to maintain or adjust the capital structure, SIS AR EARRE  REFENZH
the Group may adjust the amount of dividend paid BERRKTHRESIE ARERE
to shareholders, return capital to shareholders, issue BA-ETHFBRREEEEMURDE
new shares or sell assets to reduce debts. 75 o
The Group actively and regularly reviews the capital AEBEBIMTHEREARZE I EL
structure and makes adjustments to it in light of R TN EEF:EE AEBREBHFRE
changes in economic conditions. The Group monitors mEEEREREBAREE
its capital structure on the basis of debt to equity
ratio.
The debt to equity ratio at reporting date was as REEHHANERESEEERNT
follows:
2025 2024
20255 20244
HK$’000 HK$’'000
FET FET
Amounts due to directors ENEEZHIE 4,916 188
Amounts due to non-controlling interests ENE| R i - 2,660
Other borrowings HAME R - 3,089
Loan from an ex-shareholder RKE—ZAIRREZER 802 2,563
Lease liabilities HEaRE 3,094 10,956
8,812 19,456
Total equity/(deficiency in assets) s (BEBA) 5,880 (972)
Debt-to-equity ratio B FS5HE mm bE = 1:0.7 n/a”’ &
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40.

41.

42.

188

RETIREMENT BENEFITS SCHEME

The Group operates a Mandatory Provident Fund
Scheme (the “MPF Scheme”) under the Hong Kong
Mandatory Provident Fund Schemes Ordinance.
Under the MPF Scheme, the employees are required
to contribute 5% of their monthly salaries or up to a
maximum of HK$1,500 and they can choose to make
additional contributions. The employer’s monthly
contributions are calculated at 5% of the employee’s
monthly salaries or up to a maximum of HK$1,500
(the “mandatory contributions”). The employees
are entitled to 100% of the employer’s mandatory
contributions upon their retirement at the age of 65,
death or total incapacity. No forfeited contributions
are available to reduce the contribution payable by
the Group in the future years.

As at 31 May 2025, no contributions payable to these
schemes was made as the amount was considered as
immaterial.

EVENT AFTER REPORTING PERIOD

(i) The Group entered into an investment
agreement with 2 independent third parties
on 20 May 2025 to acquire 51% equity
interest of a company based in China (“the
Target Company”) with consideration of
HK$1,112,000 (equivalent to RMB1,020,000),
which is primarily engaged in catering
business. The transaction was completed in
July 2025.

On 5 August 2025, the Group entered into
another investment agreement with the one of
the same independent third parties to acquire
the remaining 49% equity interest of the Target
Company with consideration of HK$648,000
(equivalent to RMB600,000). The transaction
was completed in August 2025.

(ii) On 25 June 2025, the Group entered into
a supplemental agreement with the former
shareholder of the Company. Pursuant to a
supplemental agreement, the payment method
for the HK$1,800,000 consideration from
the sale of cigar shop (see Note 8) will be
settled via offsetting against the Group’s future
purchases from the former shareholder of the
Company.

APPROVAL OF FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

The consolidated financial statements were approved
and authorised for issue by the board of directors on
28 August 2025.
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40.

41.

42.

B4R F 5 E

AEBEREE B (RFNE QB EF
) RARBIMELTFEEE (MBRRE
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#5%H EIR&=1,6008 TR 1 7]
EEFHBIMR - EBETHER HRR
EBER#5%W LR&S1,5008 Tt H
(TR BIEHRL) ~BEMN65EEB K
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B0 I 53 I 14 R o BE B AR B R Wit
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ARERN WK ZEHE LS EN

o

HREHAREIE

(i) RAEEBEBER2025F5820H HE M
LBUFE =R NRERSE U
1E81,112,0008 0 HER AR
#1,020,0007T) U B — R 52 AP
BznrE (TBEAT) 51%K%
oz RBATBEREENERK-
B ZBER2025%F7H 5%/ °

2025588 5H » REE H £l
Hbh— B UIE=ART:]1%
E 7% 0 LU 1E648,0007% 7T (AH
=210 AR 600,0007T) W B2
NEFT49%RE - BREAXZE
R2025FE8F 5T AL ©
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“AGM”
MRERBFERG

“Amante House”
I Amante House |

“Articles of Association”

MEM =2 4R)

“associate(s)”

N YN

“Audit Committee”
EBiZEZE9]

“Auditor” or “BDO”
e Gl ARVE ===l

“Auditor’s Report”
MiZ BB R &

“Board”
=0

“CEQ”
KRG EA

“CG Code”
2SR

“Chairman”

=yl

“Code Provisions”
ASEUEC S d

“Companies Act”
FMABlE

“Companies Ordinance”
M B

Definition

B&

the annual general meeting of the Company
KRABINKRRBFRE

a lounge located at Wan Chai, Hong Kong
—BEUREBEFHNEERE

the amended and restated articles of association of the Company
adopted by a special resolution passed on the AGM held on
14 November 2022

R2022F 11 B14HBITHRRBEARG LEKHIRAZEZERANELQE
BT R ESTNABZIZARY

having the meaning ascribed thereto under the GEM Listing Rules
BEGEM L RRIR T 88 &

the audit committee of the Company
KREINBEZEES

BDO Limited, an independent external auditor of the Company
BRI EERETMEHRMERAE > AR BBIE L INSIZEED

the independent auditor’s report dated 28 August 2025 issued by the
Auditor
ZBRBM PR 2% I B BA 720258 5 28 H B L 12 H AN IR &

the board of Directors
EEg
the chief executive officer of the Company

RATBPIITERH

Corporate Governance Code as set out in Appendix 15 of the GEM
Listing Rules
GEM k73R Bl Y 21 577 8 BY 1 2= &8 <P Al

the chairman of the Board
EESEE

code provisions as set out in the CG Code
EERSTRIPT ST RIR X

the Companies Act (2023 Revision) of the Cayman lIslands as
consolidated and revised

RizEREFTZHEE B REE (2023FEF] )

the Companies Ordinance (Chapter 622 of the Laws of Hong Kong)
REMEG (BB EG56225)
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Definition
“Company”

/NI

“Company Secretary”

MRBEIME]

“Corresponding Period”
rEEREH)

“Directors”
===y

“Disclaimer”

MRERER

“ESG Report”
MEE-HERERRS]
“ESG Reporting Guide”
NMEE-HERERRSIESN

“Executive Director(s)
MHAITES)

“GEM Listing Rules”
FGEM L £ A1

“GHG
FGHG J

“Group” or “we” or “our”

M7 & B o M3 9

“HKASSs”
rEBgtER

New Amante Group Limited (formerly known as BCI Group Holdings
Limited), a company incorporated in the Cayman Islands with limited
liability, shares of which are listed on the Stock Exchange
WEZEEEREBRLE FIBSMERARAR) r —EMRHESESER
I BRAE > HRRD BT L

the company secretary of the Company
KRABNABEWE

the period for the year ended 31 May 2024
HZE2024F5831H IEFE R

the directors of the Company
KANBNESE

the disclaimer of opinion in the Auditor's Report on the Company’s
consolidated financial statements for the Reporting Period
ZEEMREFR A AN BRETHABNGESRFRERAERNITERR
R

environmental, social and governance report of the Group for the year
ended 31 May 2025
AREBEBE2025F5831HIEFEFENRE - HEREARRS

Environmental, Social and Governance Reporting Guide as set out in
Appendix 20 of GEM Listing Rules
GEM_E MR AN ER20FT & MIRIE - H E R EARSIES]

the executive Director(s)

HITES

The Rules Governing the Listing of Securities on GEM made by the
Stock Exchange from time to time
554 32 By A B ) € BYGEMEE 35 £ 1 7R Bl

Greenhouse gas

@ TS A= B
= R A

the Company and its subsidiaries
KRB REHW B AT

Hong Kong Accounting Standards
EHE s
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“HKFRSs”
[ S5 B PR 3R &5 2 B

“HKICPA”
rEEGstMAg]

KKH K$U
BTl

“Hong Kong”
r&#)

“INED(s)”
MBI IFITES]

“Internal Control Consultant”

P BB B R

“LKF Lounge”
I'LKF Lounge |

“MBA”
[4B 48 =5 72 A48 Kz 4 A1
“MPF Scheme”

Mg a5t 8l

“Nomination Committee”
F}E% KE =N

“Option(s)”
TRE R #E

“PRC”
MHA

“Proposed Measures”

Fe=2c )il

Definition

B&

Hong Kong Financial Reporting Standards comprise HKFRS, HKAS
and Interpretations
EEMBREENCEESBEMHZREEDN EEGFEAKEE

Hong Kong Institute of Certified Public Accountants
EBGEEAE

Hong Kong dollar(s), the lawful currency of Hong Kong
B BBEEEGT

the Hong Kong Special Administrative Region of the People’s Republic
of China
PEARENEEBRRHITHE

the independent non-executive Director(s)

BIIFRITES

an internal control consultant engaged by the Company on 14 May
2025
RABIR2025FE5 814 H ZEERY 9 3 &5 22 RE RS

the cigar lounge operated by the Group at Lan Kwai Fong, Hong Kong
FEEREBREDLKENENEERE

the amended and restated memorandum and articles of association of
the Company adopted by a special resolution passed on the AGM held
on 14 November 2022

R2022F 11 B14BBTHREBEFASG FKFHRBZZHRMAN KR E]
RAEE] R B 5T B AR 4 = 72 A 4 B A Al

Mandatory Provident Fund Scheme

sa Mt AR 5 E

the nomination committee of the Company
KRBEINIRREES

Share option(s) granted to eligible grantee(s) by the Company
RATAEERERAKRTHERE

People’s Republic of China
FREE AR

proposed measures proposed by the Company to address the
Disclaimer

RABR/BRIERERMBLNVERE
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Definition

B&

“Remuneration Committee”

FMEE S

“Reporting Period”
R &5 HAR

“SFO”
855 R ERG 1R B
“Share(s)”

TR 17

“Share Option Scheme”
Mg R et 21l

“Shareholder(s)”
A% ER

“Stock Exchange”
MH 32 PR

“Wanchai Amante Shop”
I'Wanchai Amante Shop J

wgy”
% J

the remuneration committee of the Company

AABHFHFMEES

the period for the year ended 31 May 2025
B E2025F5H31H IEFEEHRE

the Securities and Futures Ordinance (Chapter 571 of Laws of Hong
Kong)
&5 RERERG) (BB LB HEE71E)

ordinary share(s) of HK$0.01 each in the issued share capital of the
Company
KRBBETRAPEREBEC.0O1A TN E B

the share option scheme adopted at the extraordinary general meeting
of the Company held on 14 March 2017
RABR2017ESR 4B RITHIRRS NG L RMBV B E TS

holder(s) of the Share(s)
e AVEST=IN

The Stock Exchange of Hong Kong Limited
EBBMEXZFAERAS

a cigar shop operated by the Group at Wanchai, Hong Kong
—RBHAERREBEFREN T NG H

per cent
Bt
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